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UK Coal is the largest producer of coal in the UK,
and a significant supplier of energy to the UK's
electricity industry. In the last year we mined
approximately 14% of the total amount of coal
burned in the UK, which i1s equivalent to the
energy needed to provide around 5% of the
country’s electricity requirements.

One of Britain’s largest brownfield site property
developers, UK Coal owns a substantial land
portfolio, which has major potential for
redevelopment
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2M0 2009
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Chairman’s Statement

Introduction

| jomed UK Coal as Chairman an 15 November 2010

Inthus my first statement 1t 1s appropniate 10 take stock
of the Group s posiion and to set out how the Board plans
to take UK Coal forward

The Year of 2010

For 2010 the Group delivered a further year of poor operational
performance with a pre-tax loss of £124 6 millton a loss per
share of 41 8p and operating cash outflow of £35 0 million
These results follow pre-tax losses of £129 1 milhon in 2069 and
£15 6 milhon in 2008, bringing us to three years of unacceptable
performance m arow Cumulative losses aver three years
amount to £269 3 milhon

The Business Context

Itwll be clear to those who have followed UK Coal that the
causes of these severe losses are deeply rooted and require a
complete overhaul of strategy and execution To frame the way
forward, we need to take into account the performance of the
Company over the last five years across a number of areas

{1} Operating performance levels of safety production valumes
and cperating costs have all deteriorated over the last five
years Safety performance — our highest prionty — has been
unaccepiable Production levels have consistenily fallen
short of expectation Operating costs have grown
relentlessly wath labour costs per employee mcreasing from
£44k in 2006 to £61k in 2010 Deep mine operating costs
have doubled frem £28 per tonne to £56 per tonne

{n} Contract strategy in striking the balance hetween
the predictabshity of fixed price contracts and being able
to capitalise on nising coal prices the Group has placed
more weight on the certainty of fixed prices Thus i 2010
compared to a market average sales price of £2 37/GJ
the Group achueved an average of only £1 97/GJ {equivalent
to £60 per tonne and £47 per tonne respectively} Thisis
compounded by a contract mix preventing UK Coal from {ully
reahising proceeds closer to market prices which currently
are projected by the market to be around £3/GJ throughout
2011 and wto 2012

() Development each of cur three on-going deep mines
has underperformed 1ts smvestment programme 1n
developing new coal faces at some point in the last three
years The most notable was Daw Mill where, n early 2010,
a four month face gap caused the Group to burn through
the majority of the cash it had raised from its 2009 equity
issue Whether caused by geclogical conditions or poor
management and planming, if the next panei of coal 15 not
ready before the previous face s exhausted the resutt1s
a ‘face gap or a gap n production and pressure on the
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development of the subsequent face it was confirmed in
January 2011 that slow progress in 2010 was likely to cause
a face gap again this year at Daw Mill | report below the
steps we have taken to address this unacceptable position

Financial structure the Group has become over rehiant

on debt At the year-end net debt {including generator
Ioans/prepayments but excluding restricted cash balances)
has ncreased from £94 milhon in 2006 to £242 million in
2010 At the same time the deficit i the defined benefit
pension scheme has grown to a level broadly equivalent to
the rest of the Group s debt as measured on the actuanal
basis used by the Trustees, in part reflecting the fact

that the Group $ defined benefit schemes remain open

to future accrual

{v)

Reliance on Property

To mitigate poor operational and finantial performance

UK Coal has reked heawly on the potential of 1ts property
portfalio both to underpin future value and to use as secunty
for its banking facthties The portfolio valuations fell in both
2009{£25 7 millign) and 2010 (£34 2 milhon} It s now clearly
apparent that the projections under Project Werth {presented
v the 2009 accounts to be £615 milon i 2012 nising to
£820 million tn 2014) are neither realistic nor deliverable

m the context of current market conditions A series of new
approathes 1s required to unlock and develop the future value
that exists in the property portfolio

A Unique Legacy

UK Coal represents one of the last parts of a proud and distinct
industnal hentage in the UK Qur operations support some 3 000
highly skilled direct employees and several thousand more jobs
n the supply chain The UK 1s likely to remain partly dependent
on coal for power generation for the next decade, which ties in
with the current lifetime of our deep mines and reserves and
resources of 48 midlion tonnes The introduction of a carbon
support price 1n 2013 will further dampen the demand for coal,
but 1t 1s noteworthy that in the last winter coa! accounted for
up to 44% of the fuel mux m power generation Exploitation of
our further reserves and resources — n the order of 43 million
tonnes - beyond the next decade depends on cleaner
technologies such as carbon capture and storage

The Board’s Approach

It 15 clear that the Group 1s 1n a poor position over-financed
by debt encumbered with production costs which are too
high and gver exposed to the market for brownfield property

The Board has taken stock of this position and is determined
to arrest the trend of under-dehvery and to seek value for
our shareholders
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Chairman’s Statement

continued

{mmediate Steps

Qur imit:al steps to improve matters were delayed by an
explosive ignition of methane at our Kellingley mine on

23 November 1 am pleased to report that all 218 men were
safely evacuated with no injuries sustained While the fire was
extinguished 156 underground workers were laid off on basic
pay (saving around £200k in costs} until they returned when
operations resumed on 9 December This s the first ime

the Group has exercised its right to do so We also reached
agreement with our workforce at each of our deep mines to
continue producing and dispatching coal throughout most of the
Christmas period to mitigate the effect of lost production from
Kellingley, again a change from the norm

Qver the last three months we have taken some immediate

and difficult steps 1o improve perfoermance Measures to reduce
the cost base have included the necessary repudiation of an
unaffordable Group-wide RPI pay award at 1 January 2011
which would have cost £5 million the pruning of allowances and
a significant reduction in the size of the head office As a result
of these steps we expect a £12 million cost reduction for 2011
compared to our ongenal budgets We have also made clear

to all parties the need to close the current final salary pension
schemes n the Group sq as to divert funds to reduce the deficit
In all these actions we have appreciated the cooperation and
help of the workfarce The urgent need for further change has
been communicated clearly to all colleagues and unions and we
believe that the message s understood

On the Property front, in the closing weeks of 2010, we placed
considerable emphasss on the projection given on 28 October
2010 of achteving sales of £24 millien by the end of December
| am pleased to say that our property team achieved this
milestone

On learning of the potential 2011 face gap we promptly
appointed a new manager of Daw Mill in February 2011

He has acted quickly in developing and initiating a dehvery

plan Thisincludes the improvement of underground transport
capabilities new working patterns, and enhanced maintenance
and avarlabihity of key capital equipment Inrecent weeks we
have benefited from full engagement in our recovery plan of key
members of the development workforce at Daw Mill to mitigate
the possibiity of a face gap | thank them for their cooperation

| am alse pleased to confirm that Lloyds Banking Group has
agreed to extend our borrowing facilittes and take out a smaller
participant, while the Board undertake a full review of the
business i anticipation that a successful implementation

of the review will lead to longer term support | thank our
Finance Director, David Brocksom for his efforts in securing
this financing

Strategy

The Board 1s w the cowrse of a Strategic Recovery Review to
tackle the deep-rooted problems in UK Coal The review s wide
ranging and well advanced We intend to identify and develop

a viable business model for our Deep and Surface Mines and our
Property Divisions The review will identify the conditions and
steps necessary to restore the Group to economic health for the
period over which there remains dependence n the UK on coal
for power generation

The key priorities for the review include
« The Group's commercial strategy for the sale of coal

* Dperating costs and in particular terms conditions
and flexibnlity of employees

* The predictabibity and reliabibity of production and
pver-ground operations

* [mproving the process for the development of new
coal faces

* Creation of the surface mining business as a profitable,
sustainable standalone business,

+  The level and form of pension provision, cost and
deficit funding

+ Developing a strategy for releasing the value in the
property portfelio and

»  Aplan for the explotation of the Group s coal reserves
beyond those accessible from the current infrastructure

We have started to neqotiate early recommendations of the
review We anticipate that we will be in a position to say mare
about the outcome of the review at the time of the Annual
General Meeting in June

The Composition of the Board

Gareth Williams, who joned during the year stepped up to be
Managing Director of Mining n August 2010 At the same time
Owen Michaelson a non executive director regresenting Peel
Holdings on the Board from 2007 to 2010, became Managing
Director of the property business Owen was replaced as a
non-executive director by Steven Underwood, Corporate
Development Director of Peel Holdings

| joined as Chairman on the 15 November 2010 at which point
David Jones, Chairman and Jon Lloyd Chief Executive left the
Board Kevin Whiteman non-executive director stepped down
on 31 March 2011 Mike Toms will be retiring from the Board
on 30 June 2011 Keith Heller joins the Board today as a
non-executive director and Chairman of the Board s Safety
Committee a separate announcement regarding his
appomntment 1s also being made today We hope tomake a
further appeintment by the date of the Annual General Meeting
| thank members of the Board for their support through this
difficult time




In addition to the above Board appcintments, we have decided
to strengthen our Property Board Tony Donnelly Managing
Derector of AWG Praperty Ltd, whe has a track record of

a similar turnaround to that required in Harwoerth Estates
Joined aur Property Management Board as a non-executive

in December 2010

Qutlook

While the first quarter of 2011 has seen many challenges,
praductian has been rehable and steady at 2 1 million tonnes
with output of 1 6 milhon tonnes from deep mines and 0 5 million
tonnes from surface mmes Our output level reflects some
throtthng back of preduction and costs at Daw Mill to mitigate
the risk of a face gap in the year
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We sold 1500 acres of agnicultural land in @1 with gross
proceeds of £10 Smilhon These disposals were prncipaily
two significant agnicultural estates 590 acres at Stockiey Hill
Lancashire and a 279 acre part of our Sandy Lane site in
Staffordshire

Success for UK Coal will need difficult changes the full
engagement and understanding of our employees and therr trade
ursons and the continuing support of our banks — Lloyds 8anking
Group in particular — of our supphers and of our customers

With this support the Board 1s determmed to do its best to
re-create a safe and profitable Group over the medium-term

for employees, other stakeholders and our leng-suffering

shareholders

JonsanGox
Chawrm

19 Apnl 2011
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Advanced Manutacturing Park {AMP), Waverley, South Yorkshire

Operating and Financial Review (OFR)

Business Overview

UK Coal1s the largest producer of coal in the UK, and a
significant suppher of energy to the UK s electrioity industry
In 2010 we mined and sold 7 2 mllien tonnes of coal which
represented approximately 16% of the total amount of coal
burned in the UK Predominantly our customers are in the
electricity supply industry { ESI'} and our production therefore
represented around 5% of the total energy used to supply the
UK with electrnicity

At the 2010 year end, the Group had three operational deep
mines and six surface mines

As aresult of our hernitage we have a very large estate of
around 37 900 acres {15 300 hectares} of land This estate
includes agricuttural land which was orniginally acquired for 1ts
underlying coal reserves, and the sites of former mines and
associated workings The estate 1s fargely focused on the UK
coal fields along the A1/M1 corndor through Nottinghamshire
and Yorkshire and in Nerthumberland although it also includes
some very significant sites elsewhere

Given their location and former use these sites are often
very well connected to road, rad and electricity networks
and represent an excellent opportunity for development of
both residential and employment buildings helping to meet
the long-term needs of the UK

Our business makes a significant coniribution to the UK’s energy
needs, to the local communities where our operations are based
and to social and economic regeneration programmes

Strategy

The Group 5 aim 1s to create shareholder value by accessing

and mining reserves of coal where there 1s a clear prospect

of creating substantial value over time and by realising the
tonsiderable value of our land portfolio The difficulties faced
by the Group in achieving this are well known The management
team under the leadership of the new Executive Chairman, 1s
atan advanced stage of conducting a sirategic review to set
out core plans and milestones for the development of the

Group over the medium and longer term
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installing new roof supports at Kellingley colliery, Yorkshire

Objactives
The current objectives of the business are outhined below

Mining
Deep mining
+ Toimprove cantinually the safety in our operations,

¢ Toreduce nsk and variability in operational performance

» Toimprove the underiying development position of
each ming

* To optimise operating cast per tonne of output and

+ Toachieve over ime an optimum balance between
long term sales contracts and an ability 1o access
short-term market prices for our coal

Surface mining

* Tomprove cantinually the safety in our operations

+  Toncrease surface mine production and to maintatn
a sustainable level of production over the longer term
through planning applications and consents

* To maximuse productivity and operating performance on
our sites and

* Tomamtan the high environmental standards of our mning

schemes and maintain close working relationships with
local communities

Harworth Estates

¢ Torealise the value of our surplus agricultural and
other non-core land to reduce Group debt,

e Toncrease the value of our strategic land bank
by gaining more favourable planning designations,

o Todevelop further the income stream from our
business parks,

* To progress delivery partnerships with third party
heusebulders to develop cur brownfield sites and

« Togenerate valug for the business through exploiting
renewable energy opportunities
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Review of Operations by Business: Mining

General Overview

The deep mining business undertook face changes at the

three remaming deep mines tn 2010 Two of these {aces were
detwvered on budget and on time but this was overshadowed by
the unacceptable delay to Daw Mill s new face, resulting in the
face gap reported in last year s accounts

Although this led to a disappointing year, the lost production
was largely mitigated by better [evels of production from both
Thoresby and Keltingley, and the commencement of operations
at three new surface mines

During the year the Group ran a Safety at the Heart’ campaign
where, over a three month penod, all employees attended one
day safety courses This process was the start of UK Coal s
journey to become ‘best in class’ and even at this very early
stage, there has been a 21% reduction i the total accident
rate per 100,000 manstfts for 2010

A major project was undertaken at Daw Mill to accelerate
improvement in general mmne productivity by identifying process
bottlenecks Over 24 weeks this project resulted in improved
equipment reliability increased bel availab:ity and better
production productivaty which in Q4 2010 led to the first ever
one million tonnes being produced from a face in 3 quarter

A similar process has been introduced into Xellingley dunng the
first quarter of 2011 and part of the benefits of the project in
2011 will be realised in the development of new coal faces

at our mings to reduce the future nsk of face gaps

Revenue from the mining business for 2010 was £345 4 million
{2009 £310 2 million} and operating 1oss before non-trading
exceptional items was £41 2 million {2009 £68 6 milhon} The
revenue Is denived from deep mines sales of £279 3 million {2009
£250 2 mullion} and surface mines sales of £66 1 million {2009
£60 0 million) The cperating loss before non-trading exceptional
1tems 15 spht as a deep mines loss of £41 6 million (2009 loss of
£70 5 milion) and surface mimes profit of £0 4 million {2009
profit of £1 9 rmlbion} The graduzal reduction in the relative
amount of older legacy coal contracts and some newer
contracts have helped increase the average realised sales price
by allowing access to the strong market price for coal prevailing
in the secand half of the year Average realised sales per
Gsgajoule was £1 97/GJ{2009 £18%/GJ

We have continued to invest heavily m our deep mines during
the year in line with our strategy to increase the productivity and
reduce the uncertainty of output fram that business We have
accessed coal from the new seams at Kellingley and Thoresby
with the ramp up on Kellingley s new panel {301s} completed in
March 2010 and on Theresby's new panel (051) in Apnl 2010

Ouring 2011 ali three deep mmes will have face changes,

with Kefhngley and Thoresby switably advanced with their
developments Development levels at Daw Milt have been
unacceptable duning the year but mingating actions have been
taken to reduce the nsk of face gaps at any of the three mines

Key Perfermance Indicators {(‘'KPis')

2010 2009
Sales price per Gigajoule (£/GJ) 197 187
Tannage sold {millron tonnes) 12 69
Tonnage produced {million tennes) 12 70

Market Qverview

The UK burned an estimated total of 45 million tonnes of steam
coal 1in 2010 the vast majority of this betng used 1o generate
electricity Overall consumption rose in the UK by 6% n 2010
compared to 2009, with demand in the electricity market
favourably affected by a combimation of better economic news
poorer parformance at nuclear stations and colder weather at
the end of the year

We continue to have a small number of significant customers in
the UK electricity supply industry, our predommnant market and
all of these have retrofitted flue gas desulphunsation{ FGD ) onto
thesr stations to meet the requirements of the Eurcpean Large
Combustion Plant Dwectve { LCPD )

The replacement legislation to the LCPD the Industrial

Emissions Directive { IED ) has been approved in the European
Parfiament and the UK is currently working towards finalising its
implementation The IED will require further tnvestment by the
generators to meet the hightereng sulphur dioxide and nitrogen
oxide emsssion it targets after 2015 However as it stands

the IED would allow UK generators not investing some flexibility
in their gperational emissions but would hmit thetr runming hours
In return

On 16 December 2010 the UK Government pubhished its
Electnicity Market Refarm | EMR } consultation outhring how

1t intends to encourage nvestment in low carbon generation to
meet 1ts long-term carbon reduction targets The consultation
puts forward four main principles to reach this goal carbon price
suppart feed in tanffs, capacity mechamisms and emission
performance standards

UK Coal believes that existing coal fired generation provides an
essential low cost transition to the low carbon economy The UK
Government recognises the importance coal plays m providing
diversity secunity and flexhility in our energy supplies but has
stated ultmately coal can only play its part in the long-term
energy mix via carbon capiure and storage{ CCS )

CCS nvolves captuning the CO, emitted from burning fossi fuels
transporting 1t and stoning 1t safely in geclogical formations CCS
has the potential to reduce CO, ermssions fram fossil fuel power
stations by as much as 90% The emission performance standard
proposals within the EMR proposals would force all new coal
power stations to fit CCS to a proportion of its capacity from

the start of operations




To assist the development of CCS within the UK the Government
have confirmed they will be willing to give financial support

for four commercial demonstration schemes to kick-start this
development Confirmation of the first scheme 1s expected to

be announced durning 2011 along with details of the process

for determiming the other three

In the recent budget, the Government confirmed thew intention
to ntroduce a Carbon Flgor Price from April 2013 as part of their
Electricity Market Reform programme The floor price would start
at £16 per tonne C0, 1n 2013 nsing 10 a target price of £30 per
tonne in 2020 Thus policy 1s designed to encourage investment in
low carbon generation although given the rapid implementation
date it 1s unhkely in the short-term to result in anything other
than a windfall gain for existing low carbon generation at the
expense of higher electricity prices and a less competitive coal
generation sector

Coal prices

International coal prices INW Europe deliveries) for near term
delivenies started 2010 at $86 per tonne fell back to $73 per
tonng i the spring hefore recovering to firush the year back
at $126 per tonne

China remained the main dniver in the international market with
steam coal imports growing by 35 million tonnes, an increase
of 60% This combimed with major supply disruptions towards
the end of the year and cold winter weather across Europe saw
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preces nise to therr highest level since October 2008 The recent
events i Japan, and the subseguent reaction of other nations to
the nisks in their nuclear industry have provided further support
10 near term coal prices

In sterling terms, the pnce per tonne followed a simlar trend,
starting 2010 at £53 per tonne (£2 12/GJ), fallng to £48 per
tonne in the spring and recoverng at the year end to £81 per
tonne At’5 Apnil 2011 the average forward market price far
coal for delivertes in the remainder of 2011 was $131 or £79
per tonne (£318/GJ)

in 2009 fower coal burn, caused by the economic downturn and
good nuclear performance, led to a significant nise in the amount
of coal held on stock at power stations During 2010 generators
have cut back on their import activiiies in order to reduce ther
nventories This has seen steam coal mports fall by 40% in 2010
to just under 20 mullian tonnes As a result power station stocks
reduced from 22 million tonnes at the start of the year to finish

at 13 4 million tonnes at the end of December 2010

Historic steam coal pnices together with the latest forward
market pnices for coal delvered to Amsterdam/Rotterdam/
Antwerp {'ARA ) are shown below Large mining compames
waorldwtde have been seen to be talloring their short-term
production to a period of reduced demand until glebal commodity
consumption and economic growth 15 re-established

NW Europe spot steam coal price expressed in £/6J
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Review of Operations by Business: Mining

continued

UK steam coal market

Caal delivered into the UK 15 priced off the ARA price shown above converted into sterling with the additional cost of delivery

into the UK market then added The average forward price for calendar 2011 on the ARA market at 31 December 2010 was $122 per
tonne Converted into sterling at the then exchange rate of $1 55 £1 and nto its catonfic value this equated to a forward sterling
price of £313/GJ The additional cost to the generator of dehvery to the UK brought this to a UK delivered price of over £3 40/GJ
at that time

The table betow shows the UK steam coal market together with UK Coal's share

UK Electricity Supply Industry ('ESI )

As the table below shows coal 1s the second most used fuel source after gas in UK electricity generation and is sigmficantly larger
than the other fuel sources

Percant of electrnicity generated by fuel type

Perceant 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Coal 38 35 32 28 ]
Gas 37 43 43 45 46
Nuclear i8 15 13 18 16
0Ol hydro and renewables 7 7 7 9 10
Total 100 100 100 100 100

Source DECC Energy Statistics {2010 figures based on provisional numbers}

Coal contracts
We aim to achieve a diverse mix of contracts with customers which gives a naturat hedge between the types of contracts and
secunity of supply contracts with the ability to take advantage of international coal prices

Around 95% of the coal sold is delivered to Electricity Generator customers with the balance delivered to CoaldEnergy and
ndustral markets

The contractual commitmenis at the end of December 2010 stood at 21 2 million tonnes compared to 28 4 million tonnes at
December 2009 A surnmary of our qutstanding contractual commitments 1s given opposite

The average realised sales price will be mfiuenced over the following years by both the market price of coal and the proportion of
older legacy contracts sull to be delivered At December 2010, an amount of 2 7 million tonnes at an average sales price of tirca
£173/GJ was left to be delivered of which 2 3 millton tonnes 15 to be delivered in 2011 and the remasming 0 4 million tonnes in 2012
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Total commitments spht into year of delivery

Milkion tonnes Total 2011 2012 203 04 2015
Fully floating? 27 13 13 01 - -
Floating within caps and floors’ 65 22 3 na 05 03
Fixed not subject to indexation 120 42 23 19 18 18
Total 1.2 77 67 24 23 Z21

Options 1o purchase coal granted
at fully floating prices 30 05 08 10 10 —

* Caps and floor prices are subject o wndexation ?

2 Indexation will be generally based off RPI changes

3 Fully loating tonnage 15 priced basad upon APl 2 being the industry benchmask coal price for NW Europe
plus a delivery premium {Awe Valley Markar or AYM |

As a guide to the possible outcome in respect of contractual commitments alene we have set out below the possible average
outturn in revenue, expressed in £ per Gigajoule {£/GJ} The actual sales price outcome will be dependent on inflation, the
actual outcome for API2, the volume of coal delivered in any year which 1s not currently contracted and a number of other factors
The table excludes the effect of uncontracted or fully floating optional coal and 1s not intended to be a forecast of the expected
overall reahised sales price

Indicative outcome of contractual commitments given varying market pricing

API 2 Assumptions

£/GJ wn 2012 m3 M4 2ms
£375 262 29% 254 252 249
£350 258 29 253 252 248
E325 254 286 253 252 z249
£300 249 279 252 252 249
£275 243 270 251 251 247
£2 50 235 157 246 246 245
£225 276 242 248 2486 245
£200 218 230 245 246 245

Although the number of Gigajoules per tonne delivered vanes by customer and mne, as a guide in 2010, the Group averaged
240 GJ/tonne

Lodge House surface mine

Rail ltnk at Thoreshy colliery, Nottinghamshire
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Review of Operations by Business: Mining

continued

Deep Mines
Our deep mines business consists of the operational mines at Daw Mitl {Warwickshire), Kellingley [Yorkshirg) and Tharesby
{Nattinghamshire) The mine at Welbeck ceased production in 2010 The key performance indicators for this business are

Key Parformance Indicaters {'KP1s’}

2010 2009
Coal mined {millicn tonnes) 58 57
Bevenue (£m) 73 2502
Qperating cost’ [Em) 2879 2910
Operating cost’ per tonne/per Grgajoule (E/tonne / £/GJ} 49 4/2.05 527221
Operating cost? (Em) 3209 3207
Operating cost? per tonne/per Gigajaule {£/tonne / £/GJ) 55.1/2.28 581/2 44
Loss hefore non-trading exceptional tems (Em} (416) {705)
Develapment driveage metres excluding Welbeck 13,166 18 540
Reserves and resources {ongomg mines — milhon tonnes) EL 98

' Qperating cost befara non trading exceptional 1tams and depreciation costs
? Operating cost after dapreciation bafore non trading excepticnal itams Deep mina costs and revenues includa those of the power cparation

Deep mining has a cost base that 1s largely fixed relative to production levels and therefore the KPls for the business focus on the
output tonnage achieved from this cost base Other indicators which highlight the likelihood of future production being achieved
are also momitored 1n particular the development metreage achieved being the investment in future coal panels As in other
businesses the realised sales price and the absolute costs of operating the business are also momtored

Colliery performance summary

Production Operating cost* Production
2010 2009 2010 2009 o 2m 012010
m tonnes m tonnes £million £ million m tonnas m tonnes
Deep mines
Daw Mull 26 29 108.7 1108 0?7 02
Kellingley 15 10 833 749 05 D3
Thoresby 15 08 769 595 04 02
Total ongoing deep mines production/costs
before stock movements 56 47 2689 2452 16 67
Welbeck 02 10 145 521 - 01
Total deep mines production/costs before
stock movements 58 57 2834 2973 16 08
Stock movements - - 45 (63) - -
Total deep mines 5.8 57 2879 2910 16 08

* Operat:ng cost bafore non trading exceptional items and depreciation with central costs absorbed

Duning the year deep mining incurred capital expenditure of £43 9 million of which £21 7 million and £8 1 million was in respect of
new face equipment at Kethngley and Thoresby respectively Around £16 O miltion of this expenditure 1s on deferred craditor terms

Qverall costs before stock movements fell by 4 7% The reduction in costs created by the closure of Welbeck was offset by
increased costs at Kellingley and Tharesby, where the treatment of development costs as operating costs i the year contrasted
to 2009 when development work related to the opening of the new seams and was capitatised

Development driveage

2010 2009
metres meues

Deep mines
Daw Mill 2,884 4191
Kellingley 5.763 6498
Thoresby 4,559 7851
Total excluding Welheck 13,166 18 540

Welbeck - 1242
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Daw Mill

As was reported in last year s accounts Daw Mill's current panel 32s suffered significant delay during wnstallation of the face
equipment due to poar ground conditions on the face line resulting in the face gap However since ramp up i May 2010 the face
has performed well with mine output in excess of 80 000 tonnes per week often betng achieved during the second half of 2010

To further improve the operationa! efficiencies at Daw Mtll the mine team has been working with consultants to analyse reasons
tor equipment failure This work has shown its worth through the improved equipment rehabihity and production consistency being
obtained by the embedding of preventative maintenance regimas across the mine coupled wath coaching of mine workers and
officials This project has now been transferred 10 Kellingley and the tmprovements made will also be implemented at Thoreshy

The face gap i early 2010 all too clearly evidenced the poor development position at Daw Mill and development progress in 2010
has also been unacceptable With the oniginal plan showing the next face required by July 2011, the mine was under considerable
pressure to bring this face, 303s, in on ume Whilst this work s shghtly behund plan we have also been examining the possibility
of mining the existing panel 32s, further than ongnally planned

The original stop hine for 32s was determined by a fault ine However further seismic information obtaimed in 2011 has determined
that 1t 1s possible to mine through this fault This permits the continuation of the current panel which reduces the risk of a face gap
n 2011 and relieves pressure an developments for subsequent faces

Although Daw Mills output from underground is normally of a very lugh yreld the ash content has vaned from ume to ume We are
in the process of installing an upgrade to the plant to be able to handle these impunities better

Kellingley
Kelngley commenced production i the new Beeston seam in March 2010 and the mine has performed well during most of 2010

The mine suffered from an underground methane fire which broke out in the waste behind the coal face in November The mine team
worked hard to recover the srtuation in a safe and professional manner Production recommenced in mud December although the
stoppage resulted in the loss of some 0 2 milhon tonnes of planned production

Developments have continued to progress well and the second face of the Beeston seam 502s, will be ready for ramp up ahead of
when it1s required inmid May 2011 with development to access 503s making good progress

Thoresby

Thoresby also made a smooth {ransition to 1ts new seam in the Deep Soft at the start of 2010 Wath the investment in new face
equipmentand seams production levels were significantly up on 2009 at 15 mullion tennes {2009 0 8 million tonnes} Developments
were sufficiently well advanced in 2010 to permit the operation of two faces which sgnificantly assisted in rehability and
predictabihty of mine output albeit at some additional cost

Developments have continued to progress well with the second face of the Deep Softseam DS2s developed ahead of plan
with the face equipment now being installed eight weeks ahead of the requirement to replace DS1s which 1s expected to finish
praduction in July 2011

There 15 always a large amount of dirt in the output from underground at Thoresby, given that we are mining two seams with an
inter-seam dirtband The coal preparatton plant has been unable to cope with the level and type of dirt baing produced in the Deep
Soft seam, despite addittonal investment in 2010, and this has led to an increase n the unprocessed stocks above ground to around
400k tonnes We are currently investing in an additronal barrel plant to address this

Woelbeck
Welbeck mmned 11s final coal during May 2010 After closure equipment salvage has been undertaken, the shafts have been filled
and surface buldings demohished

Harworth
We estimate our Harworth mine has some 54 milkon tonnes of resources and mmeral potential We are looking to explore means
by which this opporturaty could be undertaken to take advaniage of the strong market for coal

Exceptional costs of £17 million {2005 £3 5 milhon} were incurred duning the year in the care and maintgnance of the mine Itis
anticipated that this charge will be further reduced during 2011 as the level of care and maintenance required 15 reduced further
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Review of Operations by Business: Mining

continued

Reserves and Resources
The reserves and resources available in the deep mine operations are critical to the long-term prospects of the Group

We estimate that we have approximately 97 midlion tonnes of reserves and resources at our angoing mines of which 39 miilion
tonnes of coal 15 accessible under the existing five year mimng and investment plans The additional resources will become
accessible beyond this imeframe with investment requrred as necessary

Following changes to the mining plans, cur available reserves and resources across all mines have not changed significantly since
last yaar despite the output for the year at each mine Qur estimates as at December 2010 of our deep mine coal reserves are set out
in the followang table

Total
reserves
and Mineral
Reserves Resources resources potential Total
Ongong colliery mtionnes mfonnes mtionnes  mtonnes  m tonnes
Daw Mill 20 2 22 a1 63
Kelliingley 9 45 54 7 B1
Thoreshy 10 1 21 5 26
2010 Total 39 58 97 53 150
2009 Total 39 59 98 51 149
Reserve Reserves which are accessible using the broad infrastructure in place at the current time and which are in the
current five year mining plan
Resource Reserves which may require substantial development and other costs to allow accessibiity and are not

currently in the five year mining plan

Mimneral potential Coal that has been assessed (although possibly not to the same extent as Reserve and Resource coal) but for
which UK Coal does not have any licences or planning permission to extract the deposits

These figures must be treated with caution, being based on the Group s best estmates at the current ttime A number of factors may
cause the actual production to vary significantly from these estimates These factors include, but are not imited to

¢ Ongoing seismic surveying of reserves — this could result in either an increase or a decrease to the production estimates

¢ (Geological problems — despite the improved seismic surveying being carrned out there ramains a nisk that a coal panel 1s subject
to unjoreseen geological problems which introduce productien difficulties

¢ Sales price of future coal and cost increases — these could render preduction plans uneconomic or could allow extraction from
areas previously believed to be unviable or

* Production requirements — the need to mantain continuous production can lead to early commencement of a new face with
coat consequently being left unmined

The information above 1s prepared based on guidelines 1ssued by the Institution of Mining and Metallurgy in 1991 thereafter
incorporated into the hsting regulations of the London Stock Exchange

All reserves are ‘mineable coal reserves and are based on in-situ coal sections Mining and geological losses are taken into account
but without the effects of processing 1t s our intention in the future to report our reserves and resources in accordance with the
cntena for internationally recognised reserve and resource categories of the 'Australastan Code for Reporting Mineral Resources
and Ore Reserves published by the Joint Ore Reserves Committee { JORC'} of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy
Austrahan Institute of Geoscientists and the Minerals Councit of Australia (the JORC Code }
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Surface Mines

The Surface Mining business had a much improved year with an increase in output in 2010 to 14 mulhen tonnes as compared

to 1 3 million tonnes in 2009 Three new surface mines commenced operations during the second half of 2010 at Pot!and Burn
{Northumberland) Park Wall North (Co Durham} and Huntington Lane {Shropstire} This took the number of operational sites

to six at the year end {2009 four)

Following a review of our Blair House Surface Mine in Fife Scotland the decision was made to dispose of the site

Key Parformanca Indicators {'KPls’]

2010 2003
Coal mmned {(million tonnes}) 14 13
Revenue (Fm) 661 600
Operating cost’ (Em} 637 558
Operating cost' per tonne/per Gigajoule (E/torne / £/GJ} BINN 395175
Operating cost? (Em) 657 581
Operating cast? per tonne/per Gigajoule {€/tonae / £/GJ) 46.51 97 411/182
Operating profit before nen-trading exceptional items {£m) 04 19
Restosation spend {Em} 116 212
Sites with consent? {number) 7 6
Reserves on sites with planning consent (milhion tannes) 53 58

' Betore depreciation and excluding ron trading exceptional tems
2 Atter depreciation but excluding non trading exceptional rtems
1 Includes sites where planning committee appreval has been obtained and formal cansent 1s pending

Surface mines operations have a mare variable cost base than deep mines Surface mine operating costs stated above are after
charging amortisation of mine development and restoration assets The site by site cost per GJ will vary according to the nature of
gach site The costs of planning gains and the coal yield at each site along with variations associated 1o operating cost, efficiencies
and weather make year to year direct comparisons difficult

The surface mine costs increased during the year to £1 91/GJ (2009 £175/GJ) reflecung the mix of operating sites, with relativety
higher production volumes from the higher cast sites at Cutacre and Steadsburn which are planned to complete coaling in spring
20Mm

During 2011 both Steadsburn and Cutacre sttes will enter restoration whilst the Butterwell DP site (Northumberland), for which a
resolution to grant planning permission was passed in December 2010 1s planned to commence coal production in the second half
of the year In addition we are hopeful that an extension ta our Lodge House site will be granted planning permission in the first
half of the year allow:ng continued coal production throughout 2011

Lodge House, Derbyshire

Cutacre, near Bolton, will fimish coaling during 2011
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Review of Operations by Business: Mining

continued

Reserves and Planning

We estimate that we have surface mine reserves, where the Group controls the majonity of a site through ownership and working
rnights agreements totalling 16 5 million tonnes of which 10 Q million tennes relate to sites that are currently operational or in the

short-term plan with the remainder in the medium-term plan Planning consent (or commtiee approval) has been received to date
for 5 3 milion tonnes of the 10 G milllon tonnes

A summary of estimated remaining reserves at December 2010 through the vanous stages of planming 15 set out in the table below

Sites with Applications

planning consent submtted for

{or committee planning, dacisian

approval) awanted

m tonnas m tonnes

Cutacre 01 -
Steadsburn 01 _
Lodge House nz -
Park Wall North 12 -
Potland Burn 19 -
Huntington Lare 08 -
Butterwell 10 -
Bradtey (subject to appeal} - 05
Minorca - 12
Lodge House extension - 08
Hoodsclose - 22
Total reserves n process 2010 53 47
Total reserves in pracess 2009 58 27

In additon using the same basis as above rescurces of 25 8 million tannes have been estimated at sites for which additional
geological and planming wark 1s required to confirm with a reasonable level of certainty the tannage available to mine ln some
cases third party landowner agreements may be required to access some of this coal

Following the sale of some of our land holdings in 2010, part of which had unviable coal reserves we now estimate that we have i
total reserves and resources of over 40 millien tonnes {2009 over 50 million tonnes) This tennage will be subject to receiving

planming consent and therefore caution should be exercised as to how much reserves will be ultimately recoverable Qur business

plan aims to dehver, within two years, between two and three million tonnes of coal per annum for the medium-term

We also estimate that we have the potential to access a further 33 7 milhon tonnes To be more certain about our ability to extract
all this coal the Group n most instances will need to acquire further control over the sites and to undertake a significant amount
of geclogical and planning work The outcome of these actions could matenially change the coal available for extraction

During the year consent was granted for the Buiterwell DP site which will commence production in the second half of 2011

Although we have been successful in the previous 13 applications the planning environment for surface mees remains challenging
as was demonstrated by the recent refusal of our Bradley site Despite having been recommended by the Planmng Officer the
Planning Committee voted against the scheme We have commenced action to appeal this decision as the scheme meets all the
stated planning critena

We are encouraged by the recent budget announcement that will aid the planning process by including a presumption in favour of '
sustainable developments by ensuring the planning system does everything it can to support growth and jobs, which we believe
1s delivered by our surface mine schemes

We expect durning 2011 to submit planming applications far four sites and an extension ta an existing site equivalent to 7 6 milhon
tonnes of coal
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Review of Operations by Business: Harworth Estates

Qur property division Harworth Estates produced a loss of £33 1 milhon (2009 £24 5 millon loss) including a loss on investment
properties of £34 7 milhon (2009 £25 7 milhen loss) of which £34 2 milion was unrealksed (2009 £25 7 million) A revaluauon gan of
£1 2 million was taken directly to reserves {2009 £52,000} being the gains recogmsed on former operating properties transferred to
investment property status on their ceasing to be operattonal sites We also disposed of an operating property which reahised a gain
of £62 500 (2009 £ml)

While we continued to pragress promotion and strategic planning across our portfolio 2010 was predominately focussed on realising
cash from our surplus agnicultural partfolio in order to reduce bank borrowing

Key Performance Indicators {"KPIs )

2010 2009

£ mllion £ million

BICS valuatiens of the property portfolio 1389 3938
Disposals

Contracts exchanged in year* (net proceeds) 244 85

Cash received in the year 27 85

“Excludes a sale with net proceeds of £1 9 million which was exchanged conditionally during 2010 for which the condivions will be sansfied during 2011

Harworth Estates manages approximately 15,300 hectares [37 900 acres) of freehold tand predominately in England on behalf
of various Group companies The majenty of the partfolio 1s located on the A1/M1 cornder from Leicestershure to Northumberland
There are, in addition, a small number of sites In Scotland North West England and North Wales

Planning

During the course of 2010 Harworth Estates centinued i1ts full planning activittes with a view 10 ensuring that it maintains a
healthy pipehine of future sites which can either be offered into the market for sale, or developed out through appropriate delivery
mechanisms to maximise and realise shareholder value, as market conditrlons imprave White the focus of our planning team this
year has been on progressing existing apphications through the planning system we have submitted a hmeted number of new
apphications dunng the year as shown below

Residential Commercial
homes sq ft sqm
Applications in system at December 200% 5857 3502 805 325
Submutied in year 48 894 000 83053
Consented in year - - -~
Applications in system at December 2010 51905 4 396 805 408 464
% increase in year 1% 26% 26%

tn January 2010 we received Planming Commuittee resolution to grant consent at Waverley in respect of two applications These
are for a new community of 3 890 homes including 15,000 sq m {165,000 sq ft} of associated leisure, retail and community use

and a change of use on the Highfield Commercial area to allow a Government campus development of 60,000 sq m {645 000 sq ft)
B1 offices and a hotel and ancillary retail/leisure facilities of 4 500 sq m (48 000 sq ft) Planning permission for both developments
has subsequently been received In early December 2010 we recerved a Planning Committee resolution to grant consent in respect
of our Harworth apphication comprising a mixed use scheme of 396 residential uruts 2 044 sq m {22 600 sq ft) of food retail and
76,645 sq m (825 Q00 sq ft} of employment space

Disposals

Disposals dunng the year secured gross receipts of £26 0 milhon from the sale of 2 260 hectares {5 600 acres) of maimly agricuttural
land and asscciated properties as part of our debt reduction programme The net proceeds after costs and related land purchases
of £24 4 milhon produced a small loss on disposal of £0 5 milhon, with £22 7 milhon of the net proceeds received i 2010 and the
balance to be received in 2011 The net proceeds received were used to repay bank debt within the Group We also exchanged
conditionally on a further sale at the end of the year with net proceeds of £1 8 million which we expect to receive in 2011

In order to reduce borrawing further we are marketing further surplus agricultural land and certain commercial sites for
sate in 2011
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Review of Operations by Business: Harworth Estates

continued

Valuations

The 2010 land disposats pragramme resulted tn prices which
remforced the values placed on our agricuftural partfoho

which showed a medest increase of 0 4% on a hke-for-like basis
from 2009 Qur ‘part or fully develeped out’ incame yielding
commercial land mamtaimed its value with occupancy and

rental levels holding up despite the difficelt economic conditions
facing businesses However 2110 cantinued to be a difficult
environment for our undeveloped land portfoho and our in
development’ commercial land which together showed a decline
of 14 6% on a like-for like basis While we saw some decreases
on certan commercial sites the reduction was predominately
dniven by lower valuations on our long-term residential sites,
where land values remain under pressure from both a house
builder demand perspective, and from fonger than forecast

build out peniods as house buyer confidence remains fragile

A full mdependent valuation of our property portfolio was
undertaken as at December 2010 in accordance with appraisal
and valuation standards pubhshed by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors { RICS')

As previgusly different valuauon firms are engaged dependent
on type and geographical location of the property bewng valued
BNP Panibas Real Estate value all the Group s commercial
residential and development sites Smiths Gore value the
majority of the agncultural portfolic while Bell Ingram value
our agricultural properties in the north of England and Scatland
These are the same firms used to value the portfolio as at the
last year end

The commercial and residential land contaimed within the

BNP Paribas valuation has been valued in a market with very
little comparable evidence available in accordance with RICS
‘Red Book’ guidance therefore the valuers made the followng

statement this year which 1s consistent with a significant
number of other declarations made on portfolios throughout
the country

Our valuation s on the basis of market value This Is an
internationally recogrised basis and 1s defined as

“The esumated amount for which a property should
exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller n an arm s length transaction after
proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably prudently and without compulsion *

This basis of valuatien 1s accepted as meeting the critena
for assessing fair value’ under Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards International Accounting Standard 16
requires that the fair value of land and buildings 1s usually
determined from market based evidence that 1s evidence
denved from sates comparison This s the approach we
have generally adopted However where the property
assets are of such a size or a nature that there 15 no direct
evidence of sales to form a basis of companisen, we have
had regard to residual development appraisals in part
nformed by gross development values derived from sales
comparison

As a consequence on account of the sensitivity of the
market value to the detail of any future planning consent
and the potential for matenal vanance in the actuahty of
development costs, as compared with our own estimates
together with the subjective nature of hope value we must
state that our valuation (consistent with the guidance of
the Red Book}, 15 subject to materntal uncertainty

Riccall business park, North Yorkshire

AMP, Waverley, South Yorkshire
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The Harworth Estates portfolio RICS valuation at the year end s summansed in the table below

December
December December 2008
2010 2009  like for-hke
£ mullion £ million E milhon %
Agricultural
Retasmned for surface mining 548 33475 25135 1%
Mixed 60,363 77,824 61009 {1 11%
Low grade 6108 5472 5414 128%
91,889 116771 91 558 04%
Undeveloped land
With planning 42,750 56 820 55 875 123 5)% !
Apphication submitted N0 73 550 78 519 {93)%
Without planning 63,763 B0 354 70 393 {94)%
171,763 210724 204 787 (13 21%
Commercial land with rental income
Part or fully developed 28585 28750 28 808 ?8)%
In development 16,000 21,750 22058 {27 5)%
44,585 50 500 50 866 {123)%
Investment propertes at valuation 314297 377,995 34rm 95}%
Operational
Potential development 13,036 7536 131587 12)%
Agneultural 5097 1298 5113 8 3)%
Other 6,500 7000 6 337 26%
Operational properties at valuation 24,633 15 834 24 647 {0 1)%
Total properties at valuatian 338,870 393 829 371858 {831%

The like-for like percentage change from December 2009
comparatives are after property reclassification and take
into account adjustments for asset sales with a book value
of £24 1 million and purchases development expenditure
and depreciation of £2 4 million

Active surface mine sites are included i the value above based
on their restored land value of £24 6 million (2009 £15 8 milhon)
For so{ong as sites, otherwise being held for their long-term
investment potential are being used by the Group for 1ts mining
and other activities these properties are recorded at cost less
impairment and changes 1n valuations are not reflected n the
balance sheet As at December 2010, a total of £51 million
(2009 £5 1 million) has not been included in the balance sheet
as a result Operating deep mine sites are not included n the
above valuation

Development and Market Conditions

The property marketremained fragile during 2010 with very Iittle
transactional volume While our income yeelding commercial and
agneultural portfolio remained stable in value terms conditions
in the residential and commercial development environment
remained difficult We continue te remain cautious about the
short-term and as such ke many other major land owners

and developers, we are continuing to restrict expenditure on
infrastructure and are not undertaking specu'ative construction
As reported last year we have maintained full scale planning
application and associated activities and will continue to do

so throughout 2011 under our new structure which will focus
efforts and spend on those projects where we see the best
opporturity to increase and reahise value n the shert to
medim-term
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Review of Operations by Business: Harworth Estates

continued

Internal Structure

As mentioned 1n our Intenm Report last year Owen Michaelson
took over as Managing Director of the Property Division in
August 2010 Following his appointment the property business
has been divided into the folfowing key areas

.

Strategic Land,

Natural Resources

Business Parks {inciuding consenied land}
Major Projects

Agricultural and

Harworth Power

These are outhned in turn below

Strategre Land — This team will focus anincreasing the value of
the strategic land portfolio by actively promoting development
We have seen continued progress at the following key sites

Rossington Dencaster — Ongoing pramotion of up to 1 200
homes through Doncaster s Local Development Framewaork

Harworth, South Yorkshire — Planning Committee
Resolution to grant consent was secured in December 2010
for redevelopment of the former mine site including 996
homes, 2,044 sq m (22,000 sq ft) of retall and 76 645 sqm
{825 000 sq ft) of employment space

Coatville, Leicestershire = We have worked with
netghbouring landowners and the local Council to enable
around 44 5 hectares (110 acres) of residential development
land to be identified within the Council s new development
planas part of an urban extension to Coalville

Aufford Nottinghamshire — A final decision following the
conclusion of a Public Inguiry 15 expected in May 2011 on
an apphcation made by Veolia to build own and operate an
Erergy Recovery Facility en this land Alongside this our
parallel applicatton for a 24 hectare {60 acre) business park
on adjacent land 1s expected to be determined in late
summer 2011

North Gawber, Bamsley - A Pubhic Inguiry will hear our
appeal in May 2011 against a planning refusal by Barnsley
Council for an application for 400 homes

Ellington and lynemouth Northumberland —Two planming
applications for residential and employment development
are expected 0 be determined in summer 2011

Natural Resaurces — This team has been formed to progress
areas of commercial opportunity relating mainly te low tarbon
energy and mineral resources within the property portfohio
This includes the following

Wind Power Schemes —We continue to pursue planning
consent to install wind turbines at a number of our sites
both under the Peel Wind Power Collaboration Agreement
and with other third parties

Waste to Energy Schemes —We recognise the commercial
opportunities that exist within this high vatue market

In order to access appropriate and relevant expertise in
this field, detailed dscussions and negotiation with Peel
Environmental have continued which we expect to resultin
the Group establishing a jaint venture with the Peel Group
UK Coal s largest sharehalder This jaint venture would
review the opportumties for, and seek planning permssion
to develop waste io energy schemes ap up to 11 properties
within the Group s property portfolio On the basis thatit
would be a related party transaction under the UKLA's
Listing Rules any joint venture would require shareholder
approval

Gnd Connections - The value of the Group s grid connections
have attracted interest from a number of partners offering
peak power connectivity to allow generation to be made
under STOR' contracts with the National Gnid to give them
access to additional power to manage short-term periods
of unusually high demand The location of gred connections
on previously developed land ensures that these sites
have an advantage over gther competing sites for solar
developments Jomntventure arrangements are at an
advanced stage wiith parties over peak power while

we continue to explore solar opportunities

It 15 estimated that there could be over 100 megawatts

of connectivity for peak power users on an initial batch of
13 sites Solar projects are beng investigated by developers
who have an interestin bringing forward schemes which
vary in size between 50 kilowatts and 5 megawatts which
would uttise our sites grid connectivity However the
Government § recent review of feed in tanffs will have a
nagative impact on the development of sclar schemes above
50 kilowatts and we will continue to review our projects

in light of this

Mines Gas — An opaion agreement has been signed with
Alkane who ntend to promote a mines gas recovery scheme
at Gedhng Cotliery as part of our proposed residential
development of up to 1100 houses The Alkane agreement
would allow electntity to be generated on site to make the
wider development much more sustainable Alkane propose
ta submit a planning apphcation for this scheme in the near
future which would produce an estimated 7 5 megawatts
per hour of electricity over a period of up to 25 years




Business Parks (including cansented empioyment land) -
This team 1s primarily responsible for maximising returns from
the income yielding part of the estate and reahsing value from
those commercial sites which have the benefit of a planning
consent

Business Parks

Interest i the established business parks of Asfordby,
Whitemoor and Riccall has remained strong throughout 2010
despite the continued depressed economic cimate Occupancy
rates of 72% 67% and 53% respecuvely have been maintained
during the year Flexible terms have been the key 1o securing
new tenants and retaining existing ones Interest i Bilsthorpe
Business Park has remained good with current octupancy levels
of 45% being mamtained and negotiations for letting a further
unit continue which would take occupancy levels to 95%

Active asset management has again been the main priority

in 2010 and we have seen continued success in both lease
renewals and rent reviews Additionally the need to modermise
property management systems has been identified and 2 move
towards implementing best practice procedures mcluding
implementing a fair and reasonable’ service charge regime and
improved utility cost recavery has been instigated Additional
income sources have also been identified and initiated

Advanced Manufactunng Park [AMF, mcluding our Evolution
Park development), Waverley, South Yorkshire

The AMP conststs of a part built out serviced employment
campus having approxsmately 23 hectares (57 acres) of
remaining developable land Letting of the available
accommodation on our fully budlt out Evelution Park (an

8700 sq m {94 000 sq ft} hybnd industnal development joint
venture with Strategic Sites Limited), has continued with ning
units [61 000 sq ft} accupied {four umts (19 000 sq ft} under
offer leaving only one umit {13 500 sq ft} vacant

Gascoigne Wood Selby Yorkshire

Lambert Smith Hampton and Cushman Wakefield have been
appointed to market this 66 hectare (165 acre) rail connected
site Short-term agreements with DB Schenker (formerly EWS}
and British Gypsum which make use of the rait sidings and
20,400 sq m {220 000 sq ft) of covered storage yard are being
renewed and negotiations for the occupation of a further 2,000
sqm {21500 sq ft} continue Detailed discussions are underway
with a numbrer of parties who wash to have a long-term interest
In the site, making use of the high quality East Coast Mainline
rail access and substantial power cennectivity

G Park Distnbution Deveiopment, Lounge, Ashby de la Zouch,
Lercestershire

The agreement with Gazeley over the 79,000 sgm
(850,000 sq ft} development site has been extended while
an existing planning application submitted by Gazeley 15
betng considered
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Major Projects — This divistonis focussed on delivering
maximum value from our principal consented mixed use
development sites This includes

Waverley Mixed Use Scheme off Sheffield Parkway

J33 M1 South Yorkshire

This scheme comprises two main elements, the New Community
and Highfield Commercial

Waverley New Community has planming consent for 3 830 new
homes and around 15,000 sq m {161,000 sq ft} of associated
leisure retail and community uses Subject to market conditions,
delery of this project will commence through a senes of
phased sales with national house builders

Highfield Commercial Business Park 1s being jointly promoted
with Helical Governetz to develop a 60 000 sg m {645 D00 sq ft)
Government Qffice Campus plus a 4 000 sq m {43 000 sq ft)
hotel and 500 sq m {5,375 sq ft) ancilary retail and feisure
facilities

Baleycross Mixed Use Scheme, Pontefract, West Yorkshire
{formerly known as Prince of Wales)

We are currently exploring the most appropriate structure to
deliver value from the planning cansent already received for
917 residential units and 24 250 sq m (261 000 sq ft} of office
retall and community use The most hkely structure will include
phased sales and 15 expected to commence in 2012 Supported
by Wakefield Metropohtan Council Harworth Estates have
submitted a Regional Growth Fund Bid seeking funding
assistance towards enabling infrastructure

Yorksture Main, Edhngton, Doncaster, South Yorkshire

Qutline planning consent was granted for a mixed use
regeneration scheme at the Yorkshire Main site during the
year The apphcation compnises 250 residential units together
with 13 900 sq m {150 000 sq ft) of employment space

Agricultural - This portfoho 1s spht between land that will be
retained for future surface mining and any surplus which will
be disposed of in due course

Harworth Power —Harworth Estates will also assume
management control of Harworth Power going forward We
will look to maximise generation returns through increasing
the utilisation of gur capacity across all sites and to maximise
generation at times when whaolesale prices are most
advantageous
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The mining results reflect the transition taking place from a business which i 2009 was based on four deep mines {three of

which were miming remnants of old seams}, supported by surface mines supplying a substantial portion of its cutput under legacy
contracts By the end of 2010, the business was based on three deep mines each with better quahity reserves, still supported by
surface mines and with just 2 7 millton tonnes of legacy contracts remaining to be delivered, predominantly in 2011

In 2010 Kellingley and Thoresby started to produce coal in their new seams with the mcreased output resulting in a more
commercial cost per tonne and with the closure of Welbeck reducing absolute total costs Despite the major setback at Daw Mill
costs per tonne sold from deep mines feil from £58 1/tonne in 2009 to £55 1/tonne in 2010

We supplied 4 1 millicn tennes of coal under the legacy cantracts in 2010 leaving 2 7 millien tonnes to deliver the majonty of which
will be dehvered in 2011 with a consequential increase in deliveries under the new contracts we put in place in 2009

Group revenues have nisen in the year to £351 2 million from £316 0 million 1n 2009 This has been achieved bath through hugher
sales volumes and higher realised sales prices The increase in sales volume has ansen from the improved praduction performance
n the year despite the Daw Mill face gap The impravement in the average realised sales price has been achieved as the newer
coal supply contracts with our customers helped us to mave towards a more profitable portfolio of contracts enabling us to better
access the strong market price present throughout the year As a resuft we have achieved an average sales price per Gigajoule of
£197/GJ compared to the £1 87/GJ realised in 2008

Property disposals dunng the year realised net proceeds of £24 4 milhon, £22 7 milhon of which was received in the year, and
resulted in a small loss of £0 Smillion The balance, together with £1 9 mullien of net proceeds frem a sale conditionally exchanged
during the year, 1s to be received in 2011 The net proceeds have been used ta reduce Group debt The loss on revaluation of the
investment groperties in the year was £34 2 milion (2009 £25 7 mulhon)

Overall the Group loss before tax of £124 6 million 1s £4 5 million lower than the loss of £1291 mullion of 2009 There was an
improvement in the year in the operating loss before non-trading exceptional items which at £74 3 million was £18 8 million
better than the previous year This improvement was achieved despite a higher loss on revaluation of investment properties
of £34 2 mithan compared to a loss of £25 7 mithon in 2009

There have been non-trading exceptional 1tems during the year resufting in a charge of £13 1 million in the period (2009
£13 1 milhen} The charges/credits in the current year included

* Restructuring, recrganisation and refinancing costs
Costs of £12 3 mulhon were incurred i relation to the restructuning and reorganisation of the business Of these £6 6 million
related to professional fees incurred m relation to refinancing £4 9 million related to professional costs incurred i the vear
on the exercise undertaken to regrganise the operations in our deep mines, and £0 9 million on redundancy and other costs

+ Costsinrelation to Harworth mine
Costs of £1 7 miflion {2009 £3 5 million) have been angurred n the care and maintenance of the Harworth mine which
15 currently mothballed The costs were higher in 2009 as exploration costs were incurred at the start of that year to prove
Its coal reserves

+ Pensten scheme curtailment
There has been a curtaitment gain of £1 0 million reflecting the reduction i the pension scheme deficit as the relevant
members ceased to be active members following current and prior year redundancies

The operating loss after these non-trading exceptional items for 2010 was £87 4 million compared with a loss of £106 2 milhon
1 2009

Financing Expenses

Net finance expenses in the year {excluding exceptional finance costs} increased to £27 4 million {2009 £24 6 milon] The mterest
charge on generator loans and prepayments in the year increased to £8 6 million (2009 £4 0 million) as we drew down on these
facihities At the same time other non-exceptional finance costs fell, in particular with the expiry of interest rate swaps and with
the benefit of the exceptional write off of bank finance arrangement fees

The Group had cash deposits held by our captive insurance company aganst insurance claims and similarly ring-fenced funds held
on behalf of the Coal Authonity seturing surface damage claims resulting from mining These totalled £15 7 mitton and £8 8 millon
respectively at December 2010 {2009 £19 1 mihon and £8 7 milbion) In addition to the ning-fenced funds held on behalf of the
Coal Autherity a £10 million bond 1s held by the Coal Authority as further security against any posstble surface damage claims
These deposits were secured against hizbilities as at December 2010 of £13 0 mithon and £15 4 mitlion respectively




UKCOALPLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010 23

Exceptional Finance Costs

Following the Group's refinancing in April 2010 as outlined in last year’s Annual Report and in the 201G Intenim Report earlier in the
year previously capitalised bank arrangement fees of £2 7 million were wnitten of f together with an estimated £5 0 million of new
arrangement fees mcurred in respect of the renegouated facihties The ultimate cost of the new facility fees 15 dependent on the
value of land sales achieved in the period to July 2011 A simidar level and structure of bank arrangement fees has been incurred in
respect of the Apnl 2011 extension of the facilities

Furthermore the fair value of the related interest rate swaps of £2 Z millon which had previously been hedge accounted was
recycled from reserves to the income statement on the extingwshment of the associated loans The combined value of these items
of £9 9 milhon has been classified as an exceptional finance cost

Tax
The Group paid no corporation tax in 2010{2009 £ml} although there was a tax charge for the year of £0 5 miltion (2009 credit
of £1 5 milhon) which related to deferred tax as outhned below

At December 2010, the Group had gross trading losses of £312 0 million {2003 £248 9 million} and gross tming differences of
£195 0 million, ansing largely from unclaimed or disclaimed capital altowances (2009 £166 0 million}, both of which are available
to offset against future profits in the mining business The trading losses alone had a tax value of £84 2 million at a tax rate of
27% (2009 £69 7 million at 28%) while the gross tirming differences had a tax value of £52 7 million at a 27% tax rate (2005
£46 4 milion at 28%) Both of these have increased duning the year due to the trading result for the year Capital allowances
have been disclaimed where possible to allow flexibility for the future

The net deficit on the balance sheet in respect of retirement provisions represents an additional tax uming difference of
£46 4 million at a tax rate of 27% {2009 £61 8 million at 28%)

The Group had recogmsed a deferred tax asset of £34 5 milion at December 2010 {2009 £35 8 milhon) The Group continues

to review 1ts deferred tax asset given the nature of the business and its historic performance The charge i the year arose due

to a combination of a change in the rate at which deferred tax 1s provided from 28% at the end of 2008 te 27% i kne with the
farthconung eonfirmed reduction in the rate of corparation tax and adjustments in relation te prior year s deferred tax balances
The impact of the rate change on the opening deferred tax asset was a charge of £0 9milhion (2009 £ml}in the income statement
and a charge of £0 3 million {2009 £nil) dwect to reserves and the adjustment on prior year deferred tax balances was £0 9 million
This was offset by a credit of £1 3 million (2009 £0 9 million) for deferred tax on the amortisation {out of the hedging reserve) of
previously effective hedge accounting movements

Coal stocks at Thorseby colliery, Nottinghamshire
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The Group has around £380 milhon of capital losses which can be offset against profits ansing on disposals of properties which
were held by the Group in 2002 These capital losses are sufficient to offset the vast majonty of the deferred tax bability which
would otherwise be required in respect of the investment properttes leaving a small deferred tax hability which has been recogmised
in the financial statements of £1 3 million (2009 £0 4 mullion}

Loss Per Share
Loss per share for the period was 41 8 pence (2009 72 9 pence)

Funding

During the year the Group continued to benefit fram the contractual arrangements entered into with 1ts generator customers
at the end of 2008/early 2009 These have had the benefit of increasing cashflows to the Group in 2010 by £25 8 million
{2009 £63 6 million} interest on the outstanding amounts of £11 7 mithon {2009 £4 0 million) has been accrued

The impact on our cashflows due to net repayment commitments for these generator loans and repayments is as follows

£ million 201 2012 2n3 2014 2015

Net cash outfiow 132} {48} {17) 17} {9}

At the year end the Group had around £155 million of bank facilities and a further £13 million outstanding undet finance leases

The Group is continuing with its project to dispose of surplus properties with property dispasal proceeds being used to
reduce 1ts bank facilities as and when recewed During the year around £23 million of net proceeds have been used in this
way Excluding the impact of future property chsposals the weighted average maturity of the facilities, as at December 2010
was 14 years (2009 2 3 years)

Since the year end we have renewed and extended our banking facitties with the following changes

» Lloyds Banking Group has agreed to replace GE Capital in respect of approximately one third of the RCF line Lloyd 3 Banking
Group (s now the sole bank on this line

* Anextension to the maturity of the RCF the additicnal revolving credit ling, the Harworth Estates (Agriculwral Land) Limited
facihity and the EQS Inc Ltd facility to the end of July 2012 have all been agreed, and

» The financial profile of the Harworth Estates {Waverley Prince] Limited term loan facility was modified so that interest which
had been rolled up inta the loan during 2010 and which was due to be paid in July 2011 will now be pard in July 2012 together
with repayment of principal of £22 million Thereafter amortisation of the loan will continue at £2 5 miflion per quarter until
final repayment in July 2013

Over and above these extended bank facihities, we have extended the term of a further £10mitlron of unsecured stand-by facility
from Peel Haldings which 1s available for drawing in the event that the ACF and additional revolving credit ines are fully drawn
Thus facility has also been extended to mature at the end of July 2012

Following the changes a summary of our principal current bank facilities 1s shown below

Faeility Margin

E million over LIBOR Maturity
RCF 4512 300-467 bps® July 2012
Additional revolving facility upto 20 1600bps Juty 2012
Harworth Estates (Agricultural Land} Limited facility 29 400bps July 2012
Harworth Estates {Waverley Prince) Limited facility 44 750bps July 2013
EOS Inc Ltd facility 22 300bps July 2012
Total up 10 160

! Facility reduces as proceeds from property sales up to July 2012 are applied
Reducing toc £30 mithon by £1 million per month from Apnt 2011
! Margun dependent on lavel of ¢ facihty

The above table excludes fully drawn finance leases and other smali bank loans which totalled some £13 mdlion and £2 miltion
respectively at December 2010 and the Peel Holdings loan facilhity noted above
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Movement in Group Net Debt

2010 2009
E million £ million
Operating loss befare non-trading exceptionals {74.3} (931)
Revaluation of property 32 %7
Profit/loss on sale of fixed assets and (nvestment properties 03 02)
Depreciattan/dimenution 352 328
Non trading exceptionals {131} {131)
Non cash movement in mining provisions 52 139
Praofit on sale of jeint venture - (6 5)
Working capital t 66
Finance costs/interest payments {including 1oan arrangement fees) {12.2} {16 8)
Other movements 23 42
{235} {46 5)
Deep mines
Capital experditure — cash {26 8} 532)
Capital expenditure — new finance leases 17 172}
Payments agamst provisions 131} 91
Fixed asset disposal proceeds 03 G4
{413} (a1}
Surface mines
Amortisatton of restoration assets 120 00
Pre-coaling expenditure (5.4} (39)
Deferred strspping adjustment (3.0 (16)
Restoratign payments (11 6) {212)
(6.0} (167
Harwaorth Estates
Net proceeds of sales of properties 27 85
Planning and development expenditure {2.1) {81)
206 04
Pension deficit payments {5.8) 83)
Net movement i restricted funds i3 10
Praceeds from sale of joint venture - 87
Generator loans 58 636
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 997
{26 9) 228

The total increase in net debt in the year was £26 9 million (2009 reduction of £22 8 million)

The Graup has cantinued to invest sigmificantly in the busmess in the year A total of £44 7 milion was invesied in the mining
business on fixed assets, largely in completing the vestments at Kellingley and Thoresby of which £26 8 million resulted in
cash payments in the year and the rest was on deferred terms or under finance leases This was tower than the £70 4 million

1n 2008 {including £17 2 milion under finance leases) which again included the large nvestments in the new seams at Kellingley
and Thoresby

A further £5 4 million has been spent on pre-coahing expenses in opening up the three new surface mines in the year {2009
£3 9 mithon) and £2 1 milion {2009 £8 1 mulhan} on costs associated with gaiming and fulfiling planning consents on vestment
properties

Our ongoing project o dispose of surplus property assets has realised £22 3 milhon of net sales proceeds from investment
properties (2009 £8 5 milion)in 2610 and & further £0 4 million from operating properties (2009 £mil) These proceeds have
been applied against bank borrowings in the year The cash used in the business has been further offset by the cash benefits
ot £25 8 million {2009 £63 6 milkon]) ansing from the supply contracts with our generator customers renegetiated in 2008/
early 2009
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Balance Sheet

The net assets of the Group at December 2010 were £81 4 million compared te £152 8 miflion in 2009 The decrease in net assets
15 dug to the trading loss for the year of £1251 mulhon (2009 £127 5 millign) offset by a decrease in the deficit on retirement
obligations of £49 2 milhion (2009 sncrease of £116 8 mullion) which 1s discussed below

Provisions

2010 2009
£ million £ miflign
{iy  Emplayer and public hatnlities 130 162
Surface damage 154 132
{u}  Restoration and closure costs of surface mines 516 393

{tm}  Hestoration and closure costs of deep mines
—shaft treatment and pit top 99 103
- spoil heaps 29 29
— pumping costs 28 54
Ground/groundwater contamination 63 53
{iv} Aedundancy a2 g1
1051 107

(1) Employer and public habilities and surface damage provisions

Prowisions are made for current and estimated obhgations in respect of claims made by empleyees and contractors relating to
accident or disease as a resuit of the husiness actities of the Group This 1s managed by our captive insurance company, Harworth
Insurance Company Limited, a UK based FSA registered company As at December 2010 1t held £15 7 midlion of cash deposits and
£8 B millien of property assets to meet £13 0 million of habilitres

Surface damage provision relates to the Group s hability to compensate for substdence damage arising essentially from past deep
mining operations Claims can be lodged by the public up to six years after the date of relevant damage The estimate 1s based on
historical claims expenience following a detailed assessment of the nature of damage foreseen The reduction in surface damage
provisions 1s in line with the reduction in number of operating deep mines within the Group As at December 2010 the Group had
£8 8 million of ring-fenced deposits and an insurance bond for a further £10 millon to provide security to meet £15 4 milhon of
labiities

fu} Surface mines

Pre-coaling cosis i respect of surface mine activiuies are broadly the costs incurred in preparing the site for muimng and related
costs in respect of planning gain These are treated as deferred costs on the balance sheet During the course of the mining process
these costs are wntten off over the expected production tonnage of the mmne

Restoration and rehabilitation provisions represent the expected cost of the reinstatement of soil and overburden discounted for
the time value of money

This proviston together with an equal and opposite non-cuerent asset 1s created when coaling commences Along with ather
pre-coaking expenses this asset 1s written off in propertion to the expected recoverable reserves of the mine

Expenditures for restoration and rehabilitation are offset against the provisions as tncurred The unwinding of the discount for
the ume value of money 1s ncluded within the finance cost

As at December 2010 the Group had a non-current asset of £35 7 mifhon {2009 £22 6 million} relating to expenditure on

pre coaling and similar expenses, deferred stripping costs and the recognitton of restoration and rehabilitation habilities on
sites that had started coaling There 1s current consultation over the treatment of capitahsed deferred stripping costs, of which
we had £4 7 miliion at December 2010 At the same date provisions for restoration and rehabilitation totalled £51 6 million
{2009 £39 3 milhion) after expenditure of £11 6 million in the year
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{ui) Deep mines

We maintain provistons in respect of the costs of restoring our deep mmes to the required standard and planning conditions The
amount provided represents the discounted net present value of the expected costs Costs are charged to the provision as inturred
and the unwinding of discount is mcluded within the finance costs for the year The provision ¢an be broken down into operating and
closed mnes

£ emil
Operating mines 1n7
Clased mines 102

219

After the closure of Welbeck in the year 53% of the deep mines provision relates to the three mines classified as operating
which will be utilised after the point of closure We expect that we may utiise £1 0 million of the closed mine provision in 2011
and £0 4 mllion 1n 2012 representing predeminantly the costs in respect of the Welbeck and Rossington collieries The remaining
balance of £8 8 million will be utihsed beyond 2012

(v} Redundancy provisions

Redundancy provisions are created when the decision to make the redundancies has been made and commumnicated, usually through
the representatives of the workforce The majenity of the £3 2 milhion provided remains from the closure of Welbeck and 1s expected
to be utihised in 201

Retirement benefit obhgations

The Group has a deficit on its defined benefit pension and retrement schemes which are now closed to new entrants but are
currently open for future service, of £171 6 million {2009 £220 B million} We are currently in ongoing discussions with relevant
stakeholders about changing the status of the defined benaiit schemes All new employees who joined after the privatisation in
1994 are eligibte to join defined contribution schemes

The defined benefit pension and retirement schemes comprise two funded mdustey wide schemes  together with an unfunded
concessionary fuel scheme The above deficit incledes a hability of £36 5 million {2009 £34 9 mullion) in relation te the unfunded
concesstonary fuel scheme All of these schemes are valued annually by our independent actuaries the Government Actuary s
Departmant

The schemes have been for these financial statements valued under International Accounung Standard 19 {1AS 19}, using the
projected unit method and discounting future scheme Liabilities on the basis of AA-rated corporate bond yields of over 15 years
The discount rate used, net of inflation, was 2 1% (2009 2 2%}

Movements in the schemes in 2010 are set out below

Concessiongry

Pension® fusl Total

£ mullion £ million £ million
December 2009 1859 349 208 ‘
Contributions paid less current service cost 159) 04y {63) |
Change in fund value compared 1o expected return may 19 934) ‘
Actuanal (gan)/loss on habiities {32 6) 01 132 5 '
Gains on curtailment (10) - {10)
December 2010 1351 355 M6

* Inctuding Blerkinsopp scheme

There has been a significant decrease in the deficit on the pension schemes of £50 B million The main movements were

* Anactuarial gain on the funds habiliies of £32 6 miftion ansing from the change n actuanal assumptions Principally thisis
due o the allowante made for the effect of the change in statutory pension indexation requiremants for pensions on one of
the schemes, lowering the rate of inflation from bemng in line with RP1 to bewg :n lne with CPI

* Againnthe year of £11 3 mulion due ta returns on the funds assets being mgher than expected and

+ Deficitconinbutions abave the current service cost of £5 9mutlion In total, the Group paid £21 2 mullion to the schemes in
2010 covening both current service and deficit contributions, and expects to make centibutions of around £22 millien in 2011
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£49 7 mellion of the movement in the deficit on the pensien
schemes has been charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income { SOCI ) in the year

There has been an increase in the hiability for the unfunded
concessionary fuel scheme of £1 6 milhon relating manly to the
interest cost on the liabihity exceeding contributions in the year
There was a small actuarial loss en the liability which has been
charged to the SOCI

Details relating to retirement benefit obligatiens are shown in
note 24 to the financial statements

Pension schemes’ funding levels

Contnibutions to the schemes are determined by the schemes
actuary on the basis of inenmal valuations The last agreed
nenmal valuations which were finahsed during 2008 were

at 31 December 2006, and we have continued to make
contributions i ling wath that agreement The next valuation
as at December 2009 has not yet been finalised The Trustees
of the schemes estimate that the combined deficit of the
industry wide schemes as at the end of December 2009 was
around £300 millon using assumptions which differ from those
that we are required to use under [AS 19, and on a basis and
with assumptions which are not agreed by the Group The level
of future cashflow funding for the schemes has also not yet been
agreed The current level of deficit contiibutions would be
inadequate 1o meet such a large deficit




Key Risks and Uncertainties

We operate i a mining industry which carries inherent nsk

and is subject to market and other external nisks which cannot
be fully controlled, mitigated or insured aganst The risks set
out below represent some of the principal risks and uncertamties
identified by the directors which exist within the Group that
could materially affect our financial condition, performance
strategies and prospects The following risk information s not
ntended to be a comprehensive overview of nisks nherent
within the business

Minmng Risk

Health, safety and environment

All of our mining operations are subject to patential health and
safety nisks and the possibility of pollution of water air or soil
or damage to surface assets

Following the appointment in January 2010 of a Safety Directar
who reports to the Managing Director of Mining and alse has a
direct reporting hine to the Board s Safety Committee, we have
reinforced management s focus on the importance of safety
1ssuas and strived to create as safe a working enviranment

as possible through ongoing Health and Safety traning to all
employees to ensure an awareness of safety 1ssues across the
Group We remain confident that by working together with our
entire workferce we can improve on our Health and Safety
performance

The potential for other hazards underground are continually
manitored n particular the risks from methane gas and from
fire enabling iImmediate action to be taken in the event of

any abnormal reading There 1s only very hmited insurance or
insurance with high excess or uneconomic premiums available
in the market against these risks which might normally be
wsurable in other industnes

Financing nsk

In part the Group finances its business through debt The amlity
of the Group to raise funds on reasanable terms in the icnger
term depends on a number of factors, including general
economic, pohtical and capital market conditions and credit
avallability as well as business performance There can be no
asswance that financing for the Group in the longer term will
be avautable or 1f it1s that it will be available on terms that the
Group considers acceptable The matunty of the Group s debt
profite at December 2010 15 shown in note 19 to the financial
statements and the facilittes available to the Group including
their maturities, are noted earhier in the Finanal Review
Following the extension to our main facilities as noted earlier
n the Finance Review there are now no significant facility
maturities in the next 12 months However, there 1s a longer
term risk that the Group 1s unable to refinance its bank debt or 15
unable to obtam new or additional bank debt (f this 1s required
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As s customary our bank facilities are subject to covenants, in
our case focussing onloan to property value adjusted earnings
and adjusted tangible net worth Although we are n comphance
with these covenants a fall in the valuations of our properties or
a shortfall «n praduction could have an impact on them leading
to increased charges and possibly a imstation of facilities
availability

Major unforeseeable production shortfalls or

geclogica! constraints

The operating costs of our deep mines are largely fixed refative
to production tevels Qutput is therefore key to our short-term
financial performance and indeed to the viabibty of the mmes
and the business

In an aperation as complex as deep miung there are inevitable
risks to production from the failure of equipment We therefore
seek to mantain adequate supphes of equipment spares to
ensure that any downtime 1s imited and to operate at hugh
levels of machine availlability

Our mining plans and development programmes are designed
to minimise the time between one face finishing a new face
starting and production ramping to a normalised level (known
as face gaps) During this ime coal production may be Imited
and the economic impact 1s closely momitored Historically
development work has underperformed against long-term
requirements and therefore a significant element of our
Investment programme, both in caprtahsed and expensed
spend 1s aimed atincreasing the amount of development
‘bank’ 18 developments ready ahead of requirements
which reduces the risk of face gaps

The geclogy of the ground in which we are mining 1s an
important factor in our business Whilst bore holes are drilled,
and modern surface and other surveys, including 3D seismic
surveys offer better information, we often face unexpected
geological conditions These may semetimes be revealed when
the roadway gates are smtiaily driven, or by knowledge from
previous workings in the same area (for example in seams
above or below those being mined) but frequently, the extent
of geological faulting or other conditions in the coal seam

that have to be safely traversed are not totally predictable

We manage our mining risks by having a well structured nisk
management policy and experienced personnel to ensure any
operaticnal difficulties are mitigated where possible to ensure
a contunuous production process throughout the year
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Market price risk

We are exposed to the nisks of fluctuations in coal prices as our
revenue and earnings are directly refated to the prevailing prices
for the coal produced

We have mitigated this by the use of longer term customer
contracts, to ensure more certainty of both demand and price
Historically some of these contracts have warked te our
disadvantage due to increases in the world price of coal
Therefore, we have moved towards a strategy of a balanced
mix of longer term contracts on fixed capped and collared
and floating prices, and to mamntain an element of shorter
term contract and spot sales

The Group has entered into some fixed price contracts which

in some cases are subject to AP! adjustment resultingin a
reduction in sales price tn the event of deflation that might

not be matched by commensurate falls in costs The Group also
entered into some nomal fixed price contracts where the sales
price will not change even |f inflation was higher than expected

We also am to reduce costs on a continuous basis and to
maintam an efficient production process te maximise our
returns thrgughout the price cycle

We are exposed to the smpact on our market of changes in
Government regulations in parucular with reference to the
development of a low carbon economy

Employment Risk

Pension risk

Under the terms of the 1994 privatisation, those employees
transferred to the employment of UK Coal Mining Limited

{ UKCML ) became members of one of two Industry Wide
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

These schemes are sectionalised meaning that UKCML has
no unprovided habihties in respect of the employees of other
companies in the industry UK Coal PLC and UKCML both have
a responsiihty in respect of these pension schemes under the
Protected Persons Regulations which provides that 1115 not
permitted to close off the schemes for future service although
In certain circumstances later legislation may overnde this
The Trustees estimate, on a basis that 1s not agreed by the
Group, that at December 2009, there was a combined deficit
af circa £300 milhon on these schemes

Under IAS19, as noted in note 24 to the financial statements
these schemes have a combined deficit of £134 3 million

at December 2010 This deficit1s, n atcordance with 1AS
calculated using a discount rate in line with the market rate for
corporate bonds Under the Technical Prowisions, which are the
basis for the trienmial calculation of the pension habilities for
the Pensions Regulator and for agreement on funding rates with
the Trustees different rates based on gilt yields, are employed

Depending on changes in these rates and investment
performance to be incorperated into the next calculation
which s currently being worked on, a significantly higher
deficit could lead to higher defieit contnbutions being needed
n later years

Other employment risks

The Group cperates in a highty umomsed environment Whilst
industrial disputes have ngt been a material feature in recent
years there remains ansk of such events potentially leading
to lost production or ingreased costs

Property Risk

Property market downturn or volatility

As noted earlier in the Review of Operations land values

are potentially volatile to changes m the wider environment
Economic conditions affect both business and consumer
investment confidence and both these have a knock-on effect
for residential and commercial land prices Our agncultural
estate has proved less volatile w the past and we would expect
It to remain so given the more mature nature of the land’s usage

The mmmatunty’ in planning terms of our brownfield sites
means that a considerable amount of value can be added by
the work that we do 1n advancing them through the planmng
process We continue o seek favourable planning cutcomes

on our development portfolio in order to increase and altow this
value to be realised both of which help to mitigate the carrying
value risk of these properties

Planning approvals

The planning regeime affects both Harworth Estates and our
mining businesses and any major changes could affect the
business either positively or negatively We continue to see
mprovements in the planning environment, particularly in the
planning regime surrounding the surface mine business where
greater recognition 1s being given both for the need of coal and
the high environmental standards of the design and operation
of the schemes Of immediate impact the resources avallable
to ptanning authorities to process planming applications in

a reasanable timescale contmue to be a restraining factor on
the Group and in the development of activities meeting overall
Government targets and the Group s aspirations




Corporate Social Responsibility

UK Coal - Impact and Benefits

As a major empleyer operater of mines and landowner within
Central and Northern England UK Coal is acutety aware of the
effectit has on the UK both locally and nationally We have
consistently sought to shape our CSR practice to maximise
the benefits and mimmize the impacts of the Group

UK Coal - A National Asset

UK Coalis the largest producer of coal in the UK and one of
the largest independent coal producers in Europe supplying
sufficient coal to produce around 5% of the UK's electricity
The Group employs 2 657 {2009 2 832) people directly and its
sites represent a major centre of expertise and skills for the UK
economy The UK has over 100 years of coal reserves and coal
forms a major component of the Government s energy plan going
farward The Government has pledged to invest over £1 brlion
n Carbon Capture and Storage {'CCS’} which 1s more than any
other in the world, in order to ensure that the UK establishes

a leading position in this environmentally friendly technology
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UK Coal — A Canng Employer

Best practice atwork

UK Coal understands that a skilled and motivated workforce 15
essential for the long-term success of the business and we aim
to attract retain and motivate the nghest calibre of employees
within a structure that encourages thewr development and
personal imtiative To that end, despite the recent economic
slowdown, we have maintained our policy of maximising

the redeployment of skilled and experienced mineworkers

The Group also undertakes

» Continuous employee development through a rollng
programme of working practice reviews training and
refresher courses,

* Arggular dialogue with mining trade unions particularly at
operational level to address employee 1ssues

+ Production of Group and site newsletters to raise awareness
of the financial, economic and operational factors affecting
the busingss unit and Group performance, and

e Equal opportumty in recruitment, promotion, career
development, training and reward to all employees without
discrimination and support of the employment of disabled
persons provided that they can be employed in a safe
working environment

Developing Kellingley’s next coal face
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Safety Management

UK Coal considers that the wellbeing of the people who

work across all areas of our cperations and offices and the
performance of our employees at the highest level of therr ability
15 a fundamental part of successfully delivering our strategy

At UK Coal, our aim 1s to operate a workplace that 1s safe

and healthy Our single most important focus 1s to have an
arganisation that can say and demonstrate that safety 15 our
aumber one priority and that fatal aceidents and injury are no
longer a part of the mining industry At UK Coal we believe that
every work related iliness and injury 1s preventable

UK Coal 1s a mineng group, and miming activity and mineral
processing require the management of significant hazards
which include fire explosion ground contral transport of people
igh valtages and large mobile machinery To ensure that we
work safely all parts of our business mamntain geod safety
management systems Health and safety performance 1s
reviewed by the Board on a monthly basis and the Safety
Committee quarterly The Group strategy ss driven from this
combination of meetings on advice from our health and safety
professionals

The strategic 1ssue for safety

UK Coal 1s an old established organisation evoiving from

British Coal upan privatisation and safety has progressed within
the orgamsation over the last 15 years We recognise the need
to be continuously improving our approach to safety to reflect
the ever changing and developing demands of business and
society We are looking for further rapid improvement of

safety performance and the enhancemeant of clear safety
accountability As we develop the strategy for 2011 and

beyond we have three clear values

e Zero Mindset — Embedding a simple belief across the
orgamsation we can prevent all accidents and occupation
iliness We plan design manage and supervise to ensure
we work towards reaching these goals

* Zero Harm = A shared belief that anyone working for or with
UK Coal will do so without incurning any injury whilst at their
place of work and

e Jero Repeats — The investigation of accidents moidents and
practices 10 determine what happened and why resulting n
implementation of necessary steps to prevent recurrences

As an organisation we recognise that whilst systems and
procedures are of vital importance for UK Coal to achieve world
class levels of health and safety performance 1s dependent on
the behaviour of everyone The safe behaviour of our employees
and contractors depends on many factors which include
leadership, management style training and the relationship
between all stakeholders As we move through 2011 we

will work with our leaders to ensure there 15 a wisible safety
commitment that safety 1s clearly priontised and that they

give a personal endarsement to safety initiatives throughout
the workforce We wish to build a culture where people feel
cornfortable and able to challenge unsafe behaviour and take
persanal responsibihty for their own safety and that of our
colleagues UK Coal will work to establish a culture whese
people know they can come forward and report incidents

errors and mistakes and knaw they wall be treated fairly

with ther concerns and 1ssues being addressed

It 15 with regret that as disclosed in the Directors Report UK
Coal Mining Limited has pleaded guilty to breaches of health
and safety legislation brought against 1t by the Health and
Safety Executive following four fatalities in 2006 and 2007
This further emphasises the need for strategic improvement

Our key performance measure 1s our lost time injury frequency
rate per 100 000 man shifts and 1t 15 pleasing to see that
2010 UK Coal saw a 21% reduction n this measure from 34 46
to 27 28 with alk parts of the business recording positive results
in this area Major injunies have also fallen by 38% compared to
2009 Whilst it 1s encouraging to note this reduction, we have
to maintain focus If we wish to compare ourselves with leading
companies in the same sector The core elements of aur safety
improvement programme in 2011 will be
(1} Leadership — We demonstrate and encourage the
behaviours we expect to see

(n) Competence — Our people are skilled in the work they do
they understand what 1s required and how to do it

{mj Control the Environment — Qur people can identify the hazard
and understand what s needed to contrel the risk and

{iv) Work Safely — We wentify, put in place and audit suitable
work practices

The Board strategy shall ensure that UK Coal remains a safe
place to work, and that we achieve our objective to be a leader
in the miming sector both in the UK and internationally




Environment

UK Coal s environmental programme is managed by the
Ervironment Manager who 15 an active participant in the CBI
East Midlands Environment Committee which meets regularly
with ke minded comparses to share good envirenmental
practice, and 1s a member of Bustness in the Community
Yorkshire and Humberside Environment Experts Group

As a provider of a key source of power to the UK UK Coal

15 awarg of the impact that our operations have on the
surreunding environment and our environmental policy
commitments are to

*  Minimise pollution and comply with environmental
legistation and any agreements with external organisations
in order to comply with S0 14001

+ Mantan certification of enviranmental management
systems to international standards at all mines and
progress certification i other areas of the business

+ Set and regularly review objectives and targets to achieve
continual improvement in environmental performance,
ncluding a reduction in the use of natural resources,

* lse the pnnciples of sustainable development to design
new projects and restare completed sites to include
long-term environmental or community benefits

« Prowvide access to coniact us about environmental 1ssues
and give a prompt response

» Ensure this policy 15 communicated to all employees
contractors and suppliers

* Encourage the efficient use of ceal with minimum
emissions and

*  Maximse the use of other natural resources recovered
with the coal

Certification to IS0 14001 covers all surface and deep mined
sites our Mining Services department and Harworth Estates
Application of our certified system improves both the day to
day operational procedures and longer-term environmental risk
management over all our activities Qur Environmental Policy 1s
reviewed by the Board, and both in-house and external audits
ensure contnued comphiance Monitaring and analysts of
emissions to air water and land as well as the use of natural
resources, are carned out and where appropriate programmes
to reduce emissions or to reduce the use of natural resources
are designed and implemented As new legislative regulations
on waste and resources are introduced our programmes to
encourage reduction re-use and re-cycling continue to show
positive benefits te the environment
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The success of our pehicies is judged by the use of key
performance indicators One of the most significant indicators s
the need to control the use of energy In the middle of 2009 an
across the board target was set to reduce energy use by three
per cent When companng 2010 to 2008, we achieved a ten per
cent reduction in energy use per tanne of coal recovered 1n our
active mines Taking the Group as a whole the reduction was
eight per cent In addition, we also saw a reductron in mimneral
waste of three per cent for each tonne of coal recovered when
comparing 2010 to 2009

Social and Community Issues

As a major employer and land owner at UK Coal we believe in
supporting suitable community projects around both our surface
and deep mines whilst ensuring that we keep to our commetment
to supply the UK's energy industry with vital fuel As part of this
ongeing comrmitment UK Coal

Contributes to a wide range of individual and team
activities, individual and group events and sporting and
academic asprratigns affecting all age groups

Provided the following funding s 2010 for good local causes

-£1,327,000 (2009 £300 000) through community fund
projects associated with current operating surface mine
schemes

- £100000 {2009 £1,300 000} of commumty funding from
surface mines schemes with planning consent {but where
mining operations have yet to commence)

— A potentiat further £500,000 (2009 £275 000) of
commumity funding if schemes currently in the planning
process are approved

* Planted over 65000 trees and hedgerow in 2010 on sites in
Yarkshure the North East and the Midlands on former mine
sites and

Has created heathland and other community access factlities
as part of the restoration of some sites One such project
has been designated as a Site of Specific Scientific Interest
durning 2010 by Natural England This is a highly coveted seal
of approval and effectively ghhghts the quality and the
diversity of the land after-uses that UK Coal 15 capable of
creating through sts own in-house expertise and knowledge
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Board of Directors

Jonson Cox

He was appointed as Executive Chairman with effect from

15 November 2010 He was formerly Group Chief Executive of
Anghan Water Group from January 2004 untl March 2010 For
the same period he was Chairman of Anghan Water Services
Limited and mornison PLC He is a non executive director of
Wincanton PLC

David Brocksom

He was appointed Finance Director in September 2007 He was
previously Finance Director of Pace Micro Technology PLC and
Avesco PLC and has worked in a number of UK listed companies
for over 12 years as a Board member He qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Price Waterhouse having read Law at
Cambndge Unwversity He 1s a non executive director of

Helius Energy PLC

Gareth Willlams

He was appointed Managing Director of the Mining Division
with effect from 1 August 2010 having been appainted to the
Board as Mining Director on 15 February 2010 He has over 20
years' experience in coal mining in 3 wide range of international
roles with Anglo Coal part of Anglo Amenican PLC he has been
General Manager of some of Anglo’s largest coal mines and
Head of Operationa! Performance for Anglo Coal Canada and
South America Gareth gamed an honours degree i Mining
Engineering at the University of Otago/Auckfand in 1988

QGwen Michaelson

He s a Chartered Surveyor was appointed Managing Director
of the Praperty Diwiston with effect from 1 August 2010 He
was formerly a non-executive director of the Company and has
specialised in the remediation and development of brownfield
and contaminated land waste management operations and
power generation He holds a non-executive directorship
within the Peel Group

Peter Hazell

Chatrman of property developers the Argent Group, he joined
the Board in September 2003 as a non-executive director

He 15 also non-executive diector of Bnt Insurance and

Smith and Wilhamson He was previously a member of

the Competiion Commission and UK Managing Partner

of PricewaterhouseCoopers He 1s Charman of the Audit
Committee and Semior Independent Directar

M:ke Toms

He joined the Board as a non-executive director and Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from May 2006

A Town Planner and Economist by background he was Group
Director, Planning and Regulatery Affairs and sat on the Board
atBAA PLC and formerly a non-executive director at Vindian
Group PLC He 1s a non-executive director of Bellway PLC, a
non-executive director of Birmingham Airport Heldings Limited
and a non-executive director of Oxera Consulting Linited

He 15 a former Chairman of Northern lreland Electncity PLC

Keith Heller

He was appointed as a non-executive director and Chairman of

the Safety Committee with effect from 19 Apnl 2011 He was

formerly Co-Chairman of DB Schenker Rail Chief Executive of

English Welsh and Scottish Railway President of Eure Cargo Rail

and Senmior Vice President Canadian National Raillway He was a .
Board member of the Railway Safety and Standards Board

Steven Underwoad

He 1s Corporate Development Director of the Peel Group of
companies and was appointed to the Board as a non-executive
directar with effect from 1 August 2010 He s also currently a
non-executive director of Pinewood Shepperton PLC and an
alternate director of Capital Shopping Centres Group PLC




‘ Directors’ Report

The dwectors present therr report and the audited financial
statements for 2010 These will be laid before the 2011 Annual
General Meeting Details of all resolutions to be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting are set out in the notice calling
the meeting which s enclosed with this report

Principal Activities, Business Raview and

Future Developmants

The pnncipal activities of the Group comprise surface
and underground coal mining, property regeneration and
management and power generation

The Chairman s Statement and the Operating and Financial
Review (beginning on pages 3 and 6 respectively} are
incarparated by reference These provide a review of the
Group s business which includes the

+ Development and performance of the Group n the year
and its position at the year end,

* Keynsks and uncertainties faced by the Group
{on pages 29 and 30},

* Key Performance Indicators used to measure the Group s
performance {on pages 12, 15 and 17}

* Environmental and employee prionities facing the Group
{on pages 31 to 33}, and

*  Group's future development and outlook for 2011
|on page 5}

Dividends Por Ordinary Share

There was no interim dividend paid dusing the year (2009 £nl)
The directors are not recommending the payment of a final
davidend i respect of the 2010 financial year {2009 £nil)

tand and Property
The Group's investment property was revalued at the year end
fult detarls of which are set out in the Operating and Financial
Review {on page 18}

Development

The Group actively develops 1ts mining and property portfalios,
full details of which are found m the Qperating and Financsal
Review and in the Notes to the Financial Statements {on
pages 77 and 78}

Directors

The directors who served during the year were David Brocksom,
Jonson Cox Peter Hazell David Jones Jon Lloyd Qwen
Michaelson, Mike Toms, Kevin Whiteman Steven Underwoced
and Gareth Williams

Jansen Cox and Steven Underwood were appointed Executive
Chairman and a non-executive director with effact from

15 November 2010 and 1 August 2010 respectively and will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2011 Annual General Meeting
Keith Heller has been appointed as a non-executive director
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with effect from 19 April 2011 and wll also offer himself
for re-electton at the 2011 Annual General Meeting Gareth
Williams was appointed wath effect fram 15 February 2010
and re-elected at the 2010 Annual General Meeting

David Jones and Jon Lloyd stepped down from the Board

and resigned as Charman and Chief Executive respectively on
15 November 2010 Kewvin Whiteman retired as a non-executive
director with effect from 31 March 2011 Mike Tems wall be
retiring from the Board on 30 June 2011

Under the Articles of Associatian there is a process of rotation
which ensures that approximately one third of all directors

are required to retire and seek re-appomntment at each Anaual
General Meeting Atthe 2011 Annual General Meeting, Owen
Michaelson and David Brocksom will retire by rotatton and will
offer themsejves (and are recommended by the Board) for
re-election

All executive directors have service contracts which may be
terminated by the Company on not more than twelve months
notice for all non-executive directors the notice periad 1s three
months There are no directors on fixed-term contracts There
are no contractual tlauses that give any of the directors an
entitlement to compensation exceeding his due payment in
heu of notice Details of ndemnities from the Company and
insurance taken out for the benefit of the directors 1s set out

in the Corporate Gavernance Report (on page 40)

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company are
shown 0 the report on directors’ remuneration {on page 51}

Charitable Donations

The contnibutions made by the Group during the year for
chantable purposes were £38 325 (20069 £51 546) No political
donations were made in 2010 {2008 £nil) Charitable donations
made were predommantly to associations and chanties imvolved
with the coal industry and local communities

Employees

The Group consults on and discusses with employees matters
likely to affect ther interests Internal news sheets are
produced and distnbuted free to all employees regularly
Information on maiters of concern {0 employees 1s given
periodically to achieve a common awareness on the part of
all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting
the Group’s performance

Disabled Persons

The Group gives full and fair consideration to sitable
apphications for employment by disabled persons and all
disabled persons are provided with traiming to assistin obtaining
promotions and devetoping therr career Opportunities also exist
for employees of the Group who become disabled, to continue

in their emptoyment or 10 be trained for other positions within
the Group
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Directors’ Report

continued

Health and Safety

UK Coal1s commutted to maintaining high standards of health
and safety n every area of the business it1s the aim of the
Group to exceed the requirements of the Health and Safety
at Work Act 1974 and all other relevant health and safety
legistation and has estabhshed a committee of the board to
oversee health and safety Details of the Group s commitment
to health and safety are found in the Corporate Social
Responsibihty section {on page 32}

UK Coal Mining Ltmited has pleaded guilty to seven charges for
breaches of health and safety legislation brought against it by
the Health and Safety Executive following four fatalities in 2006
and 2007 It 1s anticwpated that UK Coal Miang Lirmited will be
fined in late summer 2011 Provision was made for this in the
financial statements in 2009

Treasury Policy and Liquidity

The Group matntawns borrowing hines estimated to be sufficient
to cover forecast cash requirements In this assessment the
Group only takes into account existing or renewang facilities
and new faciliies where these have recewved credit approval
or equivalent

The Group enters into hedging transactions required to cover the
operations of the business The principal function of the financial
instruments held by the Group 1s to provide secunty raise funds
and mitigate same inierest rate risks

Details of financial risks in respect of market nsk credst nsk and
liquidsty nisk are set out in note 23 to the financial statements
{on pages B7 and 88)

Suppher Payment Policy

The Company and the Group does not follow any specific
external code or standard on payment practice Its policy s
normally to pay supphers accerding to terms of business agreed
with them on entering into contracts and to keep to the payment
terms providing the relevant goods or services have been
supphed in accordance with the contracts

The Group had 78 days purchases outstanding at December
2010(2009 74 days} based on the average daily amount
invoiced by supphers during the year

Ethical Policy

UK Coal 1s commutted to warking with 1ts employees, customers
supphers and contractors to promate responsible working

and trading practices It also provides assistance to the wider
community by way of financtal support for charitable and other
local causes Further information regarding how the Group
addresses social and community 1ssues 1s shown in the report
on Corporate Social Responsibulity {on page 33}

Quality and Integnity of Personnel

it1s the Group s policy to employ the highest catibre of
management and staff and encourage the highest standards
of personal integnity Recruitment procedures are designed to
dentify and reward high calibre individuals

Share Capital, Voting Rights and Yransfer of Shares
Details of the structure of the Company s share capital and
changes in the share capitat during the year are disclosed in
note 25 to the financial statements

The nights and abligations attaching to the Company s ordinary
shares are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association
copies of which can be obtained from Companies House in the
UK or by writing to the Company Secretary In particular, subject
to particular statutes and the Company s Articles of Association,
shares may be 1ssued with such nights or restrictions as the
Board may determine

Shareholders are entitled to attend speak and vote at general
meetings of the Company to appoint one or more proxies and

if they are corporations, to appoint corporate representatives
0On a show of hands at a general meeting every holder of
ordinary shares present in person shali have one vote and every
proxy present who has been duly appointed by a member
entitled to vote on the resolution has one vote and on & poll
every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote
for every ordinary share held Further details regarding voting,
including deadlines forvoting at the Annual General Meeting
can be found in the notes to the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting No person s unless the Board decides otherwise
entitled to attend or vote either perscnally or by proxy ata
general meeting or to exercise any other shareholder rights if he
or any person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice
under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and has falled to
supply the Company with the requisite information within the
prescribed period

Shareholders may recewve a dividend and on a liquidation may
share in the assets of the Company The Company has one class
of ordinary shares which carry equal voting rights and no
contractual right to receive payment

The instrument of transfer of a ceruficated share may be in any
usual form or n any other form which the Board may approve
The Board may refuse to register any instrument of transfer of
a certificated share which s not fully paid provided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the Company from
taking place on an open and proper basis The Board may also
refuse to register a transfer of certificated share unless the
mstrument of transfer {1}1s lodged duly stamped {if stampable}
at the registered office of the Company ar any other place
decided by the Board accompanied by the certificate for the
share to which it relates and such ather swidence as the Board




may reasanably require to show the rnght of the transferor to
make the transfer {n)1s in respect of only one class of shares,
{ra}is in favour of not more than four transferees Transfers of
uncertificated shares must be carried out using the relevant
system and the Board can refuse to register a transfer of

an uncertificated share in accordance with the regulations
governing the operation of the relevant system and with UK
legistation Restrictions may also be imposed on certain Group
employees who are required to seek approval from the Company
before dealing i shares in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Listing Authonity

There are no other initations on the holding of crdwmary
shares in the Company and the Company 1s not aware of any
agreements between holders of secunties that may result in
restrictions on the transfar of securities or on voting nghts

Details of major shareholdings are included in the Corporate
Governance section of this Annual Report

Details of employee share schemes can be found m the
Directors Remuneratien Report

Significant Agreements

The Compamies Act 2006 requires us to disclose the following
significant agreements that take ¢ffect alter or terminate on
a change of control of the Company

The facility agreement dated 25 July 2007 for the committed
term loan facility provided to Harworth Estates {Waverley
Prince) Limited by Bank of Scotland PLC relating to the
redevelopment of the Prince of Wales and Waverley Rotherham
sites cantains mandatary prepayment provistons entitling the
{ender to termmate the facihties (and demand immediate
repayment of all outstanding amounts due under and in respect
of such faciities) upon a change of control of the Company

The terms of the agreements dated 13 September 2007 for the
committed revolving debt property and stock faciities provided
to UK Coal Mining Limited by Lloyds TSB Commerecial Finance
Limited {among athers} include a termination event entitling

the lenders to terminate the facihities (and demand immediate
repayment of all outstanding amounts due under and in respect
of such agreements} upon a change of control of the Company

The facility agreement dated 7 May 2008 for the term loan
facity provided to EOS Inc Ltd by Barclays Bank PLC includes
a termination event entithing the Bank to terminate the faciity
{and demand immediate repayment of all cutstanding amounts
due in respect of the facility) upon a change of control of the
Company

The terms of the facility agreement provided to the Company by
Peel Holdings Finance Limited include a mandatory prepayment
provision causing the facthity to be cancelled upon {and to
become immediately due and payable five business days
following) a change of control of the Company
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The facilities agreement dated 11 May 2010 for the revolving
credit facilities provided to UK Coal Mining Lumited by Lioyds
T3B Commereial Finance Linited includes (a) an event of default
entithng the lender 1o cancel the commitments and demand that
all amounts outstanding under and in respect of such faciilies
are immediately due and payable upon a change of control of
the Company and {b) a mandatory prepayment provision causing
the facility 1o be cancelled and become immediately due and
payable upon a sate of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Company and its subsidiaries or upon a hsting of any part of
the share capiial of any member of the Company s group to the
London Stock Exchange PLC, the Alternative Investment Market
or any recogmised investment exchange

There are no agreements between the Company and its
directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss
of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

Going Concern

These financial statements are prepared on the basis that

the Group 1s a going concern in ferming its opinion as to going
concern the Board prepares cash flow forecasts based upon

Its assumptions as to trading with particular consideratton to
production levels and key nsks and uncertainties as summarised
on pages 29 and 30 as well as takmg nto account the availahle
horrowing facilities in line with the Treasury Pohey disclosed

in the Directors Report on page 36

The key factors that have been considered i this regard are

» The deep mines operate with a cost base which 1s largely
fixed relative to production levels Consequently
unexpectedly large nterruptions or prolonged reductions n
production can have a matenal adverse impact on cash flow
Recent performance has been illustrative of the difficulties
inharent in deep mining operations and in parucular the
impact of unpredictable geological conditions and/or other
operauonal issues on production volumes from our deep
mines In particular, development and face mstallation
progress needs to be sufficiently advanced to enable new
faces to be operational on the completion of old faces,
as highfighted at Daw Mill tn 2010

e Bank funding arrangements contain i certain cases
covenants based upon n partscular operating profits
adjusted for property revaluations and depreciation interest
cover loan to property values and net asset values Property
valuations affect the lean to value covenants and net
asset values and similarly net asset values are affected
by operational performance Breach of covenants could
resuit in the need to pay down in part some of these loans
additional costs or a renegotiatton of terms or, In extrems,
areduction gr withdrawal of facilities by the banks
concerned and
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. Directors’ Report

continued

+ Revenues in respect of certan floating rate contracts
capped/collared contracts and uncontracted coa! will vary
based upon the market price for coal, which i1s expressed in
dolfars and sterkng/dollar exchange rates These vaniables
have over the last year, proved to be very volatite and
therefore there 1s a nisk of unpredictability in coal revenues
and cash flows

The Board notes that the matters set out above indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt gver the Group s abihty to continue as a going concern
Nevertheless, the Board confirms its belief that it 1s appropriate
to use the going concern basis of preparation for these financial
statements These financial statements do not include the
adjustrments that would result if the Group or the Parent
Company were unable to continue as a going concern

Auditors and isclosure of Infoermation to Auditors

Each of the directors at the date of approval of this report
confirms that so far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant
audit Information {being information needed by the Company’s
auditors in connection with prepaning its report) of which the
Company s auditors are unaware In addition each director
confirms that he has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a director i order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to estabhish that the Company s
authtor 15 aware of that information

Acresolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors to the Company will be proposed at the Annuat
General Meeting

By order of the Board

Richard culaw}/

Company Secretary

19 April 2011




Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
the Directors Remuneratign Report and the finangial statements
in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group and Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with International Financral Reporting
Standards { IFRSs } as adopted by the Eurgpean Union {'EU’)
Under company law the directars must not apprave the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
tar view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that peried In preparing these financial
statements the directors are required to

* Select suitable accounting palicies and then apply them
consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Uruon have been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements and

« Prepare the financial statemenis on the going concern basis
unfess it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sutficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Campany and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directers
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Gioup financial statements Article 4 of the I1AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detecuion of fraud

and other irregulanties
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The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Group s website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legestation in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are hsted on
page 34 confirm that, 1o the best of therr knowledge

* The Group financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true
and far view of the assets, liabilities financial position and
loss of the Group and

* The Directors’ feport contained i Annual Report includes
a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the positian of the Group, together with a
description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that
it faces
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Corporate Governance

The Group recogrises the importance of, and 1s committed
to, hugh standards of Corporate Governance and the following
sections explain how the Group has apphied the main and

supporting principles set out n the Comined Code on Corporate

Governance issued by the UK Listing Authonty The Board
confirms that the Group has complied with the provisions set

out in the Combined Code throughout the year ended December

2010 save that it decided 1t was appropriate, in ight of the
need to develop the two distinct pnincipal businesses within
the Group to modify the Group’s management structure with
the appomtment of Managing Directors for the Minng and
Property Divisions respactively, both of whom would report

to an Executive Charman Hence Gareth Wiliams and Owen
Michaelson were appeinted as Managing Directors of Mining
and Property respectively Jonson Cox was appomted as
Executive Chairman wath effect from 15 November 2010 taking

responsibility for leading UK Coal At this time the Charrmanship

is substantially a full-ime role although 1t 1s intended that
over time 1t should reduce in commitment and revert to a
non-executive position

The Board of Directars

The Company 1s headed by a Board of Directors, comprising
the Chairman three executive directors and four non-executive
directors three of whom are determined by the Board to be
ndependent The Board recognises that Steven Underwood,
who 15 a director and representative of Peel Holdings which

15 the mayor shareholder in the Group 1s not independent Itis
considered that his skills and experience are relevant to the
business and he contributes to the realisatton of the Group’s
strategy

The Executive Chairman has overall leadership of the

Company, with responsibility for ensuring the development
and implementation of the Board s strategies and policies
He 1s also responsible for the running of the Board including
but not hmited to, ensuring that a fixed schedule of matters
1s exclusively retained for the Board's review and approval
and that a framework exists to allow the clear and timely

dissemination of relevant information to all directors for such
review to occur The Senior Independent Director 1s Peter Hazell

The Board of the Company 1s responsible for setting the Group s
objectives and policies and for the stewardshtp of the Group's
resources The Board 1s responsibte to the sharehalders for the
overall management of the Group

The Board considers s non-executive directors bring

judgement knowledge and experience to the Board s
deliberations They have no financial or contractual interests

in the Company other than interests in ordinary shares as
disclosed in the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report Non-executve
directors are offered the opportunity to attend meetings with
mayor shareholders and would attend them if requested by major
sharehalders

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who s responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are complied with The appontment and
removal of the Company Secretary are matters for the Board as
awhole The Board has established a procedure under which
any director, wishing to do so m furtherance of his duties may
take independent advice at the Company s expense

The Group maintains an appropriate level of directers and
officers insurance 1n respect of legal action against the
directors Further there are indermmnities between the Group
and all drectors and members of the Executive Management
Committee in respect of costs and expenses suffered from
an investigation by a regulatory body which are not covered
by insurance

The interests of the directars in the shares of the Company are
shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report {on page 51)

Attendance at Board Meetings

Attendance by individual directors at Board meetings {including
those convened and held as conference calls) and at Commuittees
duning 201015 shown n the table below Attendance by non-
Committee members at Committee meetings 15 notincluded

Board Aydnt Remuneration Noanation Safety
Possible Actual Possibla Actoal Possibls Actual Possible Actual Possible Actual
J Cox {appointed 15 1110} 2 2 - - - - - - - -
D G Brocksom i8 17 - - - - - - - -
P F Hazell i8 16 4 4 8 7 3 3 - -
0 Michaelson 18 18 - - - - - - - _
M A Toms 8 18 4 ) 8 ] 3 4 4
S Underwood
|appointed 1 8 10} g 5 - - - - - - - -
K | Whiteman 8 18 4 3 8 7 3 3 4 4
G Williams
{appainted 15 210} 16 16 - - - - - - ] 1
DH Jones {resigned 15 1110} i5 15 - - [ B 1 ] - -
J S Lloyd {resigned 15 11 10) 16 16 - - - - - - 3 3




Committees

The Group's governance structure ensures that all decisions
are made by the most appropriate people in such a way that
the decision making process 1iself does not unnecessanly delay
progress The Board has delegated specific responsitulities to
the Nomination, Remuneration, Audit and Safety committees,
as described below Each committee has terms of reference
that the whole Board has approved which can be found on the
Group s website Board and committee papers are circulated in
advance of each meeting so that all directors are fully briefed
Papers are supplemented by reports and presentatians to ensure
that Board members are supplied in a timely manner with the
information they need

Nomination Comnuttee

The Nomination Commttee leads the process for Board
appotntments by making recommendations to the Board about
filling Board vacancies and appointing additional persons to
the Board The Committee also considers and makes
recoremendations to the Board on its composition, balance
and membership and on the re-appaintment by shareholders
of any directar under the retirement by rotation provisions

n the Company s Arucles of Association

The Commuttee’s members are the idependent non executive
directors and the Chairman  Although the Chairman 15 also
Chairman of the Committee, he will not chair the Committee
when 1t deals with the appointment of a successor to the
chairmanship The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance
of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Beard and 1n the
light of this evaluation prepares a descnption of the roles and
capabiittes required for a particutar appointment

During the year the Commuttee engaged the services of
external search consultants to assist with the recruitment of
Jonson Cox as Executive Chasrman In addition the Independent
Non-Executivas obtained professional advice in respect of the
appointment of Steven Underweod as a non-executive direcier

The Board mitially appeints all new directors having first
considered recommendations made o1t by the Nomination
Committee Following such appointment the director I1s required
to retire and seek re-appointment at the next Annual General
Meeting There s a process of ratation, which ensures that
approximately one third of all directars are reguired to retire
and seek re-appointment at each Annual General Meeting

The Nomination Commuttee considers succession planmng for
appointments to the Board and to sentor management positions
50 as to maintain an appropriate batance of skills and expenience
both on the Board and 1n the Company

Remuneration Committee
The composition and work of the Remuneration Committee
are descrbed in the Oirectors Remuneration Report
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Audit Committee and auditors

The Audit Committee comprises Peter Hazell {Chairmany,

Mike Toms and with effect from 19 April 2011 Kaith Heller
Kevin Whiteman wha reured from the Board on 31 March 2011
was a member thraughout the period The Board 15 satisfied that
Peter Hazell has recent and relevant ftnancial expenence and
that all members of the Committee are independent non-
executive directors The Chawrman Finance Director and the
external auditors are invited to attend meetings The mnutes
of meetings of the Committee are circulated to all directors
The Committee meets at least four times a year 1o review the
Group s accounting and financial reporting practices the work
of internal and extemal auditors and comphance with policies
procedures and applicable legislation The Audit Committee also
reviews the half year and annual financial statements before
subrmission to the Board and peniodically reviews the scope
remit and effectiveness of internal audit provision and the
effectveness of the Group s wternal control systems It also
reviews ‘whistle-blowing’ arrangements by which employees
of the Group may inconfidence, raise concerns about possibie
financial or other improprieties The terms of reference of the
Audit Commuttee are available to shareholders on request and
are also available on the Group s website

The auditors throughout 2010 have been
PricewaterhouseCaopers LLP

Fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

ano 2009

£000 £000

Audit Fees 305 35
Other audit related fees 130 338
Tax complance and advice services - 38
435 631

The Board recognises the impartance of safeguarding auditor
objectivity and has taken the following steps to ensure that
auditor independence I1s not compromised

*  The Audit Committee reviews the audit appomtment
penodically

* |15 Group policy that the external auditors will not as a
general rule provide consulting services to the Group The
external auditors prowide audit-related services such as
regulatory and statutory reporting as well as formahtes
relating to shareholder and other cireulars

* The external auditors may undertake due diligence reviews
and provide assistance an tax matters given their knowledge
of the Group s businesses Such proviston will, however be
assessed on acase by case basis so that the best ptaced
adwiser 15 retained The Audit Committes momtors the
application of the policy in this regard and keeps the policy
under review
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*  The Audit Committee reviews an a regular basis all fees
paid for audit and all other fees with a view to assessing
reasonableness of fees, value of delivery, and any
ndependent 155ues that may have ansen or may potentially
anise In the future, and

¢ The auditors report io the Directors and the Audit
Committee confirming their independence in accordance
with Auditing Standards

Safety Committee

The Board has a Safety Committee to assist it in ensuning that
the Group comphes with its health and safety obligations and 10
review and recommend to the Board strategic options that may
enhance the policies, standards and processes that operate
within the Group The Commuttee comprises Keith Heller
{Chairman with effect from 19 Apnl 2011} Mtke Toms and
Gareth Wiliams and meetings are attended by all relevant
senor managers Kevin Whiteman was Chasrman of the
Committee up to his retirement from the Board on 31 March
2011 Stuart Hoult Safety Director has a direct reporting line
to the Commuttee

Other Meetings

In accordance with best practice, the Chawman has frequent
meetings with the non-executive directors without the
executive directors being present

A maeting of the non-executive drectors chaired by the Senior
Independent Director {without the Chairman), takes place at
least annuaily, to appraise the Charrman’s performance

Directors’ Development

All directors receive induction on joining the Group and access
to further training 1s made available The Group provides the
necessary internal and external resources to enable directors
to develop and update their knowledge and capabiliias

Performance Evaluation

Following a review mittated by Jonson Cox upan jotrang the
Group as Chairman the Board has considered and adopted
specific targets and performance criteria to enable it to assess
its own effectiveness The performance of the Board and its
committees will be reviewed against these criteria and matters
requinng attentron identified and addressed The Chairman s
performance ts reviewed by the nan-executive directors led
by the Senior Independent Director, after consultation with the
executive directors The Chairman hatds responsibihty for the
appraisal of the performance of the non executive directors
together with responsibility to conduct a performance
evaluation of executive directors and members of the
Executive Management Committee

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committes was established to
manage and co-ordmate all strategic and key operatignal 1ssues
it comprises the Chairman Finance Director, Managing Director,
Mirung and Managing Drrectar Property with attendance by
the Company Secretary

There are In addition two separate executive teams responsible
tor the Mining and Property Divisions under the leadership of
Gareth Wilhams and Owen Michaelson respectively

Directors Conflict of Interest Procedures

A director has a duty under the Compantes Act 2006 to avoid a
situation i which he has ar can have a direct or indirect interest
that conflicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of the
Group This duty 1s in addition to the existing duty that a director
owes to the Group to disclose to the Board any transaction or
arrangement under consideration by the Group The Company's
Articles of Assotiation allow the directors to authorise conflicts
and potential conflicts The Board has a procedure when
deciding whether to authonise a confhict or potential conflict of
interest Firstly only independent directors (1 e only those that
have no interest in the matter under consideratign) will be able
to take the retevant decision Secendly, in taking the decision the
directors must act in a way they consider in good faith, wibl be
mast kely to promote the Group's success |n addition the
directors will be able to mpose limits or conditions when

giving authensation if they think this s appropriate

Relations with Shareholders

The Group maintans ongoing dralogue with major shareholders
through regular presentatians and meetings to outhne the
Group s trading envirgnment and objectives and also offers
them the opportunity to meet non-executive directors The
Semor Independent Diractor 1s available to all shareholders
Private investors are encouraged to attend the Annual General
Meeting where they have the opportunity to question the Board

Substantial Shareholdings in the Company
The directors have been notified of the following substantial
shareholdings as at 19 April 2011

% of

Number 1ssued

of share

Company shares capital
Goodweather Holdings Lid* 87054 470 2909
UBS Investment Bank 20 866 BI6 697
Pelham Capital 15 163 788 507

“Member of Peel Holdings




Pawers of Directors to Allot Shares

At the 2010 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
25 June 2010, the directors were authorised to allot new shares
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £997 660 The directors
wili seek renewal of a similar authonty at the next Annual
General Meeting {full detauls are available in the 2011 Notice

of Annual General Maeting)

Purchase of Own Shares

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25 June
2010 shareholders gave the Company permission uniil the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to the Company,
to purchase up to 29 929 815 ordinary shares of 1 pence of the
Company No such purchases were made duning the year The
directors will seek renewal of similar authority at the 2011
Annual General Meeting {full details are available in the 2011
Notrce of Annual General Meeting)

Internal Control Risk Assessment

There 1s an ongoing process for identifying evaluating and
managing the srignificant risks of the Group and this process
has been in place throughout the year under review Following
a review by the Board on 7 Apnil 2011, of an updated strategic
nsk assessment ard the effectiveness of the Group s system
of internal controls it concluded that there were no sigmificant
risks that had not been considered, nor any significant
weaknesses ininternal contrels

The updated assessment supplements ongoing dialogue
between the Board and the directors and managers respensible
for momtoning risks at an operational level Duning the year

the Board received regular reports from the Internal Audit

and Health & Safety Management departments These reports
identified areas of 115k exposure recommendations made and
actions implemented They also ighlighted new areas of
legislation that will impact on the nisk profile of the Group and
provided positive assurance that procedures are working and
assisting in the attamment of business objectives Operational
and financial nisk management 1s delegated to directers and
managers who are responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business

The following centrols are embedded in the procedures of the
relevant business units

Operattonal — Detalled miming production and development
plans are agreed on an annual basts and updated each month
Operauional Review meetings are held with semor management
to discuss performance against plan and to decide and
implement any actions required There are group-wide and
local procedures against which comphance s monitored
Detailed operatioral plans are agreed annually for Harworth
Estates with these reviewed on a monthly basis at a formal
divisional Board meeting attended by alf diisional directors
and members of the Executive Management Commiitee
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Health & Safety —Full details of the health and safety pohcies
and practices of the Group are set out in the Corporate Social
Responstbihiy section

Enwironmental Management —Full details of the
environmental pohicies and practices of the Group are set out
n the Corporate Social Responsibility section

Financiai{which assist in the financial reporting and
consokdation of the Group s accounts) — These controls are
considered under the following headings

* (Cost budgeting
The annual budget setting process includes a detailed
review of each business unit and final budgets are approved
by the Board Costs and performance are monitored on a
monthly basis against budgets Monthly Operational Review
meetings are held with semar management to discuss
financial 1ssues,

e [reasury
The terms of reference for the Treasury department are
approved and kept under review by the Beard The Treasury
department i15 responsible for placng deposits, for arranging
borrowings and for making payments These transactions
are subject to director or senior management autherisation,

* [nsurance risk
The Group holds insurance cover for all employer liability
and public liability claims which s 1ssued by 1ts captive
insurance company, and which imits the Group s exposure
to £100 000 perclaim All claims are subject to expert
assessment and challenge and where appropriate,
independent medical and legal opintan, and

e Capital expenditure
Board approval of all major capital projects 1s required
Smaller capital projects are approved by the Investment
Committee whichis chaired by the Finance Director and
comprises the executive directors Senior executives are
mvited where appropnate The Investment Committee
reviews projects with a cost in excess of £100 000

Assurance Procedures

In 2010 assurance was provided by the in-house team of Internal
Auditors, Health & Safety Auditors and Envirenmental Auditors
Thus resource was supplemented by the HM Inspectorate of
Mines {Health & Safety) and other Health & Safety Commission
personnel, legal advisors and professional claims handlers
{Insurance and Claims Management} and externa! environmental
consultants {Environmentai Management)

Reports were prepared and summansed at management level
for reporting to the Board as either standing or Intermittent
agenda items

The Audit Comnittee reviewed internal audit reparts and
corporate governance maiters Annternal audit plan based
on the annual assessment of nsks was reviewed by the Board
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Reparts provided an cpintan of the nsk and control profile of
each audited systern The Safety Commitiee reviews all internal
safety audits and approves an annual safety audit plan

Following a formal review of the Group s internal audit provision
1t has been decided to strengthen the Group s internal controls
with the appointment of additional resources and implement

an enhanced integrated nsk management structure at each of
the deep mines Internal audits will be undertaken by external
specialists who will conduct specific reviews and report findings
to the Audit Commuttee for its consideration

Going Concern

As set out more fully in the Directors” Report the directors
have formed the conclusion that the Company and Group have
adequate reseurces to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future The financial statements have thereforg,
been prepared on the going concern basis

Annuzl General Meeting

The Board encourages shareholders to exercise their right to
vote at the Annual General Meeting The notice calling the
meeting and retated papers are sent to shareholders at least
20 working days before the meeting and separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue

Shareholders are encouraged to participate through a

question and answer session and indwidual directors or where
appropriate the Chairman of the relevant committee, respond
to those questions directly Shareholders have the oppertumty
to talk mformally to the directors before and after the formal
proceedings




Directors’ Remuneration Report

*Denotes auditable elements of the Remuneration Report

Context

This report 1s made in the context of the major changes in the
organisation and management of the Group duning 2010 These
mcluded the replacement of the Charman and Chief Executive
roles by the new role of Executive Chairman together with the
creation of the new main board roles of Managing Director
Mining and Managing Director Praperty In addressing the
remuneration 1ssues associated with these changes the
Remuneration Committee’s prime concern was the interests

of UK Coal s stakeholders The Committee s main objectives
have been 10 secure an effective transition to the new structure
with the minimum disruption to operations the recruitment

of an Executive Chairman with the experience, skills and
determination to realise the Group's potential and the
alignment of executive rewards around the challenges

which the Group faces

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements ¢f the Large and Mediwm-sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008 The report
also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and
has complied with the provisions set out in the Comhined Code
relating to remuneration matters

Remuneration Committee

Responsibility for reviewing Group remuneration strategy and
oolicy recommending any changes and approving individual
remuneration packages for the Chairman, Executive Directors
and other seor executives rests with the Remuneration
Committee {the Committee } The Committee consists of
indepentdent Non-Executive Directors and meets on at least
two occastons each year The members in 2010 were

Mike Toms {Committee Chairman) Peter Hazel! David Jones
{untsl 15 November 2010) and Kevin Whiteman The Committee
may seek any information it requires from any employee

ar director and all employees and directors are required

to co-operate with any request made by the Committee
Richard Cole {Company Secretary) provided information

to the Committee during the year

The Committee also meets without management and receives
informatton and independent executive remuneraiion advice
from specialist remuneration consultants Hewiit New Bridge
Street ("HNBS ) a trading name of AON Corporation who were
appointed by the Committee Executive directors do not
participate in discussions relating to therr own remuneration
The Commuttee haises with the Audit Committee where
appropriate this includes confirmation of the Group's financial
performance to assist in determining whether performance
targets and measures have been achieved and to ensure that the
stiucture for the mcentive arrangements throughout the Group
are appropniate from a nsk perspective It also haises with the
Safety Committee in respect of safety targets for the annual
bonus scheme
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The Committee has terms of reference approved by the Board
which are available from the Company Secretary and wia the
Group's website

Remuneration Policy

The policy for the current and future periods for the
remuneratton and incentivisation of Executive Directors and
ather senior executives Is as follows

* Toensure that ndividual rewards and incentives are aligned
with the performance of the Company and interests of
shareholders

» Toensure that performance-related elements of
remuneratton constitute a significant proportion
of an executive sremuneration package and

« Tpmaintain a competitive remuneration package which
enables the Company to attract retain and mofivate high
calibre executives

The Committee reviews the executive remuneration
arrangements and implements incentive arrangements to
support the objective of rewarding those individuals who
deliver real and genuine shareholder value In developing

these arrangements the Committee and its adwisers consider
current best and market practice The Committee will review
remuneration arrangements after the Strategic Review has
been finalised to ensure that they remain appropriate Potential
significant changes will be discussed with majer shareholders
prior to adoption

Executive Director remuneration compnses a hase salary an
annual performance bonus participatian 1 a lang term mcentive
plan or arrangement a car or car allowance plus fuel card,
pension contributions 1o a defined conteibution pensien scheme
or a pensign allowance hfe assurance and health insurance
Bonus payments and benefits in kind are not pensionable An
appropniate balance 1s maintained between fixed remuneration
and performance-related remuneration

Durng 2010 the Company appointed Jonson Cox as Executive
Chairman and 1t was agreed at the tme of his recruntment that
in place of the existing annual bonus and long term ncentive
arrangements he would receive bespoke share based awards
which were awarded in February 2011, 1a reflect the nature of
the role and the strategic and operational challenges presented
by the Company over the next three years In addition to the
Chawrman s awards and reflecting the specific operational
challenges being faced by the Company Gareth Wilhams annual
bonus opportunity tfor 2011 only}will be supplemented with

a deferred bonus arrangement based on the achievement of
challenging operational targets for 2011 Further details on
these arrangements are presented below

The following paragraphs explain the operation of the mam
constituents of the remuneration policy
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Base Salanies

Executive Directors salanes are normally reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee on an annual basis In determining
salary levels for executives, due regard 1s given to external
market data in similarly sized companies across a range of
sectors, personal and Company performance and pay and
employment conditions within the Group Executive Directors
salanes are targeted at broadly mid-market levels for simitarly
sized companies Base salanes for Messrs Brocksom Wilkams
and Michaelson will for 2011, rematn at £234 675 per annum,
£230 000 per annum and £230 G0 per annum respectively

Annual Bonus

With the exception of the Chairman, Executive Owrectors
participate in an annual bonus arrangement The annual bonus
provides an Incentive opportunity in the range of 0% to 75% of
base salary for Executwve Directors At the start of the incentive
year, the Aermuneration Committee sets both the performance
measures and targets based on the Group s business prionties
These targets ensure that incentives at the higher end of the
range are payable only for demonstrably supenor Group and
ndividual performance

The Commitiee has reviewed executive performance in 2010
and in recognition of strong management by each executive

of thew functional respensibilities, leadership in an extremely
chaltenging environment and the delivery of persanal
performance awarded the following bonuses Dawid Brocksom
receved a bonus of £70,000(2009 £21,120), Gareth Withams
£113 077 and Owen Michaelson £25 000 (for the penod from his
appointment as an executive director to the end of the financial
year) The bonus for the period represents 29 8% of annual basic
pay for Dawid Brocksom 49 2% for Gareth Willkams and 26 1%
for Gwen Michaelson {excluding fees patd as a non executive
prior to his appomtment as an executive director on 1 August
2010) Part of Gareth Williams s bonus payment in 2010 related
to meeting key deep mine output targets in the perod between
Apnl and August 2010

In 2011 Messrs Williams and Brocksom have an opportunity to
recewe a bonus worth up to 50% of base salary for athieving
Group performance targets related to safety, production,
operating cash flow, profit before tax operatng costs and
property sales In addition both have an opportunity to receive
up to 25% of base salary for the achievement of persenal
targets Mr Michaelson can receive a bonus worth up to 25%

of hus base salary for the achievement of the Group performance
targets and up to 20% for achteving personal targets In addition
he can receve up to 30% of hus base salary for meetng specific
property related performance targets The Committee
recognises the need to ensure that annual bonuses both properly
Incentivise executives and align them to defivering shareholder
value It will therefore give consideration to the introduction

of a deferred share based element for a proportion of annual
bonuses with matching awards made against performance
related critena

In addition to the above and recognising the specific operational
chalfenges that the Company is currently facing Gareth Williams
will participate i a deferred annual bonus arrangement whereby
amaximum of 500 000 shares in the Company may be awarded
at the end of the 2011 financial year with the number of shares
awarded based on performance aganst challenging, shding
scale operational targets for the 2011 financial year To

the extent that threshold operational targets are achteved

the award will vest subject ta continued employment, on

31 Decemher 2013 Aresolution will be proposed at the 2011
Annual General Meeting to seek autharity to satisfy the award
(to the extent 1t vests) through the 1ssue of new, rather than
gxisting, shares

Chatrman

Mr Cox was appointed Chairman in November 2010 and will
devote a substantial element of hrs time to the role for which
a base salary of £350 000 per annum was agreed {0 be paid,
this will not be reviewed until 2012

In connection with the Chairman s appaintment and instead

of us participation in the anneal bonus and tong term incentive
plan, bespoke share based awards have been designed to reflect
the specific challenges, of the role

0n 4 February 2011, and in connection with his recruitment
Mr Cox was granted the following awards pursuant to the
authoniy contained in Listing Rule 9 4 2R{2)

* Anaward to acquire up to 2,800,000 ordinary 1 pence
shares which will normally vest on 15 November 2013 (being
the third anniversary of Mr Cox s appointment) subject ta
continued employment and satisfaction of two performance
cnitena applying to separate parts of the award

— 50% of the award will vest based on de-geanng targets
and 50% of the award will vest dependent on the
Company's equity value

— These targets will be set shartly by the Commuttee upon
completion of the Strategc Review and there will be a
full description in next year s Annual Report

* | addition the Commuttee has the discretion to scale
back the award if it 1s ngt satisfied that there has been an
ymprovement n the underlying financial performance of the
Company having regard to cashflow profit, net asset value,
divedend and gearing Mr Cox will be entitled to the value of
any dividends paid between the grant and the vesting dates,
and

* An award over 1,520 000 shargs which shall normally
vest on an annual basis in three equal tranches subject to
Mr Cox s continued employment and progress against the
achievement of strategic key performance idicators over
the three year penod These require the stabilisation of the
mining business, delivery of short, medwm and long-term
value in the property business, creation of appropnate levels
of financial headroom, achievement of financial stabulity




with a de leveraged balance sheet and development of

a long term strategy In addition there 1s a requirement to
provide effective leadership to the Board and to develop
a stable capable executive team headed by a Chief
Executive to enable the reversion to a conventional
governance structure

The awards have been structured as conditional share awards
If Mr Cox leaves the Company as a good leaver or there Is

a change of control of the Company {¢ther than an internal
rearganisation) before the date when the awards would
normally have vested, then vesting will be dependent on the
achievement of the performance conditions and will be time
pro-rated to reflect the reduced pertod of service prior to
vesting To the extent the awards vest, awards are currently
structured to be satsfied with existing shares {other than
treasury shares] although a resolution wall be proposed at the
2011 Annual General Meeting to seek authority to satisfy any
awards which vest through new issue, rather than existing
shares

The number of shares subject to the awards may be adjusted in
the event of any vanation of share camital or a special dividend
The awards cannct be transferred or charged by Mr Cox The
awards cannot be amended to the advantage of Mr Cox in
relation to {1) who can acquire shares under the awards {u) the
basis for deterrmiming hus entitlement to and the terms of the
shares to be provided under the awards and (1) any adjustment
that may be made for any vanation of share capital or special
dividend without prior shareholder approval in general meeting
except for minor amendments to benefit the administration of
the awards to take account of a change n legislation or to
obtam or mantam favourable tax, exchange control or regulatory
treatment

The Remuneration Committee canfirms that it s of the view that
the package offered to the new Chairman 1s appropnate was
necessary to recruit the individual reflects the nature of the role
and the challenges presented by the Company's current position
and that the Company is not paying any more than was
necessary to facihitate his recruitment
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Long Term Inceative Plan {‘20104TIP’)

Shareholders approved the 2010 LTIP at the 2010 Annuat General
Meeting to replace the long term incentive plan { LTIP Jwhich
expired in May 2010 Under the 2010 LTIP an annual award

of up to 100% of base salary 1s conditronally allocated to each
Executive Director {excluding the Chairman) Messrs Williams
Brocksom and Michaelson were granted awards of 100% of
salary in 2010 {ts anticrpated that grant levels i 2011 will

be unchanged

These shares are refeased to the Executive three years from
the date of grant of award contingent upon predeterrmined
performance targets being met The performance conditions for
awards in 2011 will be based on a comparison of the Company’s
Tota! Shareholder Return { TSR ) against the censtituents of

the FTSE all share index excluding financial and investment
companies over a three vear period commencing at the
beginrung of the 2011 financial year Twenty five per cent

of the award will vest if TSR 1s ranked at the median of the
comparator group fising on a straight-line basis to full vesting

if the Company s TSR s ranked at or above the upper quartile
In addition the Company s absolute TSR has to be positive over
the three year performance period and the Committee must be
sausfied that there has been an underlying improvement in the
Company's financial performance

Awards may be satisfied with newly issued shares or existing
shares

Share Usage

The 2010 LTIP coatains limsts which control the 1ssuance of

new shares to satisfy share awards This imit restrnicts the 1ssue
of new shares to an amount equivalent to no more than 5% of
1ssued share capital over any ten year period As at 25 December
2010 the level of issuance of new shares was at 0 3% of the
current 1ssued share capital

Sharsholding Guideline

An executive shareholding guideline applies for executive
directors and other selected senior executives To the extent
awards vest under the 2010 LTIP the directors will be required
to retan no less than 50% of the net of tax value of the shares
until 3 helding equivalent to 100% of salary 1s attamed {50% of
salary for other senior executives) This same guideline apphies
to the Charman inrespect of any shares that vest under his
bespoke arrangements
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Performance Graph
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The above graph displays the values, by the end of 2010 of £100 invested in the Company on 31 December 2005 compared with the
value of £100mnvested in the FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding investment trusts} The other poings are the values at intervening
financial year ends

Other Terms and Conditions of Service

The executive directors’ service contracts including arrangements for early termination are considered carefully by the
Remuneration Committee and are designed to recruit retain and maotivate executive directors of the quality required to manage
the Group The Rernuneration Committee considers that a notice penod of no more than one year 15 appropnate |t 1s the Company's
policy not to enter into service contracts that provide written notice of more than one year

In respect of Jonsan Cox, employment will continue until terminated by the Company giving not fess than twelve months written
notice or by Mr Cox giving the Company not less than six months wntten notice David Brocksom's Gareth Willlams and Owen
Michaelson's contracts shall continue untl eather they ar the Company terminate it by not less than 12 months’ notice in writing

When calculating termination payments, the Remuneration Committee takes into account a variety of factors including individual
and Group performance the obligation of the executive director te mitigate is own loss {for example by gaining new employment)
and the best mterests of the Group Should the Company terminate the contract of an executive director, compensation for loss

of office 1s imited to the amounts payable under these notice penods There are no special provisions for payments on a change
of control

Non-Executive Directors

The Board aims to recruit non-executive directors of a high calibre with broad commercial and other relevant expenence
Non-executive directors are appointed for an iitial three year geriod The terms of their engagement are set out in a letter of
appomtment The imtial appointment and any subsequent re-appointment 1s subject to election or re-election by sharehalders
at the Annual General Meeting The letters of appointment contam three month notice penods

Compensation for loss of office 1s imited to the amounts payable under these notice periods The Board considers these notice
pencds appropriate gwen the skills and expertise of the directors

Non-executive directors are paid a basic fee of £40,000 per annum Additional fees of £6 000 per annum are payable for chainng
acommittee These fees will not be increased dunng 2011 Steven Underwood has waived hus rights to receive a fee

Non-executive directors are not elgible to participate m any of the Company's share schemes, incentive schemes or
pension schemes
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Unexpired
term
{as at
Contract Dacember Notice
date 2010) penod
Chairman
Jonson Cox 151110 Rolling 1 year 1year
Executive Directors
Dawd Brocksom 4807 Rotling 1 year 1year
Owen bichaelsan 30710 Rolling 1 year 1 year
Gareth Williams 15210 Rolting 1 year 1 year
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Hazell 19809 1 year 9 months 3Imonths
Mike Toms 21403 1 year 4 menths 3Imanths
Steven Underwood 22710 2years 7 months 3months
Kewvin Whiteman {resigned 31 3 11) 27510  2years 5 months 3Imonths

There are no liabihnes in respect of directors service contracts that require disclosure Copies of directors service contracts and
agreements are available to shareholders for inspection at the Company s registered of fice by apphcation 1o the Company Secretary

Directors’ Emoluments for the Year-Ended December 2010*

Compensation
Annual Benefits for loss Total Total
Salaryffees Allowances bonus n kind of office 200 2009
£000 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
Jonson Cox’ (appointed 15 1110} 45 3 - 1 - 49 -
Executive Directors
David Brocksom?® 235 10 70 [ - ral n
Owen Michaelson?? 19 4 25 1 - 149 40
Gareth Wilhams?®
{appointed 15 2 10) 2m 104 113 4 - 422 -
Jon Lloyd* {[resigned 15 1110} 344 18 - 5 435 436
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Hazell 46 - - - - 46 4B
Mike Toms 46 - - - - 46 4B
Kevin Whiteman {resigned 31 3 11} 46 - - - - 46 46
Staven Underwood
{appomnted 1810) - - - - - - -
Dawvid Jones {resigned 1511 10} 13i - - - 38 169 150

1 Jonsen Cox receves 3 car allowance of £20 000 per annum which 1s included i allowances above

? Owen Michaelson was appainted an executiva director with effect from 1 August 2000 pror to that ha was a non-exetutive director throughout the year and the

total above includes £23 333 as a non-executve fee

3 Davigd Brocksom Owen Michaatson and Garath Wilhams each recewve a car allowance of £10 000 per annum wiich 15 included in aflowances above

* Jon Lioyd resigned as a directar on 15 November 2010 and stayed with the Group until 30 November 2010 at which pont tus employment ceased to faciltata the

handover process to Mr Cox He recerved his contractual entitiement to 12 months basic pay {£375 000) as compensation together with a further £60 000

compensat:on in respect of UK statutory employment nghts

% Gareth Wilhams reterved a retocation payment of £95 000 which 1s inchded in allowancas above

¥ Other than disclosed 1n points | and 3 above benefits in und eompnise car besiefits Iife assurance and health insurance
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Pension Contributions*

Jonson Cox s entitled to receive a pension contribution at the rate of 10% of base salary The other executive directors are entitled
to receive a pension contribution at the rate of 30% of base salary During the year Jon tloyd and Owen Michaelson were members
of the UK Coal money purchase pension scheme The money purchase scheme does not provide additional post-retirement benefits
(ncluding contingent death benefits) Pension contributians on behalf of executive directors were as follows

Pension Pensions
contributions contributions
2010 2009
£000 £000
Jonson Cox!' (appainted 1511 10} 5 -
Dawvid Brocksom? n 70
Owen Michaelson 29 -
Gareth Wilhams' (appainted 15 2 10} 60 -
Jon Lloyd {resigned 15 11 10) 103 113
267 183
¥ Ths was paid as an allowance
Thus was paid to Me Brocksom s persona) arrangements
Long Term Incentive Plan*
Interest Interest
Interast awarded fapsed Interest
at Dec duning during at Dec
2009 the year' the year 200108
End of
No of No of No of No of Vesting performance
sheares shares shares shares date penod
Gareth Wilhams
Executive LTIP 20105 - 575 000 - 575,000 2682013 Dec 2012
Total - 575,000 - 575.000
Owen Michaelson
Executive LTIP 20108 - 575 000 - 575,000 2682013 Dec 2012
Total - 575,000 - 575,000
Dawnd Brocksom
Executive LTIP 2008° 59,650 - 59 650 - 224201 Dec 2010
Executive LTIP 2009* 133734 - - 133734 552012 Dec 2011
Executive LTIP 2010° - 586 687 - 586 687 26 8 2013 Dec 2012
Totat 193,384 586,687 59,650 T2 421
Jon Lioyd {resigned 1511 10)
Executive LTIP 2008° 95319 - 85 319 - 22 4 2011 Dec 2010
Executive LTIP 2009¢ 213703 - 7717 136 532 552012 Dec 201
Total 309,02 - 172,490 136532

! The share pnce at the date of the awards for Messrs Brocksomn Michaelson and Wilhams on 76 August 2010 was 40 pence

? The exercrse price of all outstznding awards 1s £mil As a result of new shazes being i1ssued by the Company n Octaber 2009 {55 556 403 shares were i1ssugs by firm
plactng and 86 489 010 1ssusd by placing and open offer at 75 pence each) all awands granted pnor 1g this date wera adjusted to take account of the placing and

open offer element of the capital raising at the time they vest The ad s d by phying the onginal numbar of shares under each award by 1 154
which was determingd in accordance with the theoretical ex entitiement price { TEEP} formatta

* The performanca condstions for 2008 awards require absotute TSR growth of betwean 25% and 75% for between 30% and 100% of an award 1o vest {with
strarght lina vesting between these powmts) In addition the Company must achieve EPS growth of at least RP+3% pa aver the performance perod Tha TSR
targets for 2008 hava not bean achieved and hence Messrs Lioyd s and Brocksom s awands have lapsed

! Tha performance conditions for 2009 awards cequire absoluta TSR growth of batween 75% and 150% for batween 30% and 100% of an award to vest {with
strarght line vasting between these points) This requires the achievement of share price targets in the estimated range of £1 40 and £2 05 at the end of 2011
{averaged over the final two months of the year) n addition the Campany must achieve EPS growth of at teast RF1+3% p a over the performance penod

* The performance conditians for 2010 awards require refatve TSA performance against the FISE a1l share index excluding financial and (avestment companies
over a three year penod commencing at the begqinning of the 2010 financial year Twenty five per cent of the award will vest if TSR 45 ranked at the madian of the
Comparator group nsing on a straight—iine basss to full vasting if the Company s TSA 15 ranked at or above the upper quartife In addition the Companry s absolute
TSR has to be positve gver the three year performance penod and the Commutize must be satisfied that there has been an underlying smprovement in the
Company s finzncial performance




Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares*
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The directars beneficial interests in ardinary shares of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries at the end of the financial year were as set
out below None of the directors had an interest in shares of ihe Company s subsidiaries during the year

Beneficial Beneficial

interest In interest in

ordmary ordinary

shares at shares at

Dec 2010 Dec 2009

No of shares No of shares

Jonson Cox 100,000 -
Dawvid Bracksom 28,675 28675
Peter Hazell - -
Owen Michaelson 52,366 40 084
Mike Toms 6,200 5200
Kevin Whiteman 15,500 15 500
Steven Underwood 1.652 -

Gareth Willams

There have been no changes n directors interests in shares between the end of the year and 19 April 2011

The market vatue of the Company’s shares during the year ranged from 32 75 pence to 8175 pence {on an unadjusted basis)

The market value on 25 December 2010 was 40 pence

External Appointments

The Remuneration Committee recognises the importance of allowing executive directors to take non-execuuve director roles
elsewhere Mr Cox s business interests include a non-executive directorstup of Wincanton PLC fer which he received {and retained}
fees of £6 000 i 2010 for the period fram his date of appointment as Charman to the end of the financial year Mr Brocksom a
nan-executive directar of Helus Energy PLC received (and retained) fees of £36 000 :n 2010 Mr Michaelson holds a non-executive
directorship within the Peel Group and the Peel Group has confirmed that he recerves no remuneration nor participates in any form
of incentive arrangement which might benefit him currently or at any future time from his involvement with the Peel Group

This report has been approved by the Board for submission to shareholders at the 2011 Apnual General Meeting and signed on

behalf of the Board by Mike Toms

By order of the Board ﬁg
' ( J

Miks Toms
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

19 Apni 2011
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We have audited the financial statements of UK Ceal PLC

for the year ended 25 Oecember 2010 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement the Group and Parent Company
Balance Sheet, the Consolutated Statement of Comprehensive
ncome, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements,
the Conschdated and Parent Company Statements of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been apglied in their preparation
15 applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards { IFRSs ) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the Parent Company financial statements as applied

in accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibihities
Statement set out on page 39, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility
15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with apphicable law and International Standards
on Auditing {UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report, including the opinions has been prepared for, and
anly for, the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not in giving these omnions accept or assume
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other persan to
whom this repart 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matertal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accaunting polictes
are appropriate to the Group’s and the Parent Company s
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of UK Coal PLC

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinien

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group s and of the Parent Company s affatrs as
at 25 December 2010 and of the Group s loss and Group s
and Parent Company's cash flows for the year then ended

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as apphed in accordance with the
provistons of the Companies Act 2006 and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and as
regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

Emphasis of Matter - Going Concern

In forming our epinion on the financial statements which is not
guahfied, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures
given innote 1 to the financial statements concerning the ability
of the Group and the Parent Company to continue as a geing
concern We note that the matters set out in note 1 to the
financial statements indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt aver the

abulity of the Group and the Parent Company to continue as

a gomg concern The financial statements do not include the
adjustments that would result if the Group or the Parent
Company were unable to continue as a going concern

Opimign an Qther Matters Prescribed by the
Compames Act 2006
In our opinion

= the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Compames Act 2006,

+ theinformation givenin the Directors Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements, and

* the nformation given in the Corporate Governance
Statement with respect to internal control and nisk
management systems and about share capital structures
15 consistent with the financial statements




Matters on Which We Are Required to Report
by Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to repart to

you if In our apinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us or

e the Parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not
in agreement with the accounting records and returns or

* certan disclosures of directors remuneration specified by
law are notmade or

* we have aot recerved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit or

* acorporate governance statement has not been prepared
by the Parent Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

e the Directors Statement, set out on pages 37 and 38
in relation to going concern,

e the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relatng
to the Campany s comphance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review, and

Stevae Denison {Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Leeds

19 April 2011

UK COALPLC ANNUALREPOAT ANDACCOUNTS 2010 §3

Notes
{a) The maintenance and integrity of the UK Coal PLC website

{b

15 the responsibility of the directors, the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters
and accordngly the auditors accept no responsibility for
any changes that may have occurred to the finangial
statements since they were mitially presented on the
website

Legislation in the Umited Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdiction
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 25 December 2010

Year ended Year ended
25 Dacember 26 December
2010 2009
Continuing operations Note £00D EDOD
Revenue 2 351479 316 005
Cost of sales {383,937} {392 639)
Gross loss {32,758} {76 634)
Net decrease in fair value of investment properties {34,197} {25,704
Loss on disposal of investment properties {550) (3)
Net loss on investment properties {34,747) {25707)
Profit on sale of joint venture - 6,534
Qther gperating income and expenses 4 {19,890} {10 395}
Dperating loss 2 (87.395) {106 202}
Finance costs {37.643) (25,306}
Finance icome 275 729
Net finance costs 6 (37,368} 24,577)
Share of post-tax profit from jomt ventures 4 147 1719
Loss before tax 3 {124,616) {129 060}
Tax (charge)/credit 8 (479) 1513
Loss for the financial year {125,095) {127 547)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 26 {125,095) {127,547}
Loss per share pence pence
Basic and diluted i {318) 1729
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 25 December 2010
Yoar ended Year ended
25 December 26 December
2010 2009
Note E000 EQ00
Loss for the financial year {125,095} {127 547)
Other comprehensive income
Actuanial gain/{loss) on industry wide pension schemes 2 49,651 {118,239}
Actuarial gain/{loss) on Blenkinsopp pension scheme 24 161 {402)
Actuarial loss on concesstonary fuel reserve 2 (76) {4 110}
Rate change on deferred tax asset refating to retiremant benefit labilities B {325) -
Amortisation of nterest rate swaps recycled from reserves 22 3,848 3134
Movement on deferred tax asset relating 10 cash flow hedges B {1.357) {sn}
Revaluation of property transferred from operating to investment properties 13 1,223 52
Total comprehensive loss for the inancial year (711,970} {248 023)
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the Company (71,970) {248 023}

The notes on pages 58 to 97 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Share
Ordmary premium Other Retaned Totat
shares account reserves earmmngs equity
Note £000 £Q00 £000 £000 £000
Balance at January 2009 1,572 30,756 301,524 {33,420} 300,432
Loss for the financial year to December 2009 - - - {127 547} (127,547)
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal losses on post retirement benefits 24 - - - {122 751) {122751)
Fair value toss on revaluation of investment properties 13 - - {25 704) 25704 -
Property revaluauan on transfer to investment properties 13 - - 52 - 52
Transfer of realised gain on disposed properties 27 - - {6592} 6592 -
Hedging reserve — amortised in perod 22 - - 3134 - 3134
Movement on deferred tax asset in relation to cash flow hedges 8 - - 1911} - {911)
Total comprehensive loss for the period ended December 2009 - - {30 021) {218 002) (248,023}
Transactions with owners
New shares 1ssued 25 1,421 - - 98 283 99704
Accrual for long term incentive plan habilities 25 - - - 676 676
1421 - - 98,959 100,380
Balance at December 2009 2,993 30,756 211,503 (152,463} 152,789
Loss fer the financial year to December 2010 - - - (125 095) {125 095)
Other comprehensive income
Actuanial gains en post retirement benefits 24 - - - 49,736 49,736
Rate change on deferred tax asset relating to retrement
benefit liability 8 - - - {325) {325}
Fair value loss an revaluation of investment properties 13 - - {34197) 3497 -
Property revaluation on transfer to investment properties 13 - - 1,223 - 1223
Transfer of reahsed gan on disposed properties 27 - - (11 892) 11892 -
Hedging reserve ~ amortised in penod 22 - - 3,848 - 3,848
Movement on deferred tax asset in relavion to cash flow hedges 8 - - {1357) - (1,357)
Total comprehensive loss for the period ended December 2010 - - {42 375) {29 595} {1 970)
Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan liabiities 25 - — - 574 574
_ - - 574 574
Balance at December 2010 2,993 30,756 229,128 {131,484) 81,393
Retaned earnings include a cumulative actuaral loss on the Group’s reurement benefit obligations of £88 463 000 {2009 £138 199 000)
. ’ .
Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Share
Ordinary premium Other Retamned Total
shares account reserves sarnings equity
Company Note £000 £000 E000 £000 £000
Balance at January 2009 1,572 30,756 257 239,562 272,147
Loss for the financial year to December 2009 - - - (6 240} {6 240)
Transactions with owners
New shares 1ssued 25 1421 - - 98,283 99704
Accrual for long term incentive plan liabilities 5 - - - 676 676
Baltance at January 2010 2,993 30,756 257 332,281 366,287
Loss for the financial year to December 2010 - - - {16 960} {16,960}
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal gains on postretrement benefits 24 - - - 161 161

Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan hathties 1<) - - — 574 574

Balance at December 2010 2,993 30,756 257 316,056 350,062
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Balance Sheets

at 25 December 2010
Group Group Company Comgany
As at As at As at Asat
25 December 25 December 25 Dacomber 26 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
Nota £000 £000 £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Operating property, plant and equipment 12 237153 218,395 - -
Surface mime development and restoration assets 12 35,675 22 607 - -
272,828 241 602 - -
Investment properties 13 314,237 3774995 - -
Investment in subsicharies 14 - - 300,310 300 310
Investmentin joint ventures 14 3,410 3263 - -
Deferred tax asset 8 33474 35800 - -
Qther recewvables 15 3,136 1963 - -
628,085 660,623 300,310 300 310
Current assets
Inventories 16 50,334 55759 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 25,916 24,876 211,309 201,847
Cash and cash equivalents 1B 24,901 41,359 384 12 869
101,151 121794 211,693 214716
Total assets 729,236 782 217 512,003 515 026
LIABILITIES
Current habshiies
Borrowings - bank loans overdrafts and finance leases 19 {96.251) (10728} - -
—generator loans and prepayments 19 {26,428) (2990} - -
Derwvative financial instruments 22 {1,145} 721 - -
Trade and other payables 20 (110,557} (104 276) (161,089} {147 658)
Provisions 21 {34,915} {38,556) - -
{229,296) {157 211) {161,089} {147,658}
Net current {liabilities)/assets (128,145} {35477} 50,604 67058
Non-current lrabilities
Borrowings — bank loans overdrafts and finance leases 19 185,361) {117184) - -
—qgenerator loans and prepayments 19 (74,760) {64,619) - -
Dervative financial instruments 2 {5.462) (6 062 - -
Trade and other payables 20 (9,925) {76) - -
Deferred tax liabimties 8 [1,265) (422) - -
Provisions 21 {70,971} {63 151) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 24 {171,603) {220833) (852) {1 081)
(418,547) (472,357) {852) {1081)
Total habslities (647,843} {629 628) {161,941) {148,739
Net assets 81,393 152 789 350,062 366 287
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 25 2,993 2,593 2,993 2,593
Share premium 30,756 30756 30,756 30756
Revaluation reserve 21 129,420 127497 - -
Capital redemption reserve 27 257 257 257 257
Farr value reserve 27 99,713 145502 - -
Hedging reserve 7 (262) {2753} - -
Retaimned {loss)/earmings 26 {181,484} {152 463} 316,056 332,281
Total sharoholders® equity 81,393 152789 350,062 366,287

" D G Brocksom
e Charrman Finance Director

Company Registered Number 2649340

nr:lal slatememages 54 to 97 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 Aprd! 2011 and were signed on its behalf by

L
A

~
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 25 December 2010

Group Group Company Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
25 December 28 December 25 December 26 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note £000 £000 £000 E00D
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the financial year 2 (125,095) 127547 {16.960) {6 240)
Depreciation/impairment of property plant and equipment 12 35,187 32,864 - -
Amaortisation of surface mine development and restoration assets 12 14,033 9,961 - -
Net farr value decrease in investment properties 13 34197 25,704 - -
Net interest payable/{recewable} and unwinding of discount on pravisions B 37,368 24577 {1,303} 5400
Net charge for share-based remuneration 514 676 574 676
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures {147} {1,719) - -
Profit an sale of joint venture - {6 534) - -
Loss an disposal of investment properties 550 3 - -
Profit on disposal of operatng property plant and equipment {243) {172} - -
(Decreasel}/increase in capitalised surface mine restoration assets {19,493) 1456 - -
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 549 {23,753} (68} 1081
Tax charge/{credit} 8 79 {1513) {1.438) 452
Operating cash {outflows}/inflows before movements in working capital {22,041) (65 397) (19,195) 1369
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 5,425 19,007 - -
{Increase}/decrease in recevables (724) 14879 9,344) 146 384)
{Decrease}/increase in payables {5,816} §92 14,768 {74 793)
Cash used in operations {23,156} 159 433} (13,71) {118 808)
Lean arrangement fees paid {1,195} {4 155} (159) -
Consortium relief received 538 - - -
Interest (paid)/received {11,236} {13 406} 1,445 {7,709}
Cash used in operating activities (35,049} {76 994} (12,485) 127517}
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 275 729 - -
Met receipt from insurance and subsidence security funds 3,298 994 - -
Net proceeds from sale of joint venture - 8726 - -
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 22,297 8483 - -
Proceeds on disposal of operating preperty plant and equipment 703 400 - -
Net investment in joint ventures - {208) - -
Development costs of investment properties {2,105} (8064) - -
Pre-coaling expenditure for surface mines and deferred stripping costs (8,404) [6,545) - -
Purchase of operating property, plant and equipment (26,789) {53 233) - -
Cash used in investing activities {10,725) {47718} — -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 93704 - 93704
Net proceeds from/{repayment of) bank loans 12,348 159,278) - -
Net proceeds from generator loans and prepayments 25,801 §3609 - -
Repayments of obligations under hire purchase and finance leases {5,565) 18,072 = -
Cash generated from financing activities 32,614 95 963 = 99,704
Decrease in ¢ash {13,160} {28749) {12,485) {27,813)
At January
Cash 13,587 42,336 12,869 40 682
Cash equivalents 21,712 28 766 - -
41,359 71102 12,869 40 682
Decrease in cash equivalents {net recespt from insurance and subsidence secunty funds} {3,298) {994) - -
Decrease In cash {13,160) |28 748) (12,485) {27 813)
24,51 41 359 384 12 869
At December
Cash a7 13587 333 12 869
Cash eguivalents 24.474 27772 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 18 24,901 41 359 384 12 B69
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 25 December 2010

1 Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted 1n the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently
apphed to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

Basts of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with European Union | EU ) Endorsed International Financial Reporting Standards

{ IFRSs }, {FRIC interpretations and those parts of the Compan:es Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and financial assets and post retirement benefits
and financial habilities {including derivative instruments) at fair vatue through profit or loss

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in canformity with IFRSs requires certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise
its jJudgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the censolidated financial statements are disclosed on pages 67 and 68

Trading accounts within the Group are made up to the last Saturday in December each year Far 2010 trading 1s shown for the year ended on 25 December 2010
{2009 year ended 26 December 2009)

Going concern

These financial statements are preparad on the basis that the Group is a going concern In forming tts opinion as to going concern, the Board prepares cash flow
forecasts based upon its assumptions as to trading with particular consideration to production levels and key risks and uncertainties as summansed on pages
29 and 30 as well as taking into account the available borrowing facilities in hne with the Treasury Policy disclosed in the Directors Report on page 36

The key factors that have been considered in this regard are

» The deep mines operate with a cost base which 1s largely fixed relative to production levels Consequently unexpectedly large interruptions or prolonged
reductians i production can have a matenal adverse impact on cash flow Recent performance has been dlustrative of the difficutties inherent in deep mining
operauons and, in particular the impact of unpredictable geclogical conditions and/or other operational 1ssues on praduction volumes from our deep mines
In particular, development and face installatien progress needs to be sufficiently advanced to enabte new faces to be cperational on the exhaustion of old
faces, as ughhighted at Daw Miltin 2010

e Bank funding arrangements contain in certain cases covenants based upon in particular operating profits adjusted for property revaluations and depreciation
interest cover loan to property values and net asset values Property valuations affect the loan to value covenants and net asset values and similarly net asset
values are affected by operational performance Breach of covenants could result in the need to pay down in part some of these loans additional costs, or a
renegotiation of terms or 1n extremis areduction or withdrawal of faciities by the banks concerned and

* Revenues in respect of certan floating rate contracts capped/collared contracts and uncontracted coat will vary based upen the market price for coal which
15 expressed in dollars and sterling/dollar exchange rates These variables have, over the last year, proved to be very volatile and therefore there 1s a nisk of
unpredictabihiy in coal revenues and cash flows

The Board notes that the matters set out above indicate the existence of matenial uncertainties which may casi sigmificant doubt over the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern Nevertheless the Board confirms its belef that it 1s appropriate to use the going concern basis of preparation for these financial statements
These financizl statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group or the Parent Company were unable to continue as a geing concern

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
fa) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the first ume for the financial year beginning 1 January 2010

* [FRS 3{revised}, Busness combinations, and consequential amendments to JAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements’ 1AS 28 ‘Investments
n associates’” and IAS 31 ‘Interests i joint ventures are effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date 1s on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting perod beginning on or after 1 July 2009

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to business combinations but with some significant changes compared with IFRS 3 For example
all payments to purchase a busmness are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the consolidated income statement There 1s a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non controfling interest in the acquiree erther
at faw value or at the non-controlling nterest s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets All acquisition related costs are expensed There has been no
impact of IFRS 3 (revised) on the current year

As the Group has adopted IFRS 3 (revised) 1t1s required to adopt 1AS 27 {revised) at the same ume 1AS 27 {rewised} requires the effects of all transactions with
non controling interests ta be recorded in equity if there 1s no change in control and these transactions will no fonger result in goodwll or gains and losses
There has been no impact of IAS 27 {revised) on the current year
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1 Accounting Policies continued

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

{B) New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginring 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group
{although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events}

* |FRICY Reassessment of embedded denvatives and JAS 39 Financial instruments Recogmition and measurement effective 1 July 2009 1s not currently
apphcable as the Group does not have any embedded derivatives

* IFRIC 16, Hedges of a netinvestment in a foreign operation’, effectve 1 July 200915 not currently apphcable as the Group dees not have any foresgn investments

+ IFRIC 17 Distnibutions of nan-cash assets to owners’ effective for annual periods beginning on ar after 1 July 2009 This is not currently apphicable to the Group
as 1t has not made any non-cash distributions

* IFRIC 18 ‘'Transfers of assets from customers effective far transfer of assets recewved on or after 1 July 2009 This is not relevant to the Group, as it has not
raceived any assets from customers

+ 1AS i (amendment} ‘Presentation of financial statements this 1s not relevant to the Group as it has not settled a liabiity by the 1ssue of equity

* AS 36 (amendment} Impairment of assets” effective 1 January 2010 and 1s not relevant to the Group as it does not have goodwill to be aflocated for the
purpose of impairment testing

* |FRS 2 (amendments), Group cash-settled share-based payments transactions’ effective from 1 January 2010 Thisis currently not relevant to the Group

* [FRS 5 (amendment} ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations this 15 currently not relevant to the Group

~31

{c! New standards amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 201G not early adopted

+ IFAS 9, ‘Financial instruments 1ssued in November 2009 Tius addresses the classification and measurement of financial assets and 1s hikely to affect the Group’s |
accounting for 1ts financial assets The standard 1s not applicable until 1 January 2013 but 1s avatlable for early adoption The Group s yet to assess IFRS 95 full ‘
impact or determine 1ts date of adoption

\
\
|
\

+ Rewsed IAS 24 Related party disclosures, 1ssued in November 2009 i supersedes |AS 24, Related party disclosures, issued in 2003 The revised IAS 2415
required to be applied from 1 January 2011 Earher application 1n whole or i part 15 permitted The Group will apply the revised IAS 24 from 1 January 2011

¢ Class:fication af nights 1ssues (Amendment to 1AS 32} 1ssued in October 2009 The amendment should be apphed for annual periods beginning on or after
¥ February 2010 Earlier application is permitted This 1s not currently relevant to the Group

*  Prepayments of a mimmum funding requirement {Amendments ta IFRIC 14), 1ssued in November 2009 The amendments correct an unintended consegquence oi
IFRIC 14, 1AS 19— The imit on a defined benefit asset minmum funding requirements and their interaction” Without the amendments entities are not permitted
to recagmise as an asset some voluntary prepayments for minimum funding conteilbutions Thns was not intended when IFRIC 14 was issued and the amendments
correct the problem The amendments are effective for annual periods beginming 1 January 2011 Earlier application 1s permitted The amendments should be
apphied retrospectively to the earhiest comparative period presented The Group will apply this from 1 January 2011 but the impact of adoption 15 not expected to
be significant

* [FRIC 19 Extingtushing financial liabilities with equity mstruments’ This clanifies the requirements of IFRSs when an entity renegotiates the terms of a financial
Inability with 1ts creditor and the creditor agrees to accept the entity s shares or other equity instruments to settle the financial Liability fully or partially The
nterpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on ot after 1 July 2010 Earlier application s permatted This 1s not currently relevant to the Group

Consolidation
The consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of UK Coal PLC { the Company ) and its subsidiarses (togethes "the Group }

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has power to govern the financial and operating policies Control 1s presumed to exist where the Group owns more than
half of the voting rights unless in exceptional circumstances where it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control The consclidated financial
stataments includes all the assets, habihties revenues, expenses and cash flows of the parent and its subsidianies after eheinating intescompany balances and
transactions The resulis of subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the consolidated income statement up to, or from the date contral passes

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to consolidate subsidianies On acquisition the identifiable assets habilities and contingent iailities being
acquired are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisitton Accounting policies are changed where necessary to bring them into line with those adopted
by the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued |

1 Accounting Polictes continued

Cansaolidation continued

Joint ventures are those entities over whose actvities the Group has joint control established by contractual agreement Interests in joint ventures through which the
Group carites on its bustness are classified as jointly controlled entities and accounted for using the equity method This mvolves recording the investment inttially at
cost to the Group and then in subsequent periods adjusting the casrying amount of the investment 10 reflect the Group s share of the joint venture s results less any
impawrment in carrying value and any other changes to the joint venture s net assets such as divdends

Unrealised gams on transactions between the Group and 1ts joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group s mterest in the joint venture Unrealised losses
are also ebrminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting prowvided to the chief operating decision maker The chief aperating decision-
maker who s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive Management
Committee as detailed in note 2

The performance of the operating segments s assessed on a measuie of operating profit/loss This measurement basis exciudes the effect of non-trading exceptional
1tems and finance costs and income which are not included in the results of the operating businesses Total assets for the segments exclude deferred tax and cash
and cash equivalents {unrestricted} as these are managed centrally Cash and cash equivalents that are subject to restriction have been included within the
appropriate segment along with the related provisions

The Group manages its business primarily by reference to operating segments and this approach 1s adopted n the accounting policies as the pnimary segment
Deep mining comprises the underground minimg operations of the Group and related labour services the methane generation operations and the captive insurance
company Surface mining incorporates all mining activities at surface level together with the plant hire operations of the Group The Property Division Harworth
Estates maintans develops and rents the Group s property portfolio Any activity not falling into any of these categonies 1s meluded in the Other segment

Investments
Investments held by the Company in subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost less impairments to write them down to therr recoverable amount

Fareign currencies
The presentational currency of the Group is Sterhing Transactions in other currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction |
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at year end exchange rates and the resulting exchange rate differences are included tn the consehdated income

statement within the results of aperating activities if ansing from trading activities and withun finance costs/income if ansing from financing

All Group companies have a functional currency of Sierling which 1s consistent with the presentational currency of the consolidated Group financial statements

Revenue
Revenue compnises sales {excluding intra group sales} of coal property rental income and other extemal sales, including sales of power

Coal transactions
Revenue 15 recogmised when delivery of the product or serwice has been made and when the customer has a legally binding obligation to settle under the terms of
the contract and has assumed all significant risks and rewards of ownerstup

Alarge proportion of preduction 15 sofd under medium to long-term contracts Revenue 1s only recognised on individual sales when all of the significant nsks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to a third party In most nstances this 1s when the product s despatched being the point at which title to the product
1s transferred to the purchaser

Service transactions
Rental income 1s recognised during the perrad n which rents due to the Group accrue Sales of power are recogmsed when electrcity 1s transferred mto the local
distnbution network

Exceptional items

Iters that are both matenial and non-recuriing and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure and identification withun the consolidated financial
statements are referred to as exceptional items and disclosed within the i relevant income statement category within note 2 segmental reparting |tems that may
give rise to classification as exceptional stems include but are not kmited to significant and maternial restructuring closures and reorganisation programmes, asset
mpawments and prefits or losses on the disposal of businesses

Exceptional items are divided into non-trading and trading exceptional stems, depending upon the impact of the event giving aise to the cost or tncome on the ongoing
trading operations and the nature of the costs or income invalved Non-trading exceptional items include costs and income ansing from rationalisation closure and
business disposals
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1 Accounting Pelictes continued

Exceptional items continued

Property related transactions including changes i the fair value of investment properties, and profits and losses arising on the disposal of property assets are not
included in the defimition of exceptional items as they are expected to recur but are separately disclosed on the face of the consohdated income statement, where
matenal

Coal Investment Aud

Coal Investment Aid 1s received as a contribution towards qualifying expendrture, as defined by the Department of Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform
{ DBERR } incurred by the Group If the expenditure has been charged in the conselidated income statement then the related investment aid 1s credited to the
consolidated mcome statement in the same penod Where the investment aid relates to the purchase of property, plant and equipment, the investment aid 1s
held on the consolhdated balance sheet as deferred income and 1s credited to the consohidated income statement over the kives of the assets to which it relates

Profit or loss on disposal

Oisposals are accounted for when legal completion of the sale has occurred or there has been an unconditional exchange of contracts Profits or losses on disposal
anse from deducting the asset s net carrying value from the net proceeds {being net purchase cansideration less clawback hability ansing on disposal) and rs
recegnised tn the consohdated income statement Net carrying value includes valuation in the case of investment properties and historic cost or deemed cost

less accumulated depreciation in the case of all other property, plant and equipment

In the case of investment properties, the revaluation reserve {which arose on transfer from operating property to investment property) for the property dispesed
of 1s treated as reahsed on disposal of the property and transferred to retained earnings

Investment properties and aperating properties
The Group holds the following types of freehold property

—Working deep mines in production
-~ Working surface mines in production
—Property held for adruinistrative purposes and

- Property held for rental ncome capital appreciation or bath

Working deep menes in production, working surface mines in production and property held for admiristrative purposes are held as operating properties {as these
assets are used or ntended to be used wathin the operations of the Group) and are accounted for at historic depreciated cost in accordance with IAS 16 Property
plant and equipment

All ather freehold properties are held as mnvestment properties (as these are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both) and are accounted for at valuation
and in accordance wath IAS 40 Investment property

Investment propertias

Investment properties compnse freehold land and buildings and are measured at fair value The fair values are determined by obtaining an independent valuation
prepared in accordance with the current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyers External
ndependent valuation firms having appropriate recognised professtonal quatifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued
value the portfolio at each reporting date

In accordance with 1AS 40 for properties transferred from operating properties to investment properties any difference between the book value and the first
valuation on recognitton as an investment property 1s taken toreserves Subsequent gamns or losses ansing from changes in the fair values of assets are recognised in
the consohdated mcome statement, net of any praperty clawback by DBERR (see accounting policy on property clawback) on deemed disposal Investment properties
are not depreciated

Properties being held for their long-term rental mcome or capital appreciation but with the added poiential for coal extraction are held as investment properties
beng transferred to operating properties at far value when planning permission to mine the site has been received and mining operations have commenced and are
transterred back to mvestment properties once mining has terminated

Where the development of investment property commences with a view to sale the property 1s transferred from investment properues to inventories at fai value,
which is then considered to represent deemed cost

Operating propertes

Operating properties which are acquired or constructed are initially recorded at cost being the purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset
nto existing use and subsequently stated at histonic cost less accumulated depreciation {other than freehold land which is not depreciated} Where properties are
transferred from investment properties to operating praperties this transfer 1s made at faw value which s then considered to represent deemed cost
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1 Accounting Pehcies continued

Operating properties continued

Praperties which have historecally been used as working deep mines or working surface menes (operating properties) are transferred to property held for rental
income or capstal appreciation (invesiment properties) when there 1s a change in use, at the point when a decision 1s made to pursue planning with a view to future
development (rather than for short-term sale} or renzal and once miming has ceased |AS 16 1s applied up to the date of transfer and any difference at that date
between the book value and fair value 1s taken to the revaluation reserve

Prapartigs in the course of development

Directly attributable costs incurred in the course of developing a property are capitalised as part of the cost of the property For operating properties depreciation
of these costs follows the depreciation policy for the property Development costs on investment properties are capitalised and the change in value 1s recognised
through the next revaluation

Exploration and evaluation
Explaration and evaluation expenditure compnises costs that are directly attributable to

~ Researching and analysing existing exploration data,
- Conducting geological studies exploratory drilling and sampling
— Exarmining and testing extraction and treatment methods and/or

~ Compiling prefeasibiity and feasibility studies

Exploration expenditure relates to the iitial search for deposits with economic potential Evaluation expenditure anises from a detailed assessment of deposits that
have been entfied as having ecenomic potential

Capitalisation of exploration and evaluaton {pre-coaling} expenditure commences when there 1s a high degree of confidence in the project s viability and hence 1t 1s
probable that future econormic benefits will flow to the Group Such capitalised exptoration and evaluation expendiwre 1s reviewed for impairment when facts and
circumstances idicate that 1ts carrying value exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

Subsequent recovery of the resulting carrying value depends on successful development of the area of interest or sale of the project If a project does not prove
viable all irrecoverable costs associated with the project net of any refated impairment prowisions are written off

Plant and equipment
The cost of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
1t to be capable of operating in accordance with agreed specifications Plant and equipment s stated at histonc cost less accumulated depreciation

Once a mining project has been estabhished as commercially viable expenditure other than that on land, buildings, plant and equipment 15 capitalised under mine
development assets together with any amount transferred from ‘exploration and evaluation’

During the development of a ming, before production commences development stripping costs are capitalised as part of the mvestment i construction of the mine
(see accounting pohcy on mining assets}

Costs associated with commissioning new assets n the period before they are capable of operating n the manner intended by management, are capitahsed
Jevelopment costs incurred after the commencement of production are capitalised to the extent they are expected to give rise to a future economic benefit

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recogrised within other operating income and expense
i the consohdated income statement When revalued assets are sold amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained earnings

Miming assets

Mine development

The purpose of mine development is to access and establish infrastructure i order to allow the safe and efficient extraction of recoverable reserves Depreciation
on mme development 1s charged from the ume when full production commences or from when the assets are pui touse On commencement of full production,
depreciation 15 charged over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves Coal extracted prior to the commencement of full preduction is credited against the
cost of mine devetopment where it can be clearly shown that the produciion of saleable matenal s directly attributable to bring the asset to the condition necessary
for 1t to be capable of aperating in the manner intended by management otherwise such revenue {and the costs of producing the saleable matenal) 1s recogmised in
the consolidated income staterment

Mines and surface works

Assets acquired on the privatisation of British Coat in 1994 were valued at discounted net recoverable value, based on the contemporary mining plans i accordance
with the accounting guidance existing at that time Depreciation 1s charged over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves Subsegquent additions to mines
and surface works are accounted for at cost, and depreciated over their individual estimated reserves
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1 Accounting Policies continued

Mining assets continued

Sersmic and geological mapping costs

Expenditure on seismic and geological mapping costs which increases the value of the reserves by identifying additional reserves over and abave those previously
recogmised or increases the value of the existing known reserves by providing information wiich enables reserve estimates to be increased, 1s capitahised This
expenditure 15 depreciated over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves as these are extracted If the information does not fulfil either of these critena
the cost 1s charged to the conschdated income statement as incurred

Surface ming development and restoration assets

Costs ncurred prior to coaling for surface mines are capitalised as surface mine development and restoration assets within aperating property plant and equipment
and a separate provision for the outstanding restoration and rehabilitation obligations is established Both of these costs are then charged to the consohdated income
statement (net of any residual value} over the recoverable reserves of the mine Expenditure on sites not expected to be worked within ten years s written off

Deferred stripping costs

Overburden and other mine waste matenals are often removed during the iritiat development of a mine site in order 10 atcess the mineral deposit This activity 15
referred to as development stnpping The directly attnibutable costs {inclusive of an allocation of relevant overhead expenditure) are capitalised as surface mine
development assets and are amartised together with restoration and pre coaling costs once coaling commences over the tonnage of coal expected to be extracted

The Group defers stripping costs mncurred subsequently during the production stage of its operations, for those operations where this 1s the most appropriate basis
for matching the costs against the related economic benefits and the effect 15 material

The amount of stripping costs deferred 1s based on the ratio obtained by dividing the tonnage of waste mmed by the quantity of coal mined Stnipping costs incurred
during the peniod are deferred to the extent that the current period ratio exceeds the remaining hife of mine ratio Such deferred costs are then charged against
reported profits to the extent that, n subsequent periods the current period ratio falls short of the e of mine ratio Changes to the hfe of mine ratio are accounted
for prospectively

If the Group were to expense the production stage strpping costs as incurred, there would be graater volatility in the year to year results from operations and excess
stripping costs would be expensed at an earlier stage of a mine s operation

Depreciation

The costs of operating properties excluding freehold land, and the cost of all other plant and equipment less estimated residual value are written off on a straight
line bass over the asset s expected useful ife Residual values and useful ives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date Changes to the
estimated residual values or useful lives are accounted far prospectively The costs of heavy surface mining and other plant and equipment are depreciated at varying
rates depending upon thewr expected usage

Indicative expected lives for non-current assets are set out below

Freehold land not depreciated
Operating properiies {excluding land) 25 to 50 years
Mines and surface works — Heavy minsng equipment 8to 20 years
Plant and equipment

— Plant and equipment 3to 15 years

- Motor vehicles 3to Syears
Impatrment

Operating property plant and equipment are reviewed for imparrment if there 1s any indicatron that their carrying amaunt may not be recoverable

The carrying value of cash generating units {taking into account refated liabiiues and allocated central net assets) 1s tested for impairment by comparison with
expected relevant future cash flows discounted at the pre-tax cost of capital taking nto account appropniate risk, provision 1s made for any impairment identified
Cash generating units comprise indavidual mines or groups of mines depending upon the nature of the income streams derved from each

When a review for impairment 1s conducted the recoverable amount 1s assessed by reference to the higher of value in use {being the present value of expected
future cash flows of the relevant cash generating unit) or ‘fair value less costs to sell Where there 1s no binding sale agreement or active market fair value less
costs to sell 1s based on the best information available to reflect the amount the Group could recerve for the cash generating urut in an arm s fength transaction

Future cash flows are based on

- Estimates of the quantities of the reserves and rescurces for which there 1s @ high degree of confidence of economic extraction,
-~ Anticipated production levels and costs, and

- Antitipated coal prices
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1 Accounting Policies continued

Impairment continued

Cost tevels incarporated in the cash flow forecasts are based on the current fong-term mine plan for the cash generating umt For impawrment reviews recent cost
levels are cansidered, together with expected changes in costs that are compatible with the current conditton of the business and which meet the requirements
of IAS36 Imparment of assets |AS 36 includes a number of restrictions on the future cash flows that can be recogmised in respect of restructunings and
wmprovement related to capital expenditure

Finance and operating leases — as lessae

teases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are treated as finance leases All other leases are treated as operating feases
Assets held under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements are capitalised and depreciated according to the depreciation rate of the applicable asset category
The outstanding capital obligations are included in barrowings Interest 1s allocated to accounting perods aver the hire purchase or lease term to reflect a constant
rate of charge on the remaming balance of the obligation Costs in respect of the cperating leases are charged to the consclidated income statement on a straight
line basis on the term of the fease

Finance and operating leases - as lessor
The Group grants leases over fand and bnldings in the course of 1ts property business These do not substantially transfer the nsks and rewards of ownershsp
10 the lessee, and therefore they are accounted for as operating leases

Financial instruments and derivatives

The Group recogmises financial sstruments when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial assets are derecogrised when
the contractual right to receive the cash flows expure or it has transferred the financial asset and the econamic benefit of the cash flows Financial liabilities
are derecogmsed when the obhgation specified i the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or exprres

Financial instruments are used to support the Group s operations Interest is charged to the consohdated income statement as incurred or earned Issue costs for
nstruments subsequently recorded at amortised cost are netted against the fair value of the related debt instruments on iitial recogmition and are charged to the
tonsalidated income statement over the term of the relevant facility

Financia! instruments are recorded miially at fair value Subsequent measurement depends on the designation of the nstrument, as follows

- Financial assets/habilities held for short-term gain, inctuding derivatives other than hedging instruments are measured at farr value and movements in fair value
are credited/charged ta the consolidated inceme statement in the peniod, and

- Loans and receivables/payables and non-derivative financial agsets/liabiities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, are
measured at amortised cost These are included in current assets/habilities except for instruments that mature after mare than 12 months which are included
mn aon current assets/habilities

The Group holds dervative financial instruments | derivatives ) to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates Denvatives are designated as hedges, when
apphicable, and treated as such from the inception of the relevant contracts Amounts payable or recewvable i respect of interest rate swap agreements are
recogruised as adjustments to the interest expense over the period of the contracts

Changes in the farr value of derivatives that are designated and ef fective as hedges of future cash flows are recogmised diectly in other comprehensive income and
the ineffective portion is recognised immedrately in the consolidated income statemant as a finance cost if the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted
ransaction results in the reeogmition of an asset or habibity then at the ttme the asset or habihty 1s recogrused the associated gains or losses on the denvative
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive mcome are inctuded in the imtial measurement of the asset or iabhty For hedges that do not result in
recognation of an asset or a hability, amounts deferred in equity are recogrised in the consolidaied mcome statement in the same period in which the hedged item
affects net profit or loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold terminated exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that ime
any cumulative gain or loss an the hedging instrument recogmised in equity 1s retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs If a hedged transaction
15 no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recogmised in equity is transferred to the consolidated income statement in the peniod

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not guahfy for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the consohdated imcome statement as a finance cost

Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised nrtially at fair value, net of transaction costs ncurred Barrowings are subsequently stated at amorused cost, any difference between the
proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recogmsed in the consolidated imcome statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method
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1 Accounting Polictes continued

Inventories

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Values of spares and consumables are based on average purchase pnices Appropriate provisions
are made for slow moving and obsolete stock Coal is recogrised as stock when defivered to the surface and is valued at the average cost of extraction

Trade recewables

Trade receivables are recogmised initially at fair value and are suhsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any provision for
impairment A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due Indicators of imparment would include financial difficulties of the debtor, fikehhood of the debtor s insolvency default in payment or a significant deterioration
n credit worthiness Any impairment 1s recognised In the Income statement within other operating income and expenses When a trade recewvable is uncollectable,
1t 1s written off against the allowance account

Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against ‘other operating income and expenses i the consohdated 1ncome statement

Trada payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers Trade payables are classified
as current if payment 1s due within one year or less 1f not they are presented as non-current liabihties Trade payables are recognised inthially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Property clawback

Under the terms of the 1994 privatisation Sale and Purchase Agreement DBERR 1s entitfed to a percentage of any property gain {above certain thresholds and after
deduciing an amount representing corporation tax thereon) accrung, or treated as accruing to the Group as a result of the disposal or deemed disposal or major
development of certain properties acquired at pnivatisation The percentage applied 1s 24% for 2010, reducing by 3 percentage points per annum untid 31 March 2015,
when it reduces 10 zero H properties are disposed of or are deemed to have been disposed of duning this period, a part of the relevant gain will become payabla to
DBERR A habulity for clawback in respect of property disposals 1s recogmised only when an actual or deemed disposal oceurs A hability for clawback on a deemed
disposal as a result of granting a lease 1s recogmised over the Nife of the lease

Cash and cash equivalents
In the preparation of the Group's and Company s cash flow statements cash and cash egquivalents represent short-term hqud investments which are readily
realisable Cashwhich 1s subject to restrictions being held to match certain habisties, 1s included n cash and cash equivalents in the consohdated balance sheet

Provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs

An obligation to incur restoration rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance 1s caused by the development or ongoing production
of a mining property These costs consist of shaft treatment and pit top restoration spoil heap restoration pumping activities and ground and ground water
contamination at deep mines and soil excavation and surface rehabihitation at surface mines

Such casts ansing from the decommussioning of plant and other site resteration work, discounted to therr estimated present value are provided for and capitahsed
within operating property plant and equipment at the start of each project as soon as the obligation to incur such costs anses These provisions do not nclude any
additional obligations which are expected to anse from future damage and are esttmated ¢n the basts of a closure plan These costs are charged against income over
the Jife of the operation, through the depreciation of the asset as an operating cost and the unwinding of the discount on the provision as a financing cost

Costs for restoration of subsequent site damage which 1s created on an ongoing basis dunng produgtton are provided for at their estimated present values and
charged against income as exiraction progresses

Changes in the measurement of a habihty relating to the decommissioning of plant ar other site preparation work that result from changes in the estimated timing
or amount of the cash flow, or a change in the discount rate are added to, or deducted from the cost of the related asset in the current period f a decrease i the
hability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset the excess 1s recognised immediately i the consoldated income statement If the asset value 15 increased and
there 1$ an indication that the revised carrying value 1s not recoverable, an impairment test s performed in accordance with the accounting palicy above

Other provisions

Surface damage {subsidence)

Prowision 1s made for the estimated present value of the cost of damage to structures on the surface as a result of settlement during the preduction phase of
underground mining The provision 1s calculated mn respect of each colhiery location of mintng actvity and type of property atfected or likely to be affected based
on claims expected and cfaims submtted and using historical settlement expenence These costs are charged to the consolidated income statement Movements
in the provistons are presented as an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which 1s shown as a financing cost

Employer and public hability claims

The Group has estabhshed a DBERR approved and Financiat Services Authority [ FSA'} regufated UK based msurance subsidiary {Harworth Insurance Company
Limted) This insures employer and public lizhihity risks buying reinsurance with third parties above certain levels Proviston i1s made for the estimated value of
both known and incurred but not reported third party claims on an actuanally determined basis taking inte account expecied reinsurance recoveries
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued

1 Accounting Pelicies continued

Other provisions continued

Redundancy

Provision s made for the estimated present value of redundancy costs when there 1s a demonstrable commitment to terminate the employment of either an employee
or group of employees The expected amounts of redundancy payments including any amounts in respect of ex gratia payments, are prowided where the employment
termmations have been communicated to employees These costs are charged 1o the consolidated mcome statement Movements in the provisions are presented as
an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which 1s shown as a financing cost

Where contributtons to redundancy costs have been firmly committed by third parties, these contributions are credited to the consolidated income statement in the
same period to the extent that the related redundancy cost has been recognised

Employee benefits

Pension obhgations

The Group operates pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay for employees who joined the Group on privatisation in 1934 Employees
within defined benefit schemes are members of mdustry wide schemes bewng either the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scherme { IWCSSS ) or the Industry
Wide Mineworkers Pension Scheme ('IWMPS }, both of which commenced on privatisatien following the Coal Industry Act 1994 The assets of the Schemes are held
separately from those of the Group being funds administered by Trustees of the Schemes A qualified actuary assesses the cost of current service and revalues the
schemes annually under the prowvisions of IAS 19 Employee benefits using the Projected Unit Credit Method A full valuation for funding purposes 1s carried out by
the Schemes actuaries triennially The Group accounts for pensions and similar benefits under 1AS 19 In respect of defined benefit plans, obligations are measured
at discounted present value and plan assets are recorded at far value Service costs are charged systematically over the servica lives of employees and financing
costs are recognised i the penods 1n which they anse Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in the Consoltdated Statement of Comprehensive Income Funding
for the pension scheme is determined triennially by the scheme’s actuary on assumptions that differ from those employed under tAS 19

The Group also operates defined cantribution schemes i respect of all employees who joined after the privatisation date in 1994 The cost of ths is charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred

Concessionary fuel

Provision 1s made for the estimated hability ansing from the obligation to provide cancessionary fuel benefits to certain retired and current employees The costs
of the concessionary fuel benefits are determined annually by a qualified actuary using the same Projected Unit Credit Method adopted for the pension schemes
The arrangement 1s unfunded so no assets are held directly to meet the obligations The reqular service cost and interest on the scheme habilities are charged to
the consolidated income statement Actuanal gains and losses are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, representing the difference
between actuat and expected performance

Share-based payments

The fair value of share plans 1s recegnised as an expense in the consohidated income statement over the expected vesting periad of the grant The farr value of

share plans 1s determined at the date of grant, taking into account any market based vesting conditions attached to the award Non-market based vesting condrtions
(e g earnings per share targets} are taken into account in estimating tha number of awards hikely to vest The estrmate of the number of awards likely to vest

13 reviewed regularly and the expense charged adjusted accordingly The fair value of employee share option plans is calculated using a generally accepted
simulation model

The proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital {neminal value) and share premium {any increment) when
the options are exercised

Tax

Current tax

The charge or credst for current tax is based on the results for the year adjusted for items that are either not subject to taxation or for expenditure which cannot be
deducted in computing the tax charge or credit The tax charge or creditis calculated using taxation rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date
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1 Accounting Pelicies continued

Tax continued

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognised using the balance sheet hability methed on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponcding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax 1s recagrised in respect of all taxabie temporary timing
differences with certain hmited exceptions

— Deferred tax 1s not provided on the initial recognition of an asset ar iabiity in a transaction that does not affect accounting profit or taxable profit and 1s not a
business combination and

— Deferred tax assets are only recognised if it 1s probable that there will be sufficient profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can
be deducted In deciding whethsr future reversal is probable the directors review the Group s forecasts and make an estimate of the aggregate deferred tax asset
that should be recogmsed This aggregate deferred tax assetis then allocated into the ditferent categones of deferred tax taking account of the fact that the
deferred tax asset in relation to the pension deficit will be recognised over & longer period as the pension liability reverses over the average remaining service
Iife of employees

In relation to mvestment properties a deferred tax hability 1s provided on the basis of normal income tax rules for the proportion of the property’s carrying amount
expected 1o be recovered through use and 1s provided using capital gains tax rules in respect of the remander of the property’s carrying amount (including all land)
expected to be recovered through sale Prowision 1s made for gans on disposal of property plant and equipment that have been rolled over into replacement assets
only where at the balance sheet date there s a commitment to dispese of the replacement assets

Deferred tax I1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pentods in which tming differences reverse based on tax rates and faws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except where 1t applies to items credited
or charged to equity, In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Share capital
Ordingry shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax
from the proceeds

Dividend distribution
Dwidend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recogrised in the financeal statements in the year in which the dividends are paid {in the case of interim
dividends| or approved by the Company s shareholders {in the case of final dividends)

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Many of the amounts included n the financial statements involve the use of judgement and/or estimation These judgements and estimates are based on

management’s best knowledge of the relevant facts and circumstances having regard to previous experience, but actual results may differ from the amounts |
included in the financial statements Information about such judgements and estimation 15 contamed in the accounting polictes and/or the notes to the financial '
statements and the key areas summansed below

Areas of judgement and sources of estimation uncertainty that have the most significant effact on the amounts recagnised in the financial statements are

Estimation of future production levels
Along with estimations required as part of the going cancern review estimates of future production are used in the forecasting process which is used in the
assessment of the carrying value of certain assets impairment charges, colliery asset hves and coal reserve estimates

Review of asset carrying values and impairment charges

The Group performs impairment testing i accordance wath the accounting pohicy stated on pages 63 and 64 The calculation of recoverable amount reguires the use
of esumates and assumptions consistent with the most recent budgets and plans that have been formally approved by management Sigmificant factors considered
when using estimates to assess the carrying value of assets include future coal prices expected annual production, expected colhery operating costs remaining
colliery hives and coal reserves and discount rates Refer to note 12 for the key assumptions used in the calculations

Estimation of colliery asset ves
Camitalised mine development costs (deep and surface mines} are amortised over the tonnage of coal expected to be extracted in the future

If the amount of coal expected 1o be extracted varies, this wall impact on the amount of the asset which shoutd be carried in the consolidated balance sheet
See accounting polcy stated on page 62
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for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued

1 Accounting Policies continued

Judgements in applying accounting polictes and key sources of esttmation uncertainty continued

Detenmination of coal reserve estimates

Reserves are used in the calculatton of depreciation, amoruisation and impairment charges the assessment of Life of mine strpping ratios and for forecasung
the timing of the payment of close down and restaration and clean up costs

In assessing the hfe of a mine for accounting purposes mineral resources are only taken nto account where there 15 a high degree of confidence of economic
extraction There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating coal reserves and assumptions that are vahd at the tme of estimation may change sigmficantly
when new infermation becomes available

Changes In the forecast prices of commodities exchange rates production costs or recovery rates may change the economic status of reserves and may, ulimately
resultn the reserves being restated

Deferral of stnpping costs
See accounting policy on page 63

Capitalisation of exploration and evaluation costs
See accounting policy on page 52

Estimation of fair value of investment property

The farr value of Investment property reflects, amongst other things, rental income from our current leases, assumptions about rental mcome from future leases

and the possible cutcome of planning apphications n the hight of current market conditions The valuation has been arrived at primanty after consideration of market
evidence for similar property although in the case of those properties where it s considered market value will be informed by therr ultimate redevelopment potential,
development appraisals have been undertaken to estimate the residual value of the landhalding after due regard to the cost of and révenue from the development

of the property

In such instances on account of the sensitwity of the market value to the detail of any future planning consent and the potential for matenal vanance in the
actuahty of development costs, as compared with our own estimates tagether with the subjective nature of hope value the values reported are subject to
materal uncertainty, and a change in fair values could have a matenial impact on the Group s results Investment properties are disclosed in note 13

Estimation of post retirement benefit obligations

fetirement benefits represent obhigations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions ta project benefit obligations and fair values of plan assets
Retirement benefit accounting Is intended to reflect the recognition of futere benefit costs over the employee s appreximate service period based on the terms of the
plans and the investment and funding decisions made by the Group These are subject to actuanal estimates of amongst other iterns, rate of return on investments
rate of salary increases rate of price inflation the cost of funding future habibties and post retirement hfe expectancy Details of the significant estimates used are
setoutn note 24

Estimation of other prowisions fincluding clawback habiites)

Prowvisions are dependent on assessments of whether the criteria for recognition have been met including estimates of the outcome and the amount of the potential
cost of resolution Provisions are recogmsed by a charge against income when 1t 1s probable that a habihty has been incurred and the amount of such lability can be
reasgnably estimated

Esumation of close down and restoration costs

Estimated provisions are established in the consolidaied balance sheet and amortised in proportion to the coal expected to be extracted from a site if that expected
tonnage or the actual cost vanes then the provision may be under or over stated Estimates for environmental restoration provisions are based on the nature and
senousness of the contamination as well as on the technology required for clean up The prowisions are disclosed in note 21

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets requires considerable judgement as to the future profitabihty of the nuning business The recagnition of a deferred tax hability
n relalion to property revaluations requires an estimate to be made of the proportion of the value of a property which will be recovered through use compared to the
proportion of the value which will be recovered through sate Oeferred tax is disctosed nnote 8
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2 Segmental Reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segments’, the chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive Management Commutiee, as detailed below
which manages and co-ordinates all strategic and key operational 1ssues As at 25 December 2010 the Executive Management Commuttee consisted of the following
indviduals

Executive Chatrman Jonson Cox
Finance Orector David Brocksom
Managing Directer — Miming Gareth Wilhams
Managing Director - Property Owen Michaglson
Company Secretary Richard Cole

The Committee constders that the Group's operating segments compnise the following

Deep mining

The Group had three operating deep minas tn 2010 {2009 four| located in central and northern England The Group has estmated total reserves and resources of
approximately 100 million tonnes  The closed/sold deep mines consist of the closed Welbeck and mothballed Harworth colienies The Group generates electricity
from mines methane at both operating and closed sites

Surface miming
The Group had six active coaling surface mines (2009 four) and planning committee approval or consent to mine one further site Planming consent in respect of
surface mine reserves of 10 miklion tonnes has either already been granted or application submitted

Property
The Group had a portfolo of approxmately 37,900 acres (2009 43,500 acres) consisting of agricultural and undeveloped land and business parks Certan land has
keen identified as potentially suitable for wind farms and this opportunity 1s being pursued

Other
This includes any operations not controlled by the mining or property businesses and unallocated central activities which do not represent a separate reportable
segment in accordance with IFRS 8

The performance of the operating segments 1s assessed on a measure of operating profit/loss This measurement basis excludes the effect of non-trading exceptional
1terns and finance costs and income which are not included in the results of the operating businesses

Total assets for the segments exclude deferred tax and cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) as these are managed centrally Cash and cash equivalents that are
subject to restniction have been included within the appropnate segment, along with the refated provisions

Revenue
Year Year
ended ended
Deacember December
2010 2009
Aevenue from operauons anses from £000 £000
Sale of goods 345,434 309 528
Rendenng of services 19 660
Rental income 5,726 5817
351,179 316 005

Revenues of appreximately £313 000,000 (2009 £276 000,000] are derived from four {2009 three) extemal custorers These revenues are attributable to the deep
and surface mining segments
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued

2 Segmental Reporting continued

Ongoing Closed
deep deep Deep Surface
mines mines” miming mimng Property Other* Total

Year ended December 2010 £000 £000 £000 EDOO0 £000 £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue — gross 252 878 26840 279719 74 026 6502 6 360,353
Revenue —intra Group [398) - {398] {7.935) [841) - {9,174)
Revenue - external 252 280 26 841 279321 66 091 5 761 6 351179
Operating {loss)/profit before non-trading exceptional items and et

decrease 1 tair value of investment properties {42,908) 1.2 {91,617 e 1.0% 47 {40,112)
Net decrease in fair value of investment properties - - - - {34197) - {33,197
Operating {loss}/profit betore non-trading exceptional items (42.908}) 1,29 {41,617} sz {33,121) 47 {74,309}
Naon-trading exceptional items
Rationalisation closure and other costs 13 810} {1721} {5531) (293) {17) {7 245} (13,086}
Dperating {loss)/profit after non-trading excepuional items (46,118) 1430) 147,148) 89 (33,128) {2.188} (82,395)
Finance costs (22,696}
Exceptional finance costs (9,947}
Finance income 275
Net finance costs (37,363}
Share of post-1ax profit from joint ventures — property 147
Loss hefore tax (124,616)
Tax charge {479)
Loss for the year {125,095)
Uther segmental items
Capital expenditure 43929 - 43 929 105 2270 457 46,761
Depreciation and impairment 32695 288 32983 1877 182 65 35,187
Surface mine development costs and restoration assets capitahsed - - - 27,897 - - 21,897
Amortisation of surface mine development and restoration assets - - - 14033 - - 14,033
Provisions —non-cash charge {2111} 4501 2390 22 286 17 - 24,633

* Closed deap mines intludes incoma and expenditure ansing at the Welbeck and Harworth collienes In 2010 Welbeck colligry was reclassified from ongoing deep mines to ctosad deep mines
t Other consists of operations not controtted by the mining or property businesses and unaliccated central acuvsties which do not represent a separate reportable segment in accordance with IFRS 8

Property aperating loss includes the net decrease in fair value of properties of £34 197,000 and loss on disposat of investment proper ties of £550,000

Non-trading exceptional items

Ratonalisation closure and other costs consists of restructuring costs of £4 860 000 care and maintenance costs for Harworth colliery of £1 721,000 professional
fees in relation to refinancing of £6 727000 redundancy costs of £310 000 offset by a curtaiiment gan of £1 050 000 and other costs of £518 000 All non-trading

exceptional items are included in cost of sales with the exception of professional fees in relation to refinancing which are within other operating expenses

Exceptional finance costs

Following the Group s refinancing w Aprd 2010 previously capiiahised 1ssue costs of bank loans of £2 743 000 were wnitten of{ and the additronal arrangement fees
incurred on the replacement faciities which totalled £4 998 000 were expensed Furthermore, the fair values of the related interest rate swaps which had previously
been hedge accounted totalling £2 206 000 were recycled from reserves to the income statement in line with the relevant accountant standards All of these costs

have been treated as exceptional finance costs {see note 6)
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2 Segmental Reporting continued

Ongoing Closed
deep deep Deep Surface
mines mines"* mining mining Property Other' Total
Yaar ended December 2009 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E£000
Continuing operations
Revenue — gross 197157 53409 250 566 67842 6 630 1 325,099
Revenue —tra Group 1368) - 1368) (7870) {856) - {9.094)
Revenue — external 195 789 53409 250198 59972 5834 1 316,005
Operating {loss)/profit before non-trading exceptional items and
not decroease n fair value of investment properties (65,353) 5133} (70.486) 1853 1229 (24) {67.428)
Net decrease in fair value of mvestment properties - - - - (25 704) - {25,704}
Operating (loss)/profit before non-trading exceptional items {65.353) {5,133) (70,486} 1.853 {24,475} (24) {93,132
Non-trading exceptional items
— Profit on sale of joint venture - - - - - 6534 6534
—HRatignahisation closure and other costs {5052} {13,890) (18 542) {355) - {307} {19,504}
Operating (loss}/profit after non-trading exceptiona! items (70.405) (19,023) (89,428) 1,498 {24.475) 6,203 {106,202}
Finance costs {%5.306)
Finance mcoma 129
Net finance costs (24,577)
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures — property 130
- CoaldEnergy 388
Loss before tax {129,060}
Tax credit 1513
Loss for the year {121547)
Other segmental items
Capital expenditure 69843 - 63843 264 8272 132 78,511
Depreciation 29677 - 29677 2330 163 65 2235
Surface mine development costs and restoration assets capitabsed - - - 5686 - - 5,686
Amortisation of surface mine development and restoration assets - - - 9961 - - 2,961
Provisions — non-cash charge 13222 - 13222 {771) - 20 12471

* Closed deep mines includes income and expendsture arising at the Welbeck and Harworth callsenes In 2010 Welbeck colliery was reclassifiad from ongoing deep mines to closed deép minas and
accordingly the comparative information has been restated to reflect this change
1 Other consists of operations not controlled by the minsng or praperty bus:nesses and unallocated central activities which do nat represent a separata reportable segment in accordance with IFAS B

Property aperating toss includes the net decrease in fair value of properties of £25 704 000 and loss on disposal of investment properties of £3 000

Non-trading exceptionalitems

Rationalisation, closure and other costs are predominantly associated with the deep mines segment and consist of costs and income ansing as a result of the closure
of the Welbeck colliery of £10 456 000 {representing redundancy costs of £10 284 000 imparment of stores equipment of £3 487 000 and smparment of fixed assets
of £629,000 offset by a pension curtailment of £3 954,000) the estimated cost of fines as a result of HSE investigations into recent deep mine incidents of

£5,000 000 care, maintenance and exploration costs of £3 486 000 for the Harworth colliery and other redundancy costs of £662 000

Al non-trading exceplional items are included in cost of sales with the exception of the estimated cost of fines which are within other operating expenses
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for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued

2 Segmental Reporting continued

Total assets Dngaoing Closed
deep deep Deep Surface

mines mines® mining mining Property Other' Total
at December 2010 £000 £000 E000 £600 £000 £000 £000
Segment assets 292 483 203 282 686 59 766 337629 844 690925
Investment in joint ventures - - - - 3410 = 3410
Total segment assets 292 483 203 292,686 59,766 311,039 844 594,335
Cash and cash equivalents [unrestricted} 427
Deferred tax asset 34 474
Total assets per balance sheet 129,236
Total assets Ongomng Closed

deep deep Deep Surface

mnes mines* minng mining Property Other' Total
at December 2009 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Segment assets 292 538 145 292 681 46134 390401 551 729767
Investment In joint ventures - - - - 31263 - 3263
Total segment assets 292,536 145 292,681 46,134 393,664 551 733,030
Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) 13 587
Deferred tax asset 35 800
Total assets per balance sheet 782,417

* Closed deep mines includes the assets of Welbeck and Harworth collieries In 2010 Welbeck colliery was reclassified from ongeing deep mines to closed deep mines and accordingly the
comparative information has been restated to refisct this change
1 Other consists of operations not controlled by the mining o property businesses and unallocated central activities which do not represent a separate reportable segment in accardance with IFRS 8

Cash and cash equivalents that are subject to restriction have been included within the appropriate segment, along with the related provisians

3 Loss Before Tax

Year Year
ended ended
Decemher December
2010 2009
Note £000 £000

Loss before tax is stated after {charging)/crediting
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipmant — owned assets 12 {29.314) {270569)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment — uncer finance leases 12 {5,050) (5 186)
Amartisation of surface mine development restoration and closure asseis 12 {14,033) (9 961}
Impairment of operating plant and equipment 12 (223) (629)
Coal Investment Aid 32 1014 2 867
Loss on disposal of nvestment properties {550 3
Profit on disposal of operating praperty plant and equipment 243 172
Repans and mantenance for deep and surface mining {53,531} {73 967)
Staff costs 5 {176,254} {182 176)
Spares and consumables used {34.117) {45 338)
Operating expense for rental iInvestment praperty {1,842 {2 000)
Operating lease payments {192) {314)

Depreciation and impairment of aperating, plant and equipment are recogmsed within cost of sales on the consolidated income statement
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4 Other Operating Income and Expenses

Year Year

ended ended

December December

2010 2008

£000 £000

Admimstrative expenses (3] {1 241}
Other operating income 33 3.846
Other operating income ang expenses (19,890) {10 395)

Due to the nature of the Group s business, distribution expenses are treated as part of cost of sales QOther aperating income mncludes Coal Investment Aid of
£1,011,000{2009 £2,867000) as disclosed innote 32

$ Emptoyee Information
The average number of persons (including the Board of Directors) employed by the Group during the year was

Group GCompany

Year Year Year Year
ended ended anded ended
December December December December
2010 2009 20010 2069
Number Number Number Number
Deep mining 2247 2443 - -
Surface mimng 538 575 - -
Froperty 1% 20 - -
Qther n 74 8 7
2377 3ii2 8 7

Total staff costs for the Group were

Group Company

Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
December December December December
2010 2009 2010 2009
Staff costs [including the Board of Directors) £000 £000 E000 £000
Wages and salaries 142 956 151 434 2488 1009
Social security costs 14,252 1512 184 120
Pension and post retirement benefit costs 18472 14754 25 183
Share-based payments 5714 676 574 676
176,254 182176 349 1988

Wage and salary costs in 2010 include the benefit of pension curtaiment gains of £1,050,000 {2009 £3 954 000) as disclosed within notes 2 and 24

Key management compensation

Year Year

ended ended

December December

200 2009

€000 £000

Salartes and short-term employee benefits 1514 1441
Post employment benefits 7 279
Termunation benefits 435 216
2.286 1936

The compensation details above are for members of the Executive Management Committee duning the year Current members of the Executive Management
Committee are given on page 69

Directors’ remuneration and interests
Detaited information relating to directors remuneration mctuding details for the highest paid director and their interests in share options 1s indicated by * on
pages 49 and 50 and forms part of these finanoal statements
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6 Finance Costs and Finance Income

Year Year
ended ended
December December
2010 2009
£000 £000
Finance costs
- Bank borrowangs {11,594 {12 569}
— Hire purchase agreements and finance leases {1.237) {998}
— Unwinding of discount on provisions 13,336) {36260
— Amortisation of the issue costs of bank loans (1,446) {2 637}
~ Generator loans and prepayments {8,618) {4 000}
Gams on nterest rate swaps not eligible for hedge accounting 1" 174
Amortisatien of interest rate swaps recycled fram reserves (1.642) {3130}
Fmance costs {27,696) {25,306}
Arrangement fees related to refinancing (4,998) -
Write off of previously caprtalised 1ssue costs of bank loans (2,743) -
Fair value of interest rate swaps recycled from reserves (2.206) -
Excepuonal finance costs (9,947) -
Finance income 75 729
Net finance costs (37.358) (24 577}
7 Auditors Remuneration
Duning the year the Group cbiained the following services from its audhtors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at costs as detailed below
Year Year
ended ended
December December
210 2009
£000 £000
Audit services
— Fees payable to the Company auditors for the audit of the parent Company and the consalidated accounts 75 75
- The audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0 240
Non audit services
— QOther services pursuant to legisiation 50 50
~Tax advisory and compliance services - 38
— Other services 80 288
435 691

From time to time, the Group employs PricewaterhauseCoopers LLP on assignments addiional to therr statutory audit duties where their expertise and experience
with the Group are important They are awarded assignments on @ competitive basis The Audit Committee reviews non-audit assignments quarterly, and approves
alt assignments above a predetermined cost threshold
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8 Tax
Year Year
ended ended
December December
2010 2009
Analysis of tax chargef{credit] in the year £000 £000
Corporation tax —current year - -
- prior year (8) {530}
Deferred tax  —current year (403) {398}
— prigr year {585}
Tax charge/{credit) 479 {1513}
The tax for the year Is different to the standard rate of corporation tax (v the UK of 28% (2009 28%) The differences are explained below
Year Year
ended ended
December December
2010 2009
£000 £000
L.oss befare tax {124,616) {128 080)
Loss befare tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2009 28%) {34,892) {36137)
Effects of
Expenses not deducted and income not chargeable for tax purposes 9,502 5B15
Daferred tax not recogmsed 24,091 29924
Rate change on opening deferred tax asset 906 -
Priar year deferred tax movement 830 (585
Prior year consgrtium rehef adjustment {8) {530)
Tatal tax charge/icredit) 479 11513)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the atility method using a tax rate of 27% (2009 28%j} In the 2011 Budget a 2% reduction in the
new main rate of corperation tax was announced which will be in force from 1 Apnit 2011 wath further reductiens 10 the main rate proposed to reduce the rate by 1%
per annum to 23% by 1 April 2014 However, these changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore are notincluded in these

financial statements

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforced right to offset current tax assets against current tax habilities and when the deferred
taxes relate to the same fisca! authority The Group s deferred tax hability in respect of fixed assets can all be offset in this way apart from the liatahty of £1,265,000

{2009 £422 000) In respect of revaluation gains on investment properties expected to be recovered through future use

As at As at

December December

2010 2009

£000 £000

Deferred tax asset — to be recovered after mare than 12 months 34474 35800

Deferred tax ablity — to be recovered after more than 12 months {1,265) 422)

Net deferred tax asset 33,209 35378
The movement on the net deferred tax asset 15 shown below

Year Year

ended ended

December December

2010 2009

£000 £000

At the beginnming of the year 35378 35306

Amounts (charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (487} 983

Amounts charged to consoligated statement of comprehensive income {1,682} (911

At the end of the year 33,208 35178
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8 Tax continued
Deferred tax continued

Adeferred tax asset of £34 474 000 {2009 £39,800,000) has been recogmsed to the extent that 1t1s expected to be recovered based on forecasts of future taxable
profits Further deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed owing to the uncertainty as to thewr recoverabibity If these deferred tax assets were recognised, the

total asset would be £185,006,000 (2009 £173 896 000) as set out below

As at As at As at As at
December December December December
2010 210 2009 2009
Total Total Total Total
amount potental amount potential
recognised assat recognised asset
£000 £000 000 £000
Fixed asset tming differences {1.265) 42,655 (422} 36144
Other timing differences - 9994 - 10335
Trading losses 23915 84,240 24 80O 69 684
Retvement benefit habihities 8175 46333 95100 61833
Cash flow hedges 1784 1,784 1900 1900
Net deferred tax asset 33,209 185,006 35,378 179 896
The fixed asset timing difference recegrised relates to the deferred tax liability ansing from the directors estimate of the proportion of revaluation gains on
investment properttes which will be recovered through use No tax hability has been recognised in relation to the balance of the gain which 1s expected to be
realised through sale, due to the fact that the Group has unrecogmsed capital losses brought forward of £379,000 000 (2009 £387 DOC 000)
The movement on deferred tax asset charged to equity during the year 1s as follows
mo 2009
£000 £000
Movement on deferred tax asset relating to retirement benefit habilities in the penod {325} -
Movement an deferred tax asset relating to cash flow hedges i the penod 11,387) {an)
Deferred tax asset movement charged to equity {1,682} {911)

The Company has no recognised or unrecogmised deferred tax in 2010 or 2009

9 Loss for the Financial Year tor the Parent Entity

As permitted by sectron 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company’s income statement and statement of comprehensive income have not been included
separately in these financial statements The loss for the financial year was £16 960 000{2009 loss £6 240 000)

10 ODmvidends
No dvidends have been paid or proposed in relation to 2010 or 2009

11 Loss Par Share

Loss per share has been calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue and ranking for

dividend during the year

In calculating the diluted loss per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares s adjusted for the diluting effect of share options potentially 1ssuable

under the Group s employee share option plans

Year Year

ended ended

December December

010 2009

£000 £000

Loss before tax (124,616) {129 060)
Tax {charge)/credit (479} 1,513
Loss for the year {125,095) {127 547)
Weighted average number of shares used for bastc earmings per share calculation 299,238,160 175 008 424
Dilutwve effect of share aptions nd -
Weighted average numbar of shares used for diluted earmings per share calculation 299,298,160 175 008 424
Basic and diluted foss per share {pence) (41 8) (729}

Basic and diluted loss per share, as adjusted to extlude tax for the year 15 41 § pence {2009

loss 73 7 pence)
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12 Operating Property, Plant and Equipment

Surface mine
Deep minas development
mcluding and
Operating surface Plant and Sub restoration
properties works equipment total assels Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At January 2010 15008 876 027 89,715 980,750 40 757 1021507
Additions 165 43929 562 44 656 27897 72 553
Misposals (338) {62 591) [BG7) 163 736) 13 238) (76 974)
Transfer from investment properties 9,485 - - 9,485 - 9485
Transfer to investment praperties {336) — - {336} - {336)
At December 2010 23,984 B57 365 89470 970 819 55,416 1026 235
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At January 2010 4282 686 549 0824 761 755 18150 779905
Charge for the year 162 31667 3135 34 954 14033 481997
Imparment - 273 - 223 - 223
Disposals —- (62 591) (685) (63,276} {12,442) {75718)
At December 2010 4,448 655 848 73304 731 666 19 741 753,407
Net book amount:
At December 2010 19,540 2m,517 15,096 237,153 35,675 272828
Cost
At January 2009 14 861 808 417 90 790 914 168 49628 963 796
Additions 208 69843 396 70 447 5,686 76133
Misposals - {2233 {1471} {3704} 14 557} (18 261)
Transfer to nvestment properties [16) - - {161) - {161}
At December 2009 15008 976 027 89715 980 750 40757 1021,507
Accumulated depreciation and impairment.
At January 2009 4119 659 731 B8 517 732 387 21148 753 516
Charge for the year 163 28422 3650 321235 9951 42 196
Imparrment - 629 - 629 - 629
Disposals - {2 233} {1243} (3 476) {12 960} (16 436)
At December 2009 4282 686 549 70 924 761755 18150 779 905
Net bogk amount:
At December 2009 10726 189 478 18791 218 995 22607 201 602
At January 2009 10 842 148 686 22273 181 801 28 479 210 280

Surface mine development and restoration assets net book amounts includes capitalised pre-coaling costs of £11 373 000(2009 £12 446 000) restoration/
rehabihitation costs of £19,554,000 (2009 £6 720 000) and deferred stripping costs of £4 748,000 (2009 £3,441,000} These are depreciated over the estimated
tonnage of the recoverable reserves as these are extracted

Surface mine asset additions in the penod of £27 897 000 (2009 £5 686,000} comprise £5,416 000 {2009 £3,911 000} for pre-coabing expenditure, £19,453,000
{2009 £141,000} recogrused as a non-current asset on the creation of a corresponding provision for restoration and rehabiitation costs and £2 988,000
(2003 £1,634 000) of deferred stripping costs

Included 1n operating property, plant and equipment 1s £25,543,000 {2009 £78 452 000) of capitahsed work in progress which 1s not deprectated

Assets under finance leases disclosed under deep mines including surface works and plant and equipment have the following net book amounts

As ot As at

Dacember Decermber

2010 2009

£000 £000

Cost 41,589 45989
Aggregate depreciation (29,702} 126 273}

Net boak amount 11,887 1971
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12 Operating Property, Plant and Equipment continued

In accordance with IAS 36, operating property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impatrment if there 1s any indication that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable An impawrment review has been performed for the operauing property plant and equipment of the deep and surface mining business as a result of the
significant operating loss recorded by the Group in the year ended 25 December 2010

Following the completion of mining at Welbeck calltery in the period an impairment charge of £223 000 was required for 1ts remaining fixed assets {2009 £629 000}
No further impairment charges were required The estimates of recoverable amount were based on value-n-use calculations using a pre-tax discount rate of 14%
which reflects the specific nisks of the business These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five
year penod Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated assuming a zero growth rate

Sensitivity analysis

No impairment of fixed assets would be recogmsed by the Group if any of the followang occurred i 1solation

- The revised estimated pre-tax discount rate apphed to the discounted cash flows was increased to over 20%,

- The estimated long-term price of coal of $105/tonne assumed tn calculzuing the discounted cash flows decreased by 10%, and

— The estimated level of annual production assumed in calculating the discounted cash flows decreased by 5%

13 Investment Properties

As at Asat

December Oecember

2010 2009

At valuation ~ Group £000 £000
At the beginning of the year 377,995 404 658
Additons 2,105 8064

Disposals (23,740} {3 236)

Fair value decrease (34,197} {25 704)
Transfer from operating property, plant and equipment at net book amount 36 161
Transfer to operating property plant and equipment at net book ameunt {9,485} -
Revaluation of property transferred to investment propertigs 1223 52
At the end of the year 314237 377995

The properties were valued at December 2010 i accordance with the Appraisal and Valuatwon Standards of the Roya! Institution of Chartered Surveyors by three
firms, BNP Paribas Real Estates Smiths Gore and Bell Ingram all independent firms with relevant experience of valuations of this nature The valuation excludes any
deduction of rehabilitation and restoration costs which are stated within provisions in the balance sheet

Key assumptions within the basis of fair value are

- The sites wil be cleared of redundant buildings levelled and prepared ready for development,

— The values are on a basis that no matenal environmental contamnation exists on the subject or adjening sites or where this 1s present the sites will be remediated
to a standard cansistent with the intended use, the costs for such remediation besng separately provistoned and

— No deduction or adjustment has been made in relation to clawback provistons or oiher taxes which may be payable in certan events
Had the above investment properties been carried at hustoric cost rather than farr value their value would be £90 827 000{2009 £103 995 040

Land and buildings with a value of £298,617,000 {2009 £351 319,000} are subject to fixed charges to cover borrawings against those assets and £8 842,000
{2009 £9,010,000} are subyect to restrictions as they cover insurance requirements Other property plant and equipment is subject o floating charges to cover
liabihties due to bank borrowings
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14 Investments
Investment in joint ventures

The Group holds 50% of the 1ssued ordinary shares of UK Strategic Partnership Limited a joint venture with Strategic Sites Limited for the developrent of certan

investment properttes The first development was at the Advanced Manufacturing Park at Waverley South Yorkshire

The Group also halds 50% of the 1ssued ordinary shares of Bates Regeneration Limited, a joint venture with Banks Property Limited for the development of an

mvestment property at Blyth, Northumberland

In January 2009 the Group saold its 50% shareholding in CoaldEnergy Limited to Hargreaves Services PLC realising a profit on sale of £6 534 000

a0 2009

E00C E000

At the beginning of the year 3263 2778
Additions - 1,060
Share of profit — preperty joint ventures 147 1331
— Coal4Energy Limited - 388

Sale of share of jomnt venture - {2 294)
At the end of the year 340 3263

The Group s share of the results of its joint ventures all of which are unlisted and its share of the assets {mcluding goodwill and habilities) are as follows

Country of Assets LiabiEities Revenues Profit/{loss) Interest held

mcorporation £000 £000 €000 £000 %
2mM0
UK Strategsc Partnership Limited England and Wales 4062 {3 030) 242 19 50
Bates Regeneration Limited England and Wales 3495 1.117) - 28 50
Total 7557 {4147) 242 147
2009
UK Strategic Partnership Limited England and Wales 4079 (3 16B) 323 40 50
Bates Aegeneration Limited England and Wales 2350 - - 1291 50
CoaldEnergy Limited England and Wales - - 7506 388 -
Total B 429 {3166} 7.827 1719
Investment in subsidianes
Company £000
Cost.
At January and December 2010 473 224
Provision for impairment:
At January and December 2010 (172 914)
Net book amount:
At December 2010 300,310
Cost:
At January and December 2009 473224
Provision for imparrment.
At January and December 2009 (172 914)
Net book amount:
At December 2008 300 310

Investments n subsidianes are stated atcost As permitted by section 616 of the Companies Act 2006 where the rehef afforded under section 612 of the Companies
Act 2006 applies cost s the aggregate of the nominal value of the relevant number of the Company’s shares and the fair value of any other consideration given to
acquire the share capital of the subsidiary undertakings The directors consder that to give full particulars of all subsichary undertakings would lead to a statement of
excessive fength A list of principal subsidiary undertakings 1s given below A full st af subsidiary undertakings wili be annexed 1o the Company’s next annuaf return
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13 Investments continued
Investmentin subsidiaries continued
Particulars of the principal Group undertakings at December 2010 are as follows

Proportion of
nominal value
of 13sued share
Description capital held by
of shares the Company
Company name Principal activity held %
Harworth Group Liemted Holding company Ordinary -
UK Coal Holdings Limited Holding company Ordmary 100
Harwarth Insurance Company Limited Insurance Ordinary 100
Harworth Power Limited Power generation Ordinary -
Mining Services Eimited Surface mining plant operations Ordinary -
UK Coal Mtning Limited Underground and surface mining and
property activities Ordinary -
Centechnolagy (UK} Limited Labour contracting services Ordenary -
EQSinc Ltd Property company Ordinary -
Harworth Estates (Agnicultural Land) Limited Property company Ordinary -
Harwurth Estates (Waverley Prince) Limited Property company Ordinary -
Potland Burn Limited Praperty company Ordinary -
The Group owns 100% of the 1ssued share capital and voting nghts of all of the above companies
All of the above companies are ncerporated in England and Wales They are all meluded 1 the Group s consolidated results
15 Other Receivables — Non-Current
Amounts classed as non-current are as follows
Group Company
As at Asat As at Asat
December December December December
00 2009 00 2009
£000 £000 E000 £000
Other recewvables 3138 1963 - -
Other receivables include £2 071 000{2009 £1 335 000} of long-term deposits held as secunity for surface mines
16 Inventonies
Group Company
As at Asat As at As at
Decembar December Dacember December
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000
Coal stocks 32,906 20 630 - -
Spares and consumables 17428 27069 - -
50,334 55 759 - —

The cost of spares and consumables recogrised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £34,001,000 {2009 £45 338 000}

During the year a provision of £nel {2009 £3,487 000} has been created against spares and consumables stock A net realisable value prawision credit of £1 379 000

{2009 £3 600 000 charge) against coal stocks was mctuded m cost of sales in the year
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17 Trade and Other Recewvables - Current

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
December Decemnber December December
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £000 E£000 £000
Trade receivables 23,415 18 388 - -
Less provision for imparment of trade recevables 97} (273) - -
Net trade recevables 338 18115 - -
Other receivables 174 1348 72 1296
Prepayments and accrued income 2424 5213 77 -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - — 210,260 200 551
N6 24676 211,309 207 847

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate to their fair value All of the Group s recewvables are denominated in Sterling

Due to the nature of the Group s activities a substantial amount of the Group’s revenues anise from a himited number of large industrial customers within the power
generation sector Whilst this concentration provides an increased credit nisk due to the financial strength of the power sector, management does not believe that
this 1s significant

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recevables as disclosed mnote 22 The Group does not hold any
collateral as secunity

Movements on the Group provisions for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

Group
2o 2009
£000 £000
At the beginning of the year m 136
Provisions for impairment of recevables 9 266
Recervables written off during the year as uncollectable {21) {n
Unused amounts revessed (164} (128)
At the end of the year 97 273

The creation and releases of the provision for impaired recervables have either been included in cost of sales or other operating income and expenses In the
consol:dated income statement Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there 15 no expectation of any additional recoveries

The other classes of assets within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

As of December 2010 there were provisions against trade recervables of £97 000 (2009 £273 000} which were impaired The Group has assessed that it 1s unlikely
that these receivahles will be recovered The ageing of these receivables 1s as follows

Group
As at As at
December December
2010 2009
E£000 £000
3 to 6 months 9 -
Over 6 months 88 273
97 273

As of 25 December 2010 trade recewables of £23 293 000 (2009 £23 910 000) were fully performing

As of December 2010 trade receivables of £2,526 000(2009 £493 000) were past due but not impaired These relate ta a number of customers for whom there is no
recent history of default and consequently there are no indications at the reporting date that they will not meet their payment obhgation The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables 1s as follows

Group
As at As at
Decemher December
2010 2009
£000 E00D
Upto 3months 230 408
Over 3 manths 199 85

2,526 493
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18 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company
As at As at As at Asat
December December December December
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £0090 £000 £000
Cash deposited to cover insurance reguirements 15,705 19104 - -
Subsidence secunty fund 8,769 8668 ~ -
24,474 7772 - -
Cash held and other cash balances 427 13587 384 12 869
24,30 41 359 384 12 869

Total cash held subject to restrictions to cover insurance and surface damage habilities at the year end amounts to £24 474 000(2009 £27772,000) In addition to
this secunity to cover surface damage liabilities in the form of an insurance bond for £10,000 000 {2003 £10 000,900} 1s 1n place

19 Borrowings

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

December December December December

2010 2009 2010 2009

Current £000 £0CO £000 £000
Bank loans overdrafts and finance leases due within one year or on demand

Secured — bank loans and overdrafts 52,427 5710 17 -

Finance lease obligations 3,824 5018 - -

56,251 10728 17 -

Generator loans and prepayments due within ane year 26,428 2990 - -

Total borrowings — due within ona year or on demand 82,679 13718 17 -

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

December December December December

2010 2009 2010 2009

Non-current £000 £000 €000 £000

Bank loans overdrafts and finance leases due after more than one vear

Secured —bank loans and overdrafts 75,752 104943 - -

Finance lease obligations 9,600 12 251 - -

85,301 17194 - -

Generator loans and prepayments due after more than one year 74,760 64 619 - —

Total borrowings — due after more than one year 160,121 181813 - —

The carrying value of the Group s external borrowings which consist of floaung rate and fixed rate short-term borrowings approximates to fair value All of the
Group s borrowings are denominated in Sterling

Bank loans and overdrafts due within one year or on demand are stated after deduction of unamortised borrowing costs of £380,000 (2009 £2,307 000} Non-current

bank loans and overdrafts are stated after deduction of unamortised borrowing costs of £402 000 {2009 £1,859,000) The Group s Revolving Credit Facibty { ACF )
¢an be drawn when required and 1s committed, following the new financing arrangements agreed n April 2011, until July 2012

Durtng the period the Group had a net drawdown of £12 348,000 against bank {oans and overdrafts This consists of bank loans repaid of £19 944 000 and
£32 282 000 drawn down on the ACF The amount drawn under the RCF 15 disclosed as current as at the balance sheet date 1t was due for repaymentin July 2011

In the period interest and finance fees of £1794,000 were capitalised to the Harworth Estates {Waverley Prince) Limited | HEWPL } foan

Addiuonal finance lease facilities of £1 730 000 have been secured during the peniod These leases are due to be repaid in the period 2011 through to 2014
The balance of the movement relates to payments against finance leases

In 2009 the Group entered into certam contracts for coal supply which have resulted in increased cash flows to the business in 2009 and 2010 These henefits
together with accrued implied interest are treated as generator loans and prepayments and will be repaid either out of future revenue or as separate repayments
which process commenced in October 2010 and ends in 2015 Interest is charged on these outstanding amounts using actual or implied interest rates At December
2010 these generator loans and prepayments were not fully drawn When fully drawn the average interest rate on these halances will be 1%

No new bank Toans were taken out during 2010 {2009 £3 451,000)
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19 Borrowings continuad

The bank loans and overdrafts are secured by way of fixed and floating charges aver certain assets of the Group

Property disposals continue to result m the reduction of facihbies In Aprd 2011 the Group extended its banking arrangements The principal changes were

— Lloyds Banking Group has agreed 1o replace GE Capital in respect of approximately one third of the RCF ine 10 amortise by £1 000 000 a menth from 30 Aprid 2011

- an extension to the matunity dates of the RCF the additional revelving credit line the Harwaorth Estates {Agricultural Land} Limied faciity and the EQS Inc Ltd
facility to the end of July 2012 and

— the financial profile of the HEWPL term loan facility was modified so that intesest which had been rolled up into the loan during 2010 and which was due to be paid
in July 2011 will now be paid in July 2012 together with a principal repayment of £22 000 000 Thereafter amortisatien of the loan will cantinue at £2 5 million per
guarter until final repayment in July 2013

A £10 000,000 unsecured stand by facility from Peel Holdings Limited 1s available for drawing in the event the RCF is fully drawn This facility which oniginally expired
atthe end of July 2011 has after the balance sheet date, been extended to July 2012

The maturity profile of the Group s drawn and undrawn external bank facilities 15 as follows

2010 2009

£000 £000

Expiring wathin 1 year 104,385 g07
Expirng between 1 and 2 years 60,443 64 348
Expiring between 2 and 5 years 20,12 94 454
185,540 166 819

These facilities are all nominally at floating interest rates, but interest rate swaps with principal value of £21,950 000 (2003 £120,211,000) are held to convert an
element of these borrowings to fixed Interest rates

The matunity profile of the Group s bank and finance lease borrowings 1s as follows

e 2009
Generator Genarator

loans and Finance loans and Finance
Debt prepayments leases Total Debt prepayments leases Total
Group £000 £D00 ED00 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000
Within 1 year 52427 26,428 3824 82,679 5710 2890 5018 13718
Between 1 and 2 years 52,754 41,286 6412 105512 11,068 17043 3426 31537
Between 2 and 5 years 17,938 33,4714 3,137 54,609 93875 45134 8425 147 834
Mare than 5 years - - - - - 2442 - 24472
128179 101,188 13,433 242 800 110 653 57609 17 269 185 531

The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

As at As at

December Decemper

2010 2009

£000 E00D

Withia 1 year 4,757 5993
Between 1 and Syears 10,431 13 859
15,188 19,852

Future fingnce charges on finance leases (1,755) (2583}
Present vatue of finance lease habihties 13,433 17 269

Lease habiities are effectively secured as the nights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default
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20 Trade and Other Payables

Group Company
As at Asat As at As at
December December December December
210 2009 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current
Trade payables 53,128 60933 - -
Amounts owed to substdiary undertakings - - 147,427 147913
Taxation and social security 12130 3757 - -
Accruals and deferred income 44,629 39530 13,662 145
110,557 104 216 161,089 147658
Non-current
Trade payables 9925 76 - -
Included within accruals and deferred income is £nil {2009 £1 011 000) representing contnibutions to capital expenditure in the form of Coal Investment Aud
{see note 32)
21 Provisions
At At
January Provided Released Uthsed Uawinding December
0o In year n year n year of discount 2mo
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employer and pubhic habihties i6 181 3283 [1028) {5396) - 13,040
Surface damage 13210 4626 [1854) {1145) 501 15.338
291391 7909 {2 882) [6541) 501 23,378
Claims 19 - - - - 15
Redundancy 9067 310 - (6215) - 3
Restoration and closure costs of surface mines 39261 21,933 - {11563) 1941 51,632
Restaration and closure costs of deep mines
- shaft treatment and pit top 1031 - {506} 1331) 392 9.866
- spoil heaps 2892 - {73} - 10 2829
— pumping €osts 5433 - {2 851) - 189 m
Ground/groundwater contamenatian 5337 925 (132) - 203 6333
101707 31137 |6 444) {24 650) 3336 105,086

!n accordance with IAS 37 Prowisions contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ discounting has not been applied against the insurance provistons in respect

of employer and publc habihities

The total of provisions created net of provisions released was £24 593 00042009 £12 471,000} This included a net charge of £n:l (2009 £10 716,000) for

non-trading exceptional items

Prowisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows

As at Asat

Dacember December

00 2009

£000 £000

Current 3495 38 556
Non current 7017 63151
105,086 109 707

Provisions are expected to be settled within the timescales set out in the followsng table 1t should be noted that these are based on the information avaitable at the
time the consolidated financial statemenis were prepared and are subject to a number of esttmates and uncertainties as noted on pages 57 and 68
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21 Provisions continued

More

Within 1-2 25 than 3
1 year years years years Total
£000 £000 E0CD £000 £000
Employer and public habilities 5801 2747 4052 440 13,040
Surface damage 3,525 314 b 585 2087 15,338
9326 5 888 10 637 2,527 28,378
Claims 15 - - - 15
Redundancy 3162 - - - 3162
Restoration and closure costs of surface mines 21403 1,908 14119 14 202 51,632

Restoration and closure costs of deep mines

- shaft treatment and pit top 764 300 2134 6668 9,866
- spoil heaps 245 134 2550 - 2929
— pumping costs - - - 2 mn
Ground/groundwater contamination - 889 — 5444 6,333
34 915 9119 29 440 31,612 105,086

The nature of the Group’s obhgations and an indication of the uncertainties surrounding each of the above provisions ts provided below

Employer and public liabilities

Provisions are made for current and estimated obligations in respect of claims made by employees cantractors and the general pubic relating to accident or disease
as a result of the business activities of the Group These relate primanly to the claims held by the Group's captive insurance company Harworth Insurance Company
Limited Ownership over land and buildings and dedicated ¢cash depostts, as set outin notes 13 and 18, has been granted to cover these provisions

Surface damage

Provision i1s made fer the Group's liability to compensate for subsidence damage arising from past mining aperations Claims can be lodged by the public up to six
years after the date of the relevant damage The estimate 1s based on histoncal claims expenence, following a detailed assessment of the nature of the damage
fareseen Security over dedicated cash deposits and an insurance bond, as set out in note 18, has been granted to cover these provisions

Claims
Provision 1s made for warranty claims against a former engineering business

Redundancy
Provisien 1s made for current estimated future costs of redundancy and ex-gratia payments to be made where this has been communicated to the employees
concerned

Restoratian and closure costs of surface mines
Provisions are made for the total costs of reinstatement of soil excavation and for surface restoration such as topsail replacement and landscaping Costs become
payable after coal mining has been completed Further lrabilities for aftercare can extend after restoration for a period of up to six years

Shaft treatment and pit top — Prowisions are made to meet the Group s hablity to fill and cap all mine shafts and return pit top areas to a condition consistent with
the required planning permission No hiabilities will anse until decommussioning of each individual colliery The current pit top provision reflects existing planning
permissions that require pit areas to be restored to former use usually agricultural The Group will, where posstble seek planning permission for development use,
which If successful may reduce the expected cost

Spori heaps — Prowvisions are made for the costs payable to bring spoil heaps to a condition consistent with the required planning permission and to complete approved
restoration schemes An element of spoil heap restoration 1s ongoing afthough the majority of costs will be incurred after the decommusstoning of a colhiery

Pumping costs — There 15 a legal requirement to continue pumping activities at certain mine sites following closure and for a penied inte the future The provision
15 based on current experience and the net present value of future cost projections Pumping costs on continuing operations are expensed as ncurred

Ground/groundwater contamination — Prowisions are made for the Group’s legal or constructive obligatian to address ground and groundwater pollutants at
its operating sites The provision ts based on estimates of volumes of contaminated soil and the histonical contract costs of ground contamination treatment
These costs will usually be incurred following the decommissioning of a site
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22 Financial Instruments and Denvatives
The Group s finangial mstruments include derivative financial instruments, trade and other recevables cash and cash equivalents interest bearing borrowings and
trade and other payables

Dervative financial instruments

Assets Liabilitres
£000 £000

At the end of the year
Fair value - 2010 - 6607
Fair value ~ 2009 - 6 783

The Group uses interest rate swaps In order to fix the interest payable on a large proporton of i1s vanable rate borrowings The fair value of derivative financial
nstruments 1s valued where possible, using quoted market prices The far value of these instruments equals the book value at December 2010 and Cecember 2009

For those swaps which are effective cash flow hedges under IAS 39 the effective portion of their farr value movements has been deferred in reserves Exposures have
been presented as net positions by a counterparty whenever there 1s the intention and abibity to legally set off assets and habiities

Under IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’, all derwvative financial instruments are classed as level 2 as they are not traded in an active market and the farr
value 1s therefore determined through discounting future cash flow

Hedging relationships
As at December 2010 cash flow hedges were in place up to July 2012 The movement in effective hedging relationships in the year was £nit {2009 gain £4 000}
and 1s recorded in the hedgig reserve within other comprehensive income (see note 27)

The mevement in the fair value of derivatives which are not effective for hedge accounting purposes, or which were not designated as cash flow hedges, being a gan
of 17700012009 £1714 000} In the year 15 presented withi finance costs in the consolidated income statement {see note §)

The application of hedge accounting in the year has resulted in an income statement credit of £177,000{2009 £1 714 000) for neffective hedges, no movement
m reserves (2009 credit of £4 000) for effective hedge relationships and a charge to income of £3 848,000(2009 £3,130,000) representing the amortisation
of reserves for discontinued hedging retationships

The total notional principal of cutstanding interest rate swaps that the Group 1s committed to 1s £21 950 000 (2009 £120 211000} The weighted average fixed
interest rate and penod to matunity of the Group s interest rate swaps was 8 63% (2009 773%) and 1 4 years {2009 1 4 years), respectively

The Group has entered inte a notional principal £40,000,000 fixed interest cap agreement at a rate of 4 5% effective between 29 July 2011 and 31 July 2013
The terms of the agreement provide that the initial notional principal 1s amertised by £20 000 000 per year

The Company has no interest rate swaps (2009 nl)

Other financial assets and habilities

December 2010 Cecember 2005

Book valus Faw value Book value Fair value
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 24,901 24901 411359 41359
Trade and other receivables 29,052 29,052 26639 26639
Liabilities
Bank borrowings 128119 128,179 110 653 110 653
Finance lease habilities 13,423 13433 17269 17269
Generator loans and prepayments 10,188 113507 67609 78617
Trade and other payables 120,482 120482 104 362 104,352
Derwative financial instruments 6.607 6,607 £783 6783

In accardance with IAS 39, the Group tlassifies the assets and babilties in the analysis above as ‘loans and receivables and other financial labihities respectively
At the 2010 and 2009 year ends the Group did not have any held to mawnty or available for sale financial assets or held for trading financia! assets and fiabilities
as defined by IAS 39

At the year end date the Company held cash and cash equivalents of £384 000 {2009 £12 869 000)

The carrying value of the Group s external borrgwings, which consist of floating rate and fixed rate short-term borrowings, approximates to fair value Detauls of the
maturity profile of these financial kabilities are included in note 19

The carrying value of other long-term receivables approximates to far value

For other financial assets and habiliies which are all short-term in nature the carrying value approximates to fair value
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23 Financial Risk Management

The Group s activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market (interest rate and currencyl nisk credit nsk and hquidity sk The Group’s overall nsk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group s financial performance The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures

Risk management s carried out by a central treasury function under policies approved by the Beard of Directors Group treasury idenuifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks n close co-operation wath the Group's mining and property businesses The Board provides written principles for overall nsk management as well
as written policies covenng specific areas such as interest rate nsk credit nsk use of derivatve Enancial mstruments and non-derivative financial instruments
and investment of excess hquidity

Interast rate risk

The Group has an exposure to interest rate nisk ansing on changes n interest rates i the United Kingdom and therefore seeks to hmit this net exposure This 1s
achieved by the use of derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps and fixed interest caps to hedge a propor tion of the Group's borrowings over the penod of
the related loan The interest rate swaps allow the Group to exchange at specified intervals {usually quarterly}, the difference between contracted fixed rates and
floating rate interest payable on borrowings calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts The Group does not enter into instruments which are leveraged
or held for speculative purposes

I# interest rates on sterling denaminated borrowings durning the year had been 2% higher or lower with all ather variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been £2 067 000 {2009 £539 000} lower or higher as a result of ugher or lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings which have not been
ecanomically hedged with an interest rate swap contract An increase or decrease of 2% represents the Group s assessment of a reasenably possible change

In interest rates

The sensitiity of post-tax profit s cafculated based on floating rate borrowings at the balance sheet date after deducting amounts hedged into fixed rates by
Interest rate swaps

Currency nisk
During 2010 and 2009 the Group's borrowings at variable and fixed rates were denominated in Sterhing No foreign exchange centracts were entered into in 2010
{2009 nil) as the Group has no direct matenal foreign exchange exposure

Credit sk

The Group s subject to credit nisk ansing from outstanding recevables and committed cash and cash equivalents and depasits with banks and financial institutiens
The Group s policy 15 to manage credit exposure to trading counterparties within defined trading hrruts - All of the Group s significant counterparties are assigned
nternal credit imits

The Group sells coal to large industnial and commercial customers All of its electricity supply industry customers have an investment grade quality rating {from
Standard and Poor’s) of between A and BBB+ No credit imits were exceeded during the reporting period and management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties

If any of the Group s customers are independently rated, these ratings are used Qtherwise, if there 1S ng independent rating the Group assesses the credit quality
of the customer taking into account iis financral position, past expenence and other factors

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty credit risk on cash and cash equivalent balances The Group holds cash on deposit with a number of financial institutions
The Group manages 1ts credit risk exposure by hmiting individual deposits to clearly defined lirmts For banks and financial institutions only independently rated
parties with an mvestment grade quahty rating {from Standard and Poor’s) of at least A- rated are accepted

Liquidity nisk

The Group I1s subject to the nisk that it will not have sufficient borrowing faciltties to fund its existing business and its future plan for growth The Group manages
its iquidsty requirements with the use of both short and long-term cash flow forecasts These forecasts are supplemented by a financial headroom pasition which
15 used to demenstrate funding adequacy for at least a 12 month period

The Group s main source of liquidity 15 sts operating mining business Cash generation by this business 1s dependent upon the reltability of the Group s deep
and surface mines i producing coal, the realised selling price for coal, operational nsk and capital investment expenditure and maintenance requirements

Prudent hquidity risk management smplies mastaming sufficient cash and marketable secunties and the avalabiity of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facihties Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses Group treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping commutted
credit hnes available

The net debt position, excluding restricted cash of £181,944,000 at the beginning of the year had increased during the year to £242,373 000 at the year end
The Group generated negative cash flow from operating activities after snvesting activities for the year of £45 774 00042009 £124 712 600)

As at December 2010 74% of the Group’s tota! bank facities of £153 000,000 was provided by the Lloyds Banking Group plc
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23 Financial Risk Management continued

Liquidity sk continued

The Group s committed barrawing facilities are subject o financizl covenants based on lean to value { LTV }calculations which are tested on a quarterly basis

These covenants restnict the Group s ability to access committed facilities within a range of 25% - 75% of the value of certain properues on which the borrowings
are secured These covenants affect 99% of the bank facilities as at December 2010 The Group 1s currently in compliance with these covenants at the year end date
However a decrease in the valuations of the Group s properties could impact on covenants resulting in increased charges and potential reduction in the avallability
of facilities

The table below analyses the Group s financial liabilities which will be settled on a net basis into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date 1o the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed n the table are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2and5 ysars 5 years
£000 E000 £000

At December 2010
Bank borrowengs 58,750 63844 13,831 -
Finance lease liabilties 4,757 1.095 3336 -
Generator loans and prepayments 31,53 49,483 42,633 -
Trade and other payables 110557 9,925 - -
Derwative finangial instruments 1931 2482 1,713 -

At December 2009

Bank borrgwings 12898 17066 100 844 -
Finance lease Liabilitigs 54893 4774 9585 -
Generator loans and prepayments 4,432 20853 51155 Z2442
Trade and other payables 104 276 76 - -
Derwative financial instruments 21992 988 27) -

Capital nsk management

The Group 15 subject to the nisk that its capital structure will not be sufficient o support the grawth of the business The Group s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group s abihity to continue as a going concern i order to provide returns for shareholders and henefits for other stakeholders and to maintan
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dnadends paid to shareholders return capital to shareholders 1ssue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt

Cansistent with others in the industry the Group momitors capital on the basis of the gearng ratio This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity
Net debt 1s calculated as total borrowings [including borrowings as shown i the consokidated batance sheet) less unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

The gearing ratios for the Group at December 2010 and December 2009 were as follows

2010 2009
£000 £000
Total borrowings 242 800 195 531
Less Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents {nate 18) (427 {13,587}
Net debt 242373 iB1944
Total equity .39 i52 789

Geartng ratio 297.8% 119 1%
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The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes in respect of all employees who joined after the privatisation date i 1994 Contributions to defined

contribution schemes in the year amounted to £1,530,000(2009 £1 494 000}

Defined benefit abligations
The balance sheet amounts in respect of retirement benefit obligations are

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
December December December December
2010 2009 200 2009
J 0] £000 £000 £000
Industry wide schemes 134,269 184 873 - -
Blenkinsopp 852 1,081 sz 1081
Concessionary fuel 35,482 14 879 - -
171,603 220833 1081

Contributions to defined benefit schemes during the yaar amounted to £22 118 000 (2009 £20,591,000} At December 2010 contributions of £nit remained unpaid

{2009 £nil)

Industry wide schemes

The Group operates pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The majority of the employees within defined benefit schemes are members
ot industry wide schemes betng erther the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme ['TWCSSS'} or the Industry Wide Mineworkers Pension Scheme

{ IWMPS ) both of whrch commented on privatisation following the Coal Industry Act 1994 The pension schemes are valued annually by qualified independent
actuaries for the purposes of 1AS 19 and the preparation of finangial statements The assumptions which usually have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are the discount rate which1s based on bond yields and the rates of increases in salanes and pensions The main assumptians underlying the valuations

of the Group sectrons of each scheme were as follows

As at As at

December December

2010 2009

Discount rate 55%pa 57%pa
Rate of return on Invesiments 65%pa 69%pa
Rate of salary increases — IWMPS 3™ pa 45%pa
Rate of salary increases — IWCSSS 44%pa 45%pa
Rate of price inflation 3% pa 35%pa
Rate of return on equities 13%pa I pa
Rate of return an debt 48%pa 51%pa

Rate of cash commutation

00%-250% 200%-250%

Year ended Year ended
December December
2010 2009
Longevity at age B0 for current pensioners (years)
IWMPS and IWCSSS
-Men 225-754 221-238
IWCSSS
~Women 273 264
Longevity at age B0 for future pensioners (years)
IWMPS and IWCSSS
- Men 234-257 234 247
IWCSSS
-Women 8.1 272

IWCSSS penstons in payment are assumed to increase i fine with price nflation For the IWMPS the assumed pension increases depend on the period of service
accrual (before April 1997 no increases 1997 to 2005 i Line with consumer price inflation after April 2005 1 9%}

The overall expected rate of return on assets 1s based on an historic view of the yields from equities and the rates prevailing on applicable bonds at the balance

sheet date
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24 Retrement Benefit Obligations continued
Industry wide schemes continued
The amounts recognised tn the consolidated balance sheet are as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value of plan assets 431,746 379949 16 464 372188 348,325

Present value of funding abligations {566,015} {564 822) {390543} 1421 081) (442 794)

Net liability racogntsed in the balance sheet {134,269} (184 873) (74 079) {48 893) {94 469}

None of the pension schemes owns any shares in the Company

The amaunts recegnised in the consohdated income statement are

Year ended Year ended

Oecember December

2010 2009

€000 E000

Current service cost {15.250) {11413}

Interest cast {32.265) {25472}

Expected return on plan assets 26,421 20694

Effect of curtallment 1,050 3954

{20,044) {12 237)

Current service cost 1s charged to cost of sales, with interest cost less expected return on plan assets included i admimstration expenses and the effect of
curtailment is included in non-trading exceptional items A further £49 651 000 gain {2009 £118 239 000 loss) has been reflected in the statement of comprehensive
incame in the year This represents the net effect of expenience and actuanal gains and losses on the schemes in the year

Year ended Year ended
December December
2n0 2009
Change tn assets £000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year 379949 316 464
Expected return on plan assets 26,4821 20,694
Actuanal gains an assets 12.155 31840
Employer contnbutions 20,997 15,682
Plan participants’ cantnibutions 360 31922
Benefits paid (16317} {12 653)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 431,746 379 949
The mayor categories of the schemes assets are as follows

As at As at
December December
2010 2003
£000 E00D
Equity secunities 289,900 260 044
Debt securisies 141,846 119 905
431,746 378949

The actval return on plan assets was a gaw of £43 57600012009 £52,534,000)
Year ended Year ended
Decemtbher December
010 2009
Change in defined benefit obhigations £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit gbligation at the start of the year {564.822) 1390 543)
Current service cost {15.250) {1413
Interest cost {32,265) {25 472)
Plan parucipants contributions (3.601) (3922)
Curtailment gain 1050 3954
Actuarial gain/{loss) 32,496 {150,079)
Benefits paid 16377 12 653
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (566,015} {564 B22)
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Year ended Year ended

Decembear December

2010 2004

Analysis of the movement of the balance sheet liability £000 £000
At the start of the year (184,873} {74079}
Total amounts recogmised rn the income statement {20,044) {12 237}
Contributions 20,997 19682
Net actuarial gain/{loss) recognised in the year 49,651 {118 239)
At the end of the year {134,269) {184 873}
Year ended Year ended

December December

200 2009

Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recogmised in equity £000 £000
At the start of the year {128.239) (10 000}
Net actuartal gamn/{loss) in the year 49,651 (118,239}
At the end of the year (78,568} {128 239}
Year ended Year ended

December December

amo 2009

Expertence gains and losses £000 £000
Actual return less expected return on schemes assets 12,155 31840
Expenience gains/({lnsses) ansing on schemes habihves 1386 1412
Changes 1n assumptions underlying present value of hiabilities 25,110 {142 667)
Net actuarial gain/{loss) 49 651 {118 239)
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

History of expenence losses £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Actual return less expected return an schemes’ agsets 12,155 31,840 (92 915) (237 9,634
Percentage of year end scheme assets % 8% (29]% 0% 3%
Expenence gains/{iosses) anising on schemes’ liabilities 1,386 [7412) {2 914) {1495] 13721}
Percentage of the present value of schemes Labilites 1% 1% 1% 0% 1%

Contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of tnenmal valuations using the projected credit unit method The most recent valuations for the
purpese of determining cantnibutions were at 31 December 2006, which were agreed in December 2008

The contribution expected to be paid to the schemes during the year ending December 2011 1s around £22,000,000 including current service costs

Blenkinsopp

Blenkinsopp 1s a section of the IWMPS covering the gension arrangements of the various companies comprising parts of the former British Coal Blenkinsopp
Collieries Limited was sold by the Group in 1998 However 1t has since gone into hquidation and the retirement liabilities have reverted io the Group and Company
The higbihty as at December 201015 £852,000 (2009 £1 081 000) employer's contnbutions for the year were £158,000{2009 £70 000) the amount recognised in
the incorne staternentis £90 000 (2009 £83 000} {current service costs £28,000{2009 current service cost £38,000) and interest cost less expected return on plan
assets £62 000({2009 £51000}} and the gain recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive ncome s £161 000 (2009 £402,000 loss} Cumulateve actuanal gaing

recognised i equity for this Blenkinsopp section were £485 000 {2009 £324 000}

These are the only defined benefit obligations held by the Company
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24 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued
Concessionary fuel

The Group operates a concessionary fuel arrangement in the UK Provision for concesstonary fuel is made to cover the future retirement costs for those employees
who currently benefit as part of therr regular terms of employment, or former employees who are benefiting in retrement This relates only to employees who
transferred under privatisation A 1% annuzl allowance 1s made to reduce the provision for employees who are expected to be unable to take the benefits

An actuanal valuation for the purpose of IAS 19 was cammed out by an independent actuary at December 2010 The major assumpiions used by the actuary were

Year ended Year ended
December Oecember
2010 2009
Discount rate 55%pa 57%pa
Inflation assumption 34%pa 35%pa
The amounts recogrised in the balance sheet are as follows
ano 2008 2008 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet {36,482} {34 879) (29,277) 23 443) 24 727)
The amounts recognised in the consohidated income statement are
Year gnded Year ended
December December
2010 2009
£000 £000
Current service cost (515) (441)
Interest cost (1,975} {1850}
(2,490} {2 331}

Current service costs charged to cost of sales and interest cost 1s mcluded tn admimstration expenses A further toss of £76 000 {2009 £4 110 00C loss) has
been reflected m the statement of comprehensive income in the year This represents the net effect of expenence and actuanal gawns and losses on the schemes

In the year
Year ended Year ended
December December
2010 2009
Analysis of the movement of the halance sheet halilsty £000 E00D
Concessionary fuel reserve at the start of the year {34,879} 29277}
Current service cost (515} {441}
Benefits paid to former employees during the year 363 839
Interest cost (1,975} (1830}
Actuanial loss 76} {4110)
Concessionary fuel reserve at the end of the year (35.482) (34 879)
The valuatign of the balance sheet halihity has been based on market prices for the related coal products at the end of the year
Year ended Year ended
December December
210 2009
Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recogmsed in equity £000 £000
At the start of the year (10,284} (6174}
Net actuanal loss i the year (76} {4 110}
At the end of the year {10,360) {10 284)
Year ended Year ended
December December
amo 2009
Expenence gains and lasses £000 £000
Experience gain on concessionary fuel reserve 942 3559
Changes i assumptions underlying present value of liabilitigs {1,018} {7,669}
Total amount In statement of comprehensive intome {76) {& 110}
200 2009 2008 2007 2006
History of expenence gains and losses £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Experience gain/(loss) an concessionary fuel reserve 942 3559 18 510} 444 1258
Percentage of concesstonary fuel reserve 3% 10% [29]1% 2% 5%




25 Called Up Share Capital

UKCOALPLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010 93

2010 2009

Number Number
Group snd Company of shares E0CO of shares £000
Aothonsed share capital
At the start and end of the year
Orcinary shares of 1 pence each Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited
Issued and fully pard
Ordinary shares of ¥ pence each
At the start of the year 299,288,160 2993 157,252 747 1572
Issued during the year ~ - 142 045 413 1421
At the end of the year 299,298,160 2993 299,298 160 2993

No shares vested during 2010 or 2009 under the Long Term !ncentive Plan [ LTIP )

Long Term Incentive Plan

A Long Term Incentve Plan was introduced in 2000 for executive duactars and senwor executives Detalls of the plan are set aut in the Drectors Remuneratian
Report Duning the year nil {2009 nil} shares were reserved against the award of shares under the LTIP The shares are awarded at an exercise price of £nil

Shares outstanding at December 2010 are as follows

2010 2009
Number Number
Exercisable from 2011 - 414 936
Exercisable from 2012 853,969 1,023 288
Exarcisable from 2013 3,551,837 -
The awards grantéd n the year were valued using a Monte Carlo simulation utihsing Black-Scholes methodology as follows
2010 2009 2008 2007
Grant date 26 Avgust 5May 22 Apnl 18 September
Share price at grant daie £039 £138 £4 53 £503
Exercise price £mit Eml Eml Eml
Number of employees 19 i8 18 10
Shares under gption 1551837 886740 366160 144 406
Vesting penad [years) 3 3 3 3
Expected valatiity 578% 46 1% 343% 335%
Option hfe {years}) 3 3 3 3
Expected hfe {years) 235 266 269 223
Risk free rate 0.88% 192% 436% 497%
Possibility of ceasing employment before vesting 5%pa 5%pa 5% pa 5%pa
Fair value per optign £0.11 E0 82 £ 97 £2 83

The expected volatrhty 1s based on historical volathty over the last five years The expected life 15 the average expected period to exercrse The nisk free rate
of return 1s the yie!d on zero-coupon UK Government bonds of a term conssstent with the assumed option hfe A reconciliation of option movements over the year

to December 2010 1s shown below

Year ended Year ended
December December
2010 0%
Number Number
Qutstanding at the start of the year 1,438,224 638 696
Granted 3551837 886 74D
Adjustment for share 1ssue uphft - 234 890
Expired {584,255} 1322 102)
Qutstanding at the énd of the year 4,405,806 1438224

The total charge for the year relating to employee share-based payment plans was £5674,000 (2009 £676,000} all of which related to equity settled share-based

payment transactions
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26 Retaned Earnings

2010 2009
Group Note £000 £000
At January {152,463) (33 £20)
Loss for the financial year {125,095) 127 547)
Actuanal gains/{losses) on post retirement benefits 24 49,7136 {122 751)
Rate change on deferred tax asset celating to retirement benefit hability ] (325) -
Fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties 13 34,197 25704
Transfer of realised gain on disposed properties 27 11,892 6592
New shares issued - 98 283
Acerual for long term incentive plan habilities 25 574 676
At December (181 484) {152 463)
2010 2009
Company Note £000 £000
At January 332281 239 562
New shares 1ssued - 98 283
Loss for the financial year {16,960) {6 240)
Actuanal gain on post retirement benefits 24 161 -
Accrual far leng term incentiva plan habilities 25 574 676
At December 316,056 332 281
27. Other Reserves
Caprtal
Hedying tuation demyp Faw value
raserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Group Naote £000 £060 E000
At January 2009 {4 976) 130,339 257 175904 301,524
Revaluation on recognttion of investment properties 13 - 52 - - 52
Transfer of realised gain on disposed properties - {2 894) - (3 698} (6 532)
Fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties 13 - - - [25704) (25 704)
Hedging reserve ~ amartised (n period 3130 - - - 3130
Cash flow hedges 4 - - - 4
Movement in daferred tax asset on cash flow hedges B {911} - - - (911}
At January 2010 {2,753} 122,497 57 146,502 271,508
Revaluation on recognition of invesiment propertias 13 - 1223 - - 1223
Transfer of realised loss/(gain) on disposed properties - 700 - {12 592) (11892}
Far value loss on revaluation of investment properties 13 - - - {34187 {34,197)
Hedging reserve — amortised in period 3848 - - - 3,848
Movement in deferrad tax asset on cash flow hedges 8 1357} - - - {1357
At December 2010 {262) 129420 257 9973 229,128
Capntal
redemption
resarve Total
Company £000 £000
At January 2009 and 2010 and December 2009 and 210 251 57

None of the other reserves balances a1 either the 2010 or 2009 year ends represented realised reserves
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28 Capital and Other Financial Commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting penod but not yet incurred 15 as follows

As at As at
December December
20 2009
Group £000 £000
Operating property plant and equipment 21,746 26274
Investment praperty 844 1118
28,530 271392
29 Operating Lease Commitments
Group
The minimum lease payments due to the Group under non-cancellable operating leases all of which relate to property rentals are as follows
As at As at
December December
mo 2009
£000 £000
Lease expiring
Within 1 year 5,302 4632
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years 8964 80861
After byears 20,189 21 695
34,455 34388
The mimimumn lease payments due by the Group under non cancellable operating leases, which refate to rights over land usage and plant hire, are as follows
As at As at
December December
2010 2009
£000 £000
Lease exptring
Within 1 year 1,184 227
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years 44N 38R
After 5 years 1337 412
6942 994

The Company had no interest in any operating leases {2003 £nil}

30 Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees have been given in the normal course of busingss for performance bonds of £4,209,000 (2003 £4 285 000 to cover the parformance of work under a

number of Group contracts

The Company 1s liable for the pension schemes contnbutions and deficit on the tndustry wide schemes Furthermere the Company has provided a guarantee for an

msurance band for £10 000 000 which 1s used as secunity to cover surface damage habilities

There are no ather matenal contingent liabihties at December 2010 for which provision has not been made in these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 25 December 2010 continued

31 Related Party Transactions
Group

During the year the Group made various payments to industry wide defined benefit pension schemas Details of these transactions are set outin note 24 to the

financial statements
Key management compensation 1s disclosed in note 5

Transactions with joint ventures
The following transactions were carrnied cut with the joint ventures

Year ended Year ended

December December

2010 2009

Bates Regeneration Limited £000 £000
Sale of services to related party 12 -
Sale of land ta related party - 750
12 750

Profit of £l {2009 £1,231,000 loss) was recogmised i the perioct on the sales to Bates Regeneration Limited
Transactions with Bates Regeneration Limited were carried out on commercial terms and condrtions and at market prices

Balances owing fram/(to) joint ventures
Bates Regeneration Limited
The balance ansing from sales at December 2010 was £12,000 (December 2009 £nil}

Company

The Group manages its financing arrangements centrally Amounts are transferred within the Group dependent an the operational needs of individual companies
All amounts are repayable on demand, carry no security and incur interest at LIBOR +2% except the UK Coal Mining Lumited owed to balance which s net and broken

down into two elements as detatled below
- Amounts owed to of £172 536 000 (2009 £165 791 000) are payable by 31 January 2013 and mcur nterest at LIBOR +3 5%,
— Amounts owed by of £93,631,000 (2009 £85 522,000} are receivable on demand are unsecured and incur interest at LIBOR +2%

Details of the Company s recewvables and indebtedness are set out in notes 17 and 20 and amounts due from ar owed to subsidiary undertakings are set out below

As at As at

December December

210 2009

Bwed to £000 £000
UK Coal Mtning Limited (78,905} (80 269)
Harworth Power Limited (84171 {8430)
Centechnology (UK} Limited {1,7113) (2 444)
Harworth Park Services Linited {10) (8}
UK Coal Holdings Liruted {35) {35)
Harwerth Group Limited {6,450) {6 376}
Harworth Guarantee Co Limited {46) {45)
Potland Burn Limited {21.668} {25960}
Dormant and nen-trading companies (24,163} {23 948)
{142,427} (147513}

As at As at

December December

2010 2009

Owed by £000 £000
Mining Services Limited 511 403
LHTC Lrmited 2917 2979
Harworth Mining Limited 6294 6292
EQS Inc Ltd 10,959 9435
Harworth Estates {Agricultural Land) Limited 24,185 22734
Harworth Esiates {Waverley Prince) Limited 77.667 73625
Harwarth Insurance Company Limited 124 478
Dormant and non-trading companies 81,543 81077
210,260 200 551
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31 Related Party Transactions continued

Peel Holdings Limited

A £10,000,000 unsecured stand-by faciity from Peel Holdings Limited was agreed in the current period which 1s avarlabte for drawing in the event that the Revolving
Credit Facility is fully drawn The facility onginally expired at the end of July 2011 but was extended in April 2011 to 31 July 2012

0On 17 December 2010, the Company agreed to sell 164 acres of farmland near Tyldesley in Greater Manchester to Peel Investments (Intermediate) Limited, a
subsidiary of Pee! Holdings Limited for a cash consideration of £1,600,000 of which £1000,000 was received in 2010, and the balance 1s to be recewved in July 2011
This transaction represented a smaller related party transaction pursuant to the Listing Rules and the appropriate confirmations set out in Listing Rule 11110 were
provided to the Financial Services Authonity

32 Government Grants
The Group has recewved support from the Government in the form of, Coal Investment Aid, in order to provide assistance towards investment in the industry
Detail of how this aid 15 treated 1s set out in note 1 10 the finanoial statements Amounts credited to the consolidated income statement are as follows

Year ended Year ended

December Decembier

2010 2009

£000 £000

Release of deferred mcome 1.01 2 867

33 PostBalance Shest Events
As outlined n the operating and financial review the Group has restructured its banking arrangements and the stand-by facility from Peel Holdings Limited since the
year end Note 191dentifies the principal changes 1o those facilities
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